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TR Property Investment Trust plc

The investment objective of TR Property
Investment Trust plc is to maximise
shareholders’ total returns by investing

in the shares and securities of property
companies and property related businesses
internationally and also in investment
property located in the UK.

INTRODUCTION

TR Property Investment Trust plc (the "“Company” or the
“Trust”) was formed in 1905 and has been a dedicated
property investor since 1982 The Company IS an
Investment Trust and 1ts shares are gremium hsted on the
London Stock Exchange

BENCHMARK

The benchimark 1s the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed
Europe Capped Net Total Return Index in Sterling

INVESTMENT POLICY

The Company seeks to achieve 1s objective by investing 1n
shares and secunties of property companies and property
related businesses on an international basis, although,
with 3 Pan-turopean benchmark, the majonty of the
nvestments will be located in that gecgraphical area The
Company also invests i nvestment property lotated in
the UK only.

Further details of the Investment Policies, the Asset
Allocation Guidelines and policies regarding the use of
geanng are set out n the Strategic Report on page 25 and
the entire portfoho 1s shown on page 18

INVESTMENT MANAGER
BMO Investment Business Limited acls as the Company's

alternative investment fund manager ("AIFM") wath
portfolia management delegated to Thames River Capital
LLP ("the Portfolio Manager” or “the Manager ™) Marcus
Phayre-Mudge has managed the partfolio since T Apnl
2017 and been part of the Fund fanagement team since

1697

INDEPENDENT BOARD

The Directors are all independent of the Manager and
meel ieqularly to consider investment strategy, to monilos
adherence to the stated objeclive and investment policies
and to review performance. Detatls of how the Board
aperates and fullils its responsibilities are set out In the
Reporl of the Directors on page 41,

PERFORMANCE

The Financial Highhights for the current year are set out
apposile and Histanical Perfarmance can be faund on
page 3 Key Perlormance Indicators are set out i the
Strateqic Repoit on pages 76 and 27

RETAIL INVESTORS ADVISED BY IFAS

The Company currently conducts its affans so that its
shares can be recommended by Independent Finanaal
Advisers ("IFAS™) 10 the UK to ordinary retail investors in
accordance with the Financial Conduct Authonty {(“FCA")
rules in relation to non-mainstream investment products
and inrtends to conbinue to do so The shaies are excluded
from the FCAS restrictions, which apply to noa-mainstieam
investment products, because they are shares m an
authonised investment trust

FURTHER INFORMATION

General shareholder informaticn and detatls of how to
invest in TR Property Investment Trust plc, including an
investment through an ISA of saving scheme, can be
found cn pages 111 and 112 Tmisinformation can also he
found on the Trust's website www Fproperty.com

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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Financial Highlights and Performance

B_ai;n(e Sheet
Net asset value per share

Shareholders’ funds (£'C00)

Shares in issue at the end of the year {m)
Net debrts

share Price
Share price
Market capitalisation

Revenue
Revenue earnings per share

Dividends?

Interim dividend per share
final dividend per share
Total diyidend per share

Performance: Assets and Benchmark
Net Asset Vatue total return®®
Benchmark total returné

Share price total return*s

Ongoing Charges®*

Including performance fee

txcluding performance fee

Excluding performance fee and direct property costs

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2021 2020 Change
417.97p 358.1p +16.7%
1,326,433 1,136,453 +16.7%
3174 374 +0.0%
16.5% 76%
392.50p 317.50p +23.6%
ﬂ246m £1,008m *23.6%_
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
) 2021 2020 __ Change
_ 225p 00 Mep 0 62%
5.20p 5.20p +0.0%
9.00p 8.80p +2.3%
14.20p 14.00p +1.4%
+20.7% -11.5%
+15.9% -14.0%
+28.3% -16.8%
+1.40% +0.80%
+0.65% +0.61%
_ +0.63% +0.59%

1 Netdebt is the total value of lcan notes, ioans (including notional exposure to {FDs and Total Retun $wap) less cash as a proportion of net asset value.

?  Diwidends per share are the dividends i respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2021. An interums dividend of 5.20p was paid in January 2021 A finat dividend of
900p (2020: 8.80p) wilt be paid on 4 August 2021 ta shareholders on the register on 18 June 2021

The shares will be gquoted ex-dividend on 17 june 2021.

3 The NAV Total Return for the year is calculated by remvesting the dividends in the assets of the Company from the relevant ex-dividend date. Dividends are deemed
1o be reinvested on the ex-dividend date as this is the pratocol used by the Campeany’s benchmaik and other indices

4 The Share Price Tetal Returmn 1s caltulated by reinvesting the dwidends in the shates of the Company from the relevant ex-dividend date.

5  Ongoing Charges are calculated in accordance with the AIC methodolagy. The Gngoing Charges ratios provided in the Company’s Key information Document are
calculated in line with the PRIPS regulation which is difterent to the AiC methodclogy.

& Considered 10 be an Altetnative Perlormance Measute as defined on page 93

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST



Historical Performance

For the years ended 31 March

20M 202 2013 2004 2015 2016 20177 2018
Performance for the year:
Total Return (%)
NAYW 154 -8.5 21.5 22.4 28.3 8.2 8.0 15.5 921 -11.5 20.7
Benchmark® 15.2 -8.9 178 14.9 233 5.4 65 10.2 5.6 -14.0 15.9
Share Price’® 12.6 -9.5 25.8 377 295 1.6 91 B 255 62 168 28.3
Shareholders’ funds (£'m)
Total 670 588 684 809 1,010 1,065 18 1,256 1,328 1,136 1,326
Ordinary shares 531 470 684 809 1,010 1,065 1,118 1,256 1,328 1,136 1,326
Sigma shares® 139 18 - -
Ordinary shares
Net revenue {pence per share)
Eamings 694 707 6.74 8.09 8.89 8.36 11.38 13.22 14.58 14.62 12.25
Dividends® 6.00 6.60 700 745 770 8.35 10.50 12.20 13.50 1400__ 14.20
NAV per share (pence) 20710 183.60 21525 25494 31812 335.56 35242 395.64 418.5{ ~ 358_ noMa 797
Share price (pence) 17770 15450 18630 24750 31050 29750 31450 38250 39400 317.507 392.50
Indices of growth
Share price®™ 100 87 105 140 175 168 178 216 222 179 222
Net Asset Value!® 100 89 104 123 154 162 170 191 202 173 202
Dividend Net® 100 1o 17 124 128 139 175 203 225 233 237
RPI 100 104 107 To m m 16 120 123 126 128
?f,':'EhTﬁﬂfm 100 &7 99 105 126 130 134 144

47 123 140

Figures have been prepared in accordance with IFRS.

{A) The NAV Total Retusn for each year is calculated by reinvesting the dividends in the assets of the Company from the relevant ex-dwvidend date. Drvidends are
deemed to be reinvested at the ex-dividend date as this is the pratocol used by the Company’s benchmark and other indices. This is considered to be an Alternative
Performance Measure as defined on page 98

(B} Benchmark ndex: composite index comprising the FTSE EFRA/NAREIT Developed Furope TR Index up to March 2013, and thereafter the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed

turope Capped Index. Source: Thames River Capital.

{C) The Share Price Total Return is czlculated by reinvesting the dividends in the shares of the Company from the relevant ex-dividend date.
(D) The Sigma share ciass was launched in 2007 and Sigma shares were redesignated as Ordinary shares on 17 December 2012,

{E) Dividends per share in the yea 1o which ther declaration relates and not the year they were paid.

(F) Share prices only. These do not reflect dividends paid.

(@) Capital only values. Fese do not reflect dividends paid.

(H) Pace only value of the indices set out in (B) above.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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Chairman’s Statement

David Watson
Chairman

whilst underlying earnings were initially
impacted by the pandemic, the message
from the vast majority of our invested
companies, which largely excludes
owners of retail property, has been a
considered and strong resumption in
dividends.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

INTRODUCTION

The start of this reporuing period was very close to the
iecent COVID-19 influenced nadir of global equity markets
in March 2020. Since then equity markets have been
determinedly focused on the future rather than reflecting
on the more immadiate economic data and human
tragedy of the pandemic. As a result, I'm able to report
healthy returns for the year with a nel asset value (“NAV")
total return of 20 7%, well ahead of the benchmark total
return of 15.9% The share price lolal return was even
stronger at 28 3% as the discount narrowed over the year

Stock markets have taken great comifort from the huge
armount of central bank stmulus and state aid for both
corporates and indwiduals Since November 2020, this
sense of suppart has been augmented by oplimism
following the announcemenls and subsequent rollout of 2
ranqge of vacane programmes

The tnisis nas forced a cramauc change in the way we work,
consume ard relax Qer the last year our management tear.
has pondesed nat only the pace of these changes across a
wide range of oropeity seclors but also then sustanabilty
once the world revers to "the new normal”

Over the 1ast guarter of the financia. year under review
and into the start of the new one, we have seen very
dramatic share orice movernenrts as investors rotated
from companies cffenng the safely of secure income
towards those offerirg greater nsk, particularly wherte the
campanies ware trading at large discounts to ther asset
value Your manader’s report will examine 1in more detail
10w the portfolio structare has evolved throuch these
themanc rotations



REVENUE RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

Earnings for the year were 12 25p per share, 16% lower
than the prior year earnings of 14 62p

The headline earnings per share figure 15 shghtly deceptive,
earnings before tax were 24% lower than the previous year,
but a significant tax refund and some further pnor penad
withholding lax recoveries reduced the revenue tax charge
from an effeclive rate of 11.3% mn 2020 Lo st 1.9% for the
financial year to March 2021 Further details of this are set
out in the Manager's Report

The Board has anncunced a finaf dividend of S00p per
share, brinqing the full year dividend to 34 20p per share
{2020 1400p) an overall increase of 14% on the prior year
dividend The Board 1s constious of the income aspirations
of some of our investor base and, although this dividend
15 not fully covered, the Company has significant revenue
reserves avallable. As long as the Board has a reasonable
expectation of Income returning to previgus levels in the
medium term, the Board is happy to mamtain a modest
level of dividend progression.
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REVENUE QUTLOOK

Within our partiolio, the manager anticipates income

[ the year 1o March 2022 to be splitinto three broadly
equal parts with one third suffening a reduction and in
some cases significant cuts or even suspensions, a third
with mngcome returning Lo pre-pandemic levels, and the
balance offening some level of increase. We do not expect
total income levels to retuin o pre-CoVID-19 levels within
the curient financial year although we do expect an
tmprovement relative ta 2020/71

After allowing for the proposed dividend, revenue reserves
will stll amount to 12 18p per share giving plenty of
capacly for the board to supplement the dividend agdin

11 2021/22, providing a return to pre-Covid levels can
reasonably be anticipated in the medium term

Ordinary Share {lass Performance: Total Return over 10 years {rebased)

200 I 8enchmark Total Return i TR Property Share Price Tota! Return

Mar-10 Mar-11 Mar-12 Mar-13 Mar-14 Mar-15

TR Property Net Asset Value Total Return

S

Ve

Mar-16 Mar-17 Mar-18 Mar-19 Mar-20 Mar-21
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AWARDS

The Trust was the winner in the Specialist Equities
cateqory of the Litywire Investment Trust Awdids. This is
particularly pleasing as we were in competition with Trusts
specialising in a broad range of equities and alternatives.

CITWVIRE
WINNER

TR PROPERTY
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Manager’s Report

Marcus Phayre-Mudge
fund Manager

Capital is clearly seeking feal assets.
There has been several recent instances
of private equity acquiring listed
properties companies. This will continue
if public companies are undervalued.
Such market dynamics provides us with
a strong valuation underpin.

TR PROPERTY [NVESTMENT TRUST

PERFORMANCE

The et Asset Value total return for the vear to 31 March
2021 was 20.7%, ahead of the benchmark total return of
15.9%. At the inlenim stage, | 1eported that Continental
Curopean property compames had sigmiicantly
outperfonmed thewr UK counterparts {returns of 11 3% v

? %), The second half saw the complete reverse The UK’
performance in the second half was so strong that the

12 month performance of 191% {(in GBF) cutperformed
Conbinental Europe at 18 7% (1In LUR).

Themtiahimpact of the pandemic on Evropean real estate
equities save the benchrnark fall 36% from the pre-Covid
peak of 19th February to the trough on 18 March 2020 CQur
financial year therefore started close to these depressed
levets and the steady recovery since then is refiected 1n
the healthy figures for the year undel review However il
15 worth noting that colleclively the sector remains nearly
159, helow the pre-Cownid paak

This extraordinary year has clearly been tike no ather and

the qulf iIn performance of the different real eslate sectors
(and ther respecive histed companies) 1equires the same

adjective The year can be neatly divided into pre and post
the vactine announcement

From March to October investors focused on Gwring
sJstainable, pandemic proof incore such as residential,
supermarkets and heaithcare alongside logistics,
warehousing and industnal where the uncertying tenarts’
businesses had remained oper and in many cases

were thriving Consumer faung sectars such as retail,
restaurants, Aotel and leisure were shurred We divide oul
urrerse of pan Eurapean real eslate companies into 26
bespoke g oups znd ave- the 7 montns from the trough 01
18th March 2020 our logistics /1ndustna group refuried
-54%,  German resicenial -5J%, healthcare +36%; whist
UK retar ‘eil 455, arc Burgpean 1elall retarned just 17,
London :elail 350 suffered ‘aling 287 as tounsm levels
{poth domesuc and irzernatioral) collznsed

However, fram Noverhber onwdrds we saw a comp ele
yolte face as investors focused oa e passibility of

a normahsing econorc outlook Host e vacdne
bBreakthrongn in our world that meant suying back nto
the cansumer ‘aang sectors Stocks exposed o these



seclors had been standing at large discounts given the
markets expectation of further assel value dechnes and
they enjoyed significant price recavery Stocks such as
Hammerson and Shaftesbury, whe had Goth carmed out
emergency capital raises {more on this later), enjoyed
100% and 85% onice appreciation from their respective
(pre-vaccine announcement) capal raise prices

The Trust was defensively positioned as we entered the
pandemuc with overweights to European PRS (private
rented sector) particularly in Germany, supermarkets

(UK and Nordics), healthcare (mainly UK) and logistics /
industrial across bath the UK and Europe. These exposuies
drave much of the relative outperformance from March to
November.

London exposed stocks suffered parlicularly as office
workers have nol returned (we eshimate office utifisation
rates at ¢25% versus a Continenlal average of over 50%)
and this combined with the collapse in tourism (hoth
domestic and inlernaticnai) has temporanly hollowed oul
our global aty Our UK office exposue was concentiated
in decentralised offices through (15 and McKay whilst

we davoided Landon retail focused names such as Capco
and Shaftesbury as well as those businesses with shoit
occupational leases such as Workspace.

As the Telef / reopening / reflation” trade gathered
momentum, | closed our underweight exposure to
European shopping centres. bought back into some Central
London retail and renewed our exposure Lo office markels
particularly those cities wath the shorter commute tmes
Essentially | was still shying away from the largest two
conurbations {London and Pans) whilst adding to smaller
ores such as Madnd and Dublin and maintaining exposure
to decentralised office secloss in the UK, Sweden and
Germany

The pandermic has tuined much ‘onits head” and in owr
corner of the equity market it was the performance of
Swiss praperty companies which was much weaker than
history would have predicted. Traditionally a safe haven,
these stocks did naliitially recover from the March lows
wilh investors fecused on the problematic relall exposue
of the largest lisled companies. We continue to be
underweight the group
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Another positive surpnse has been in self-storage which
reported very steady numbers through the worst of the
year Whilst our stock selection in the UK was correct
(Safestore total return +27% versus Big Yellow ~14%), the
runaway success was Shurguard, the Continental player
returming +48%, which we didn’t cwn. In our defence, the
stock enjoyed strang dernand from index trackers as il
entered vanous benchmarks midyear

Most of 2020 was an understandatiy subdued

pericd for Mah corporate activily with one parlicular
exceplion, Norwegian offices Entra (where we were a
top 20 shaigholden) was the subject of a bidding war
between lwo Swedish histed players, Castellum and
Samhallsbyggnadsbmagel (also known as SBB). Whilst
neither successfully gamed controf, the share price Lotal
return was 57%, our maost successful investmentin the
period

The portfeho has some geanng This was redaced in
February and March 2020 bul has subsequently returned
to pre-pandemic fevels Why have geanng in volatle
nmes? The Trust continues to take advantage of its

closed ended structure and holds a number of ilhgund
small cap stocks. These weil-run companies {even when
exposed 1o outperforming subsectors) oiten suffer from
limited 1nvestor attention, being deemed too small As a
consequence, In f1sing markets they aften underperform
therr larger brethren (in market parlance their ‘beta’is less
than one). Adding some gearnng helps compensate foi
these lower beta names. Our experience 15 that over time
the underlying property fundamentals will be recogrised
and, if not, then the market will take them private o
merge them together. Our physicai property exposure glso
sits outside our benchmark and additional gearing ensures
thal we are not underexposed Lo equities versus our
benchmark given that a proporiion of capital 1s invested in
physical property.

OFFICES

Ol all the segments of the commergial real estate
landscape, the future demand ‘or offices remains Lthe
hardest to forecast. The two undemiable consequences of
the pandemic, for this assel class, has been the realisation
that employees of corporates of all sizes can work
remolely (for long pencds) if required and secondly that

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 3
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Manager’s Report .71 ¢ -

the next generalion of ‘best in dass’ office accommodation
will be utihsed very differently with tenants having new
prionties Built inta these demands will be the overaiching
need for energy efficiency. carbon neutrahity and
sustainabihity through the life cycle of the building.

The take up figures for the last year (across the 15 major
attes we monitor) oflers ittle comparative vatue qiven the
nability for businesses to physically relocate in many of
these markets from KMaich 7020 Taking London as & case
I point, Savilis reported that West End take up fell from
4.4m sq ftin 2015 Lo 17min 2020 Office utihisation rates
thiough 2020 and into 2027 have vaned hugely A broad
rule of thumb was that the larger the aty {and the longer
the average commute time) the lower the office utiisation
rate Generaily the smaller ates also had figher ievels of
commutng by private transport ar whete workers were
using overground pubhc transport. Scandmnavian and Swiss
aties have seen almost normalised utiisation rales whilst
london and Panis remain sub 30% Looking forwarg, whal
1S important to us 15 the amaunt of new space which was
scheduled to complete (construction was haited fon very
short penods in most marketsy and whether there are
sions of demand as we move into the post vacane oenod

Locking across Eurepe as a whale, the combined effect of
teduced leasing activity and construction complelions led
to *00bps increase in vacancy Lo an average ol & 9% (BAP
data) This single statistic cearly hides a wide 1ange of
levels Unsurpnsingly, sondon and Pans have experienced
the greatest ircieases from 5% to nearly 8% bul Dublin
cohiects the woode spocn with vacancy Increasing to
Gver 9% Ts 15 a good example of ¢ small market wherg
2 (leporary) demand strike meets a numbar of large
complebons aac refurbisnments However the histonically
low levels o' vacancy In many aities pror te the panderric
have insu.ated most Tarke's, wath modest downward
move™ents 17 prime rerts iecorded acrnss the Cerimar
Big 6 Mian, sadnd, Gsio, Amsterdam Jand Siocxholm

Tre delivery of new office nuildirgs has aiso been
deferrad, particalar y ‘or tall buildings The “ew _ondan
Arcaitectyre’s Aptue Tab 8ailcings Survey recorded

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

a 27% dechne i planning applications for builldings

over 20 storeys in 2020 when compared with 2019 We
weie surprised that the fall wasn't larger but 73% of all
applications were in the [atter part of the year and hints at
developer confidence regarding demand for new build

lnvestment demand has remained very resilient almosl
regardless of short-term weakness in occupational
markels The weight of capital seeking real assels is

3 theme which will recur through this report The rse

In the long end of the curve as the reflation theme
gathers momentum 15 proving very damaqing for fixed
income structures. High quality offices - oftering large lot
sizes —with secure incomne defivenng 3 5-4% net yield

15 attractive versus negalive yielding sovereign bonds
Further up the nsk curve, opportunistic capital aiso remains
very active and listed develapment specialists such as
Greal Portland Estates and Derwent London have found il
hard lo deploy capital amidst fierce competition

The 2027 CBRE EMLEA Investor Intentions Survey highhghts
london as still the most attractive cily for iavestment

in Europe with an estimated €40-45bn of alobal equity
looking to e deplayec inte the market across all types
of builldings This 1s the hughest figure since the survey
starting trackang demand in 2072 Whilst transaction
volumes slowed last year, the first two months of 202°
(tradionally 3 quiet hme) have seen volumes reach
£875m greater than the same penod in 2019 Pait of the
London atlraction 15 that yields didn’t compress cunng
lke Brexit uncertainty making the aty look much cneaper
Man other big Luronear aties Post the FU-UK Trade and
Cooperation Agreement we expect this gap to narrow

RETAIL

Tre MSTH/ PO cate ‘or the 12 menths 1o March 2927 a3y
a'l retail property cacilah vames foll 12 8 waitn a serous
acceleration 11 the decire of sroppirg centre waues
which ‘el 25 540 gver the iast "2 moaths i e rienms,
lcemmented trat e felt the valualion community wese
behind tne times cue to then recmremen: {0 'oox al deal
eyvidente Essentially, in fast movirg mar<els tie pdbisheg

e

figures will ateady be nut of date Slock maseats krow




this and retail landlards across the globe have been
trading at very large discounts to therr (no longer vahd)
last published figures

The woes of retall are well understood The pandemic
has acceleraled trends which were well established.
Reopening of economies will see feotfall return to
shopping centres but the levels of sustainable rents
reman the subject of market forces, In the UK the loss
of a huge number of well known brands either through
bankiupley or retreal has resulted in average vacancy
levels in shopping centres reaching over 15% {MSCI data)

This means the negotiation bool remains firmly on the
lenants’ foot and we predicl a further 15% falls in rental
values The one area where there are clear signs of price
stabilisation 1s 1 retasl warehousing. Opern ai wilh plenty
of free parking, this type of retail asset sits wellin an
omni-channet enviconment whete retailer marging are
maxtrused through click and collect. Affordability 1s the
eternal watchword and whilst there are some parks with
very high rents (aften fashuen retader led) the majority wall
see modest declines n rental values. Occupancy cost ratios
are also not burdened by escalating service charges

Across Lurope, the picture s more nuanced valuers are
even more conservative than their UK counterparts and
capitalisation rates are yet to move matenialty In some
countiies, relallers have been given huge amounts of
govemnmenl support and as a result rental delinguency

15 genelally dower than in the UK. In additien, many
shopping centres are anchored by hypermarkets (which
nave remained open) and not department stores (a UK/
US concept no longer fit for purpose beyond a handful

of taunst destinations such as Selfadges and Galeries
lafayelle). Thete have been lower levels of retaller
bankiuptcy across Continental Furope and we put

this down o two factars: less overrenting and the UK
insolvency legislatior On this latter point, a huge number
of UK retallers have taken advanlage of the (VA {company
voiuntary adrministration) to force landlards (generally a
large creditor) to accept corparate ieconsiructions which
unduly damage their interests A ecent High Court ruling
mvolving the overly indebted retaller hew Look, reinforced
this tenant friendly leqislation.
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Investors remain very arcumspect towards this asset class.
Income insecunty has resuited 1n mvestors requinng much
fugher imual yields CEBRE ostunale that UK pnme shopping
centre yields have moved from 4 5% 1o 7% i the last

5 years wilh poorer secondary schemes in the high teens
or literally unsaleable Relall warehousing has bucked the
depressing trend at least from an investor perspective,
Investors are increasingly confident that they are able

to measure tenant affardability and this 1s the key to
determining pricing. In the last couple of months we have
seen compettive bidding for a number of retarl warehouse
schemes, somrething not seen since 2018

DISTRIBUTION AND INDUSTRIAL

UK industnal and logistics take up hit a record 59.7m sq U

in 2020, Whilst the pandemic suppressed demmand in many
other parts of the property markel, It clearly stimulated
logistics and business activity which utiised industrial
property. Amazon again accounted for a sizeable (20%)
portion of the actiaty and 1t was this XL segment (250,000 +
5q 1Y which was the major benelicary of the suiging online
demand. The onhne share of retail sales rose from 19.2% n
7019 to 279% 1n 2020 hiting a new high of 36 3% 0 January
2027 as we returned to lockdown. This will scale back as we
renpen but the boost to online scale and elficency 1s here to
stay Supply has resporded but has been mare than matched
hy this demand As a consequence, supply has fallen to

73 am sq ft, down 6% on the year, and this tightening has
cccuned in every size bracket

Rental growth continues to march on but there has been
a broadening of growth rates across the regions Greater
Londan and the Fast Midiands recorded growth of over
7% whitst average rales across the country at 3 9% Such
strong rental growth, the secure income and the positive
aullook has driven beth domestic and international buyers
to pay record pnices for this sector whether it 1s last mile
urban units, XL big boxes or terraces of well Iocated
ndustnal umits Prime yields are 3 5 1o 4% and even snoit
meame s not determng nvestors as evidenced by the sale
of our Bristol distnibution unit at 4 5% initial yield with

35 years unexpired

The same piclure of rude heallh 1s evident acrass
Continental Furope According to BNE Llake up increased

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 11
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14% across the 6 largest European economies and vacancy
rates dropped ta 5.5%, their lowest and all against a
backdrop of a sharp contraction in GOP Again it was a
surge in e-commerce and frome delivery which drove
demand. Prime yields acrass turope tightened 25bps in
2020, matching the UK with no signs of decompression
even as the long end of the curve nses. tnvestment
demand 1s truly giobal with US and Asian institutional
capital competing with more domeslic long term caputal
all determined to partiaipate in s structural shift

RESIDENTIAL

As expecled the sector has semained highly resihent
duning the pandermic The majonty of our Investments are
In Gerinan and Swedish housing where rents are subject
lo slate contrel The remaining exposure 15 finland and the
UK where rents are open-markel The former offer greate
securtly with rents tied to indexation whilst the latter
oflers more opportunity to capture market growth but
wilh the commensurate fsk if vacancy nses and market
rents fall Duning the crisis, the secunty of income and veuy
high occupancy levels resulted in the sector retaming its
populanty German housing has expenienced price 115es 10
virtually all its sub-markets

As explained earlier, Berhin remained the outher

as the Slate of Berlinymposed a 5 year rent freeze
{Mietendeckel) The subsequent Coastitutional Court ruling.
which confirmed that reat controls are determined at the
Federal, not State level, came Just after the year end in
mid-Apni We are pleased with this outcome and the share
prices of both Deutsche wWohnen (4 4% of ret assets) and
Phoenix Spize (2 5% of net assets) responded positive y
New constiuction of apartments in erhin Fad all but dred
up as developers awarted the outcome of the appeal
Barlie remains the cheanest camtal ary 17 Westein EJrope
g o cent an apartmert (f you can fing cne) The
desire of a left-wing local autnonty o keep 1L inat way
reqarcless of the sice effect of shulting oui news rigrar:s
through the consequential collapse in the supply of rew
homes has beer suiably ssbuffed

ALTERNATIVES

This group encomoasses secars $at have thrved
{(supermarkets. healthcare, se.f-staraqe) ir the cnisis and

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

those which have nat (student accommodation, hoteis)
Share price performance was an amplified reflection af
not only the underlying property performance but also
the dramatic shiftin investor sentment. Self storage
share prices have traditionally performed poorly 1n
slowing economic conditions as the income 1s considered
short term and volatile However the pandemic has
facused investors’ minds on the emerqing strength of
this sector where a small group of operators {mastly
listed companies) have the finanaal muscle to dominate
the price comparnson websites Another emerging trend
has been the ncreasing business usage of a product
traditignaily seen as the domain of private customers
Businesses have seen the ments of Immediale, hassle fiee
access o short or longer term storage  The supply chain
distuption during the pandemic heightened the need for
space as the mantra becarme a hittle more st in case and
a lttle kess ustan tme Our self storage group returned
+46% from the tow point (18th March 2020) 1o the end
of Gelober However, from Navember 2020 to the end of
Maich 2021 they have collectively relurned just +4 1%

A classic example of a swilch in sentiment as investons
rotated away from the ‘Cowid relative winners’ group 1nto
the value names which had underperfarmed and looked
very cheap or histonc reetnes

In another ‘allernatives sub-sector we expenenced e
complete reverse Studert accomimadalion businesses
suffered a collapse in income and Unite (our only
exposuie) led the fietd i refunding rents which was the
coirect PR strategy but depleted therr top ine The weti
docurmentad difhculties far students tarough the last
wwa acaderic yeas and the complete 1naailiy for many
gverseas stude s 1o enrad physica by smpacted investor
sertiment wilt he sub-sectar falling 46% petween 1940
February ang 18th taarch 2020 ard then stagirg a weak
recovery of just <174 fram then to the end of Octaber
whilst this parformance compares noorly with seif storage,
since the Degirning of Navember the sub-sector has
rallied 30% a¢ the likehhood of the reopering of tetiary
education iImoioved

Supermarkets have conti~uad 1o atiract inyesto
avention Jur 2xposuie 1§ through Supermarket income
REIT (UK) and Cihus (Sweden and Finlard) Supermarks!



Income REIT raised a total of £490mn three separate
transactions threugh the year and now has a market

cap of over £300m Gibus also raised capital (SEK

900my) in two ranches to make further acquisitions. The
larger supermarket operators have een able Lo attract
customers through ther enling network which the hard
discounters {Lidl, Ald) are not able to offer Yolumes

and margins will normalise past the pandermic but these
operators have had the opportunily to prove the resilience
of their emmi-channel model which utilises last mile
distribution from therr netwerk of stores. ILis ane of the
few parts of the retall landscape where physical stores are
truly integral to the online journey.

DEBT AND EQUITY MARKETS

Property companies remained busy on debt refinancings
throughout the pandemic and the huge amount of central
bark support and gavernment stimulus ensured a healthy,
liquid market where pricing did not weaken According to
EPRA, €15 2bn was raised 1n 2019 at an average coupon of
1.8% and 2020 saw €15 abn at 2 cost of 16% These hgures
are not directly comparatle as the mix of debt offerings in
each period was different but they are a clear indicatar as to
the health and price stability in the debt markets German
lesidential companies were again busy with Yonovia 1asing
€2.5bn1n four transactions borrowing 10-year money at 1%
Later in October, Geana. Fuiope’s largest office REIT raised
£200m 10 a 2034 term bond at 0 86%

Early in the crisis, we saw a number of strong Businesses
trading at premiums raise eauity camital for opportunistic
expansion. This was in sectars with clear underlying
demand, namely healthcare (Assura, Aedilica, Pnmary
Health Properties), sell-storage (Big Yellow). logistics/
industrial (LondonMetnic, Segro, VGP ), supermarkets
{Superrarket Income REIT. Cibus) and German residential
(Vonovia, ADD Praperties, LEG) The Autumn saw
opportunistic rarses In Sweden and Norway (Balder,
Klovern and Norweqgian Properties) a region which had
experienced low levels of lockdowr restrictions More
recently In February and March this year we saw renewed
activity 1n the UK, as the vaccine roliout improved
senhiment, with raises from Targel healthcare, LXK, Tritax
Furobox and Supermarket Income REIT again Cortinental
European raises in 20271 have so far been confined lo
healthcate (Colimmmo} and student accommaodation (Xior)
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Post the summer we saw the beginning of an expected
surge of more defensive raises as companies finally

came under cashflow and valuation pressure In Lthe end
it was just 3 handful of retal fecused names who had
been rmismanaqing thes:r balance sheets long before

the pandemic Hammerson's £600m raise effectively
recapitalised the balance sheet with o 24 for 1 nghts 1ssue
accompanied by the {previously announced} departure of
the CEO completing the overdue C-suite shuffle of Charr,
CEQ and CFQ In lale October, Shaftesbury announced a
£300m placing and open offer Looking back therr tirming
was spactacularly unfortunate as the anncuncement of the
hirst vaccines came less than a fortnight later

These garme changing announcements immediately
altered expectalions and there 1s nowhere better to
lustiate the point than the corporate saga at Unibail-
Rodamco-westlield (URW). URW had announced a €5bn
‘Resel’ plan comprising €3.5bn capital raise, dividend
cancellaion and a planned €4bn of disposals A group

of activist shareholders lead by Leon Bressler (the CEO

of Unibatl from 1992 1o 2006) launched a campaign (o
oppose these AGM proposals and faunch an alternative
strategy which did not include a deeply discounted capital
raise. They proposed the sate of the US (ex westfield)
portiolio and & retun to their roots as an owner of

prime European shopping tentres Their tming was
fortunate, with the 10th November AGM coming just
after the vacane announcement and the improvernent in
investor seniment even for deeply Indebled businesses
Essentially convinang investors that they didnt need

to put ‘good maney after bad and thal the self help
strateqy would succeed They were successful in therr
campaign and shareholders voled against the Reset’
plan This led to the departure of the Chairman, CEO

and CFO and the promotion of exisling semar managers
io the Board The share price, which had troughed at

€35 per share, subsequently doubled amidst the closing
of short positions This corporate tale neatly encapsulates
the dramatic change in investor sentiment (and pricing
of previously unloved businesses) which we saw from
November onwards

INVESTMENT ACTIVITY - PROPERTY SHARES

Turnover (purchases and sales divided by twoy tolalled
F458m equating 1o 36% of the average net assels over
the peniod This was broadly in line with [ast year's

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 13
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We increased the capacty on our ICBC loan facility dunng
the year and the rermaining loans were renewed at
exisling levels. We did see small increases on margins
on some renewals. We also looked at the potential to
take oul new or extend our longer-term debt. Our Euro
denominated loan nole 1s due for repayment in 2026 and
the Steching note in 2031, however the flexibility of the
shoit- term facilities 1s valuable in more volatile markets
and has certainly worked well for us in the current year.

We conlinue to explore new options in all markets

OUTLOOK

As economies emerge from the gnp of the pandemic,
investors have focused on assessing whether the damage
(or growth) was temporary, langer lasting or permanent
Real estate investors are 1o exception and the 1ange

of premuums / discounts to net asset values of listed
companies highlights the breadth of expeclations across
the property spectrum. The difficulty 1s that there 1s no
precedent for the profile of recovery in tenant demand
across so much of this asset class Clearly existing
struclural shifts have been accelerated and new ones have
emerged which may prove mare permanent thar the
markels curently expect Al of this uncertainty leads us to
focus on income sustainabiity and those markets where -
it demand does return - supply 15 constiamad

Whilst tenant dermand 1s hard to gauge we do benefit
from a bemign financing enviionment Debt markets are as
accommodating as they have ever been, even If the long
end of the curve 15 rising We see 10 reason far margins to
widen In the near term Infatianary pressures ase bullding
ard fieed incorre asset values reflect these expectations
Property offers incomre whic is tied erther arrecty
{I~dex-hirked) arindirectly (rental growth) to ecoromic
expansion Our Ntentior 15 to remain focuses on areas
where that ircome 15 hatn susiainabie and whare 1t offers
giowith

in 1e near term, we air o Taintain e exposure to the
prvaie 1erted reside~tiar sector (oarticstarly in Germany
ard Sweder) as the market cortinues to ynde-value 1ot
oniy the quality of thase earrings bul also Ine sieady
groveth profile There 1s nisk - in Germany - that 4 left
wing Loahition government would amerd ke curent

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

federal law resuiting 1n local cities getling more cantrol
over rents, However the rent fieeze 1in Berlin {over the
last 18 months) resulted in a reduction in the number of
avallable apartments as well as a slowing in the pace of
new apartment delivery We trust thal common sense
will prevall over politicai dogima. Elsewhere, undervalued
Income streams ate evident N supermarkets and 1N

parts of the healthcare markel. Alongside ndex-linked
sustainability we will also maintain exposure to the
grealest growth apportunities The structural shifts n
retail behaviour are still ongoing Fvolution In the speed
of delivery and post pandemic supply cham dynamics
wiil drive growth across the logistics landscape from 'big
box" to last rule” We will continue to own the developers
where we see increases In the value of landbanks as well
as growing development margins. Investor demand for the
end product shows no sign of abating

Office markets will remain volatile Businesses will spend
lime working out therr requirements 10 a post pandemic
world Interaction and collaboration wall dnive office usage
Tasks that can be fulfilled without physical interaction wll
e metaaled for remote waorking A new balance will
develop with one sure fire certainty, the premum Heing
attached to best in class newly built space with complete
envirgnmental credenbals Developers will respona to
this demand and we expect an acceleration in budldings
seing wentified for refurbishment earlier than previousty
envisaged CObsolescence of the existing office stoc< will
accelerate,

Post the year end in early May, SUModwen Propeities
anncounced that ar o*fer af 542p per share from
Blackstone, 2 24% premiem o the last publishec NAY
had Ine suppost of the board Tris company has o large
strateqic landbanx. a high guality fogistics portfoho and
a growing nousebullzing unit and whilst it was trading
close o ls assel value, private equity clearly fzelsitis
ancervaiued This 1s a =aminder, 25 stated in a numoer of
previous reports, that the depth of Hotn equity and gen:
avallability underzins histed company valualions

Marcus Phayre-Mudge
Fung Manage-

3 June 2027



Portfolio

Distribution of lavestments v
as at 31 March §
2021 2021 2020 2020 E
£'000 % £000 % &)
UK Securities E
- quoted 395,644 28.3 352,188 304 2
Hmyeiﬁjgﬂl PIOpeiigi B 83,071 59 94,510 8.1
UK Total S amms U342 a6698 385
Continental Europe Securitieg
- quoted 921,801 65.8 708,557 611
Investments held at fair valye 1,40?51'6- 100.6 1,155,295 95.6
- CFD {creditor)/debtor’ {141) - 8,698 07 B UK Securities
_~TRS creditor? - - {3,808) {0.3) B UK Property
Total Investment Pasitions 1,400,375 100.0 1,160,185 1000 Continental Europe
Investment Exposure
as at 31 March
20 0 2020 2020
£'000 % £'000 %
UK Securities
- quoted 395,644 25.6 152,188 289
- CFD exposure? 45,411 2.9 32,257 26
- TRS exposure* - - 6,598 0.5
UK investment Properties 83,071 5.5 94,510 78
UK Total 7T saanse 3as 485553 398
Continental Europe Securities
- quoted 921,801 59.5 708,597 58.2
- CFD exposure® L 100,_560 _ 6_.__5 24,41 o 2.0 B Equities
Total investment exposures 1,}46,517 100.0 1,218,621 100.0 B Uk Property

Portfolio Summary
as at 31 March

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
£'000 £000  E000  £'000 £/000

Total investments £1,401 £1,155m £1,291m £1,316m £1,145m
Net assets £1,326 £1,136m £1,328m £1,256m £1,118m
UK quoted property shares 28% 3% 33% % 29%
Overseas quoted property shares 66% 61% 59% 62% 63%
Direct property (externally valued) 6% 8% 8% 7% 8%

Net Currency Exposures
as at 31 March

202 2021 2020 2020
Company Benchmark QRG] L] TG F T
% % % %
GBP 27.9 28.3 210 26.8
EUR 51.2 50.9 530 53.1
CHF 6.7 6.6 79 %
SEK 12.9 12.9 1.0 n3
NOK U FN = S | BN .8
1 Netunrealised (loss)/gain on CFD contracts held as balance sheet (creditor)/debtor.
2 Neturvealised loss on tolal return swap (TRS) contract held as balance sheet ¢reditor.
3 Gross value of CFD positiens.
4 Gross value of TRS postren,
5 Total investments illustrating market expasure including the gross value ot CFD and TRS positions. TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 17
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tnvestment Portfolio by Country

as at 31 March 2021

Austria
CA timmobilien

Belgium

Warehousing and Distribution de Pauw
Aedifica

Cofinimmo

vap

Xior

Care Property

Mantea

Intervest Offices & Warehouses
Wereldhave

Finland
Kojamo
Citycon

France
Argan
Gecina
Covivio
Klépierre
Altarea

Germany

Yonovia

LEG

Deutsche Wohnen
Aroundtown

VIB vermoegen
TAG Immobilien
Alstria

Deutsche Euroshop

treland
Hibernia REIT
irish Residential Properties

Netherlands

Eurocommercial Properties
Unibail-Rodamco-Westtield
NS|

Norway
Entsa

Spain
Arima Real estate
Merlin

5,092
9,092

24,11
16,502
13,677
8,070
5,926
4,80
2,329
1,923
247
78,286

17,500
2170

19,670

53,987
24,036
13,457
10,364
1,351
103,195

145,982
63,904
54,499
19,306
37,980
33,294

8,811
5,283
389,059

20,998
2,990
23,988

25,077
14,499

4,099
43,675

16,199
16,199

21,102

19,901

41,003

Market
value
Y

0.6

0.6

18
12
10
0.6
0.4
0.3
0.2
01

Y

12
02
1.4

39
17
10
07

01

_7'4

1.4
46
39
2.8
27
24
0.6
0.4

2738

15

0.2

1.7

18
1.0

) 03

31

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

Market
value
%
Sweden
Kungsleden 36,061 2.5
wihlborgs 23,390 17
Cibus 18,201 13
Fabege 17,594 12
Castellum 16,805 1.2
Fastighets Balder 16,216 1.2
Nyfosa 12,008 0.9
Catena 8,933 0.6
Samhalls 3,737 n3
Pandox 2,690 0.2
155,635 _ 1.1
Swilzerland
P . _ 41999 30
o L 21,999 30
United Kingdom
SEGRD 60,357 43
Derwent tondon 33,584 2.4
Safestore Holdings 32,193 23
Landsec 11,327 22
Stenprop 30,477 2.2
Phoenix 25,213 18
Unite Group 25,143 18
Sirius 22,21 1.6
Picton 21,330 1.5
CLS Holdings 20,077 14
iondonmetric Property 19,903 1.4
McKay Securities 18,104 13
Secure Income REIT 15,551 11
Supermarket income RE 9,614 0.7
Tritax Eurobox 7,634 0.6
PRS REIT 6,189 0.4
Assuia 5,194 0.4
Target Heaithcare 4,418 0.3
Pricnary Health Properties 3,848 0.3
Atrata (apital 1,468 01
Capital & Regional 1,062 01
Capital & Counties rals AN
) 395644 283
Direct Property 83,0m 59
CFD Pasitions
(included in current liabilities) (141) 00
Total investment Positions 1,400,375 100.0

Companies shown by country of listing.



Twelve Largest Equity Investments

VONOVIA

1. VONOVIA (GERMANY)

31 March
2020

SEGRO

2. SEGRO (UK)

31 March SEYRLENG!
L 2021 L 2020

Shareholding value  £146.0m {£144.4m)
% of investment

portfaliot 9.4%  (11.8%)
% of equity owned 0.5% {0.7%)
Share price €55.70 {€44.86)

vonovia is a German listed residential
company and the largest real estate
company in Cantinental Europe by market
capitalization.

At the end of 2020, the company owned

a portfolio of EURS6.8bn split between
Germany (B4%), Sweden (11%) and
Austria (5%). Vonovia has developed a
large in-house craftsman organization
which aflows the company to run a
strategy facusing on modernizing its
portfalio. The company is involved in the
whole value chain of the residential sector
via its rental business (81% of group
EBITDA), its value-add branch (energy

and multimedia related services, 8%),

its third-party development business

(6% and its recurring sales program
{5%). Finally, the residential sector is
subject to strict requlations in Germany

in particular. Vonovia's management has
been particutarly pro-active with public
authorities, complying with reguiations
and assuming a social role which should
allow them to benefit from critical pelitical
goodwill in the future. in 2020, Vonovia
delivered again strong results in absolute
and relative terms. The company delivered
a +17% total accounting return {computed
as the growth in NAV + dividend paid over
the year) against +14% on average for the
main listed residential peers. The like for
like rental growth at +3.1% was resilient
and one of the highest in the residential
sector despite the impact of the Berlin
rental freeze which implied a negative
rental adjustment in November 2020. The
total shareholder return since listing in
July 2013 has been +314%.

Notes

LEG

3. LEG (GERMANY)

31 March R EIA]
200 2020

Shareholding value £67.8m (£38.7m)
% of investment

portioliof 44%  (3.2%)
% of equity owned 0.6% {0.5%)
Share price ~938.0p (764.0p)

Shareholding value £63.9m (£75.3m)
% of investment

portiolio! 4.1% (6.2%)
o of equity owned 0.9% (1.2%)
Share price €112.2  (€102.7)

Segro has become the largest UK REIT by
market cap, and is the largest operator
of logistics and industrial property listed
in the UK, with a total partfolio of £13bn
{split 53% in the UK, 47% in Continentai
Europe, with 66% urban warehouses,
32% big boxes and 2% other uses). In
the UK, the group is mainly exposed to
Greater London industrial and logistics.
rental growth in these markets has
been extremely strong as there remains
an acute supply-demand imbalance,
fuelled by tenants’ requirements to

deal with the growth in e-commerce.

in Europe, Germany and France are the
groep’s largest markets with Italy third;
these markets have a lower, but still
positive, rental growth outlaok (and are
geographically less space-constrained)
but continue to see yield compression
as investors have paid keener yields for
access to strong income. The logistics
sector has proved particularly resilient
during the COVID crisis, with high

rent collection. Segro has extensive
development expasure that it manages
to largely pre-let and develop at yields
significantly in excess of investment
values (c.6-7% yield on cost vs. an EPRA
net initial yield of 3.8% at FY20). We
expect this to drive both earnings and
NAV growth, as well as high sharehoider
total returns, The five-year total
shareholder return has been 177%.

LEG is a2 German residential company
focused on the economically strong
region of North Rhine-Westphalia. It is
one of the largest real estate companies
in Germany with more than 144,006 units
under management and a combined
value of €14.6bn. In addition to the
strong focus on NRW., the company

is exploring oppertunities on B and €
locatiens in adjacent states with the view
to leverage their market access as well

as their existing platformn stilt within strict
and conservative financial criteria. The
company has a distinct advantage to be
less exposed to regulatory risk than peers
with a Berlin exposure and to benefit
from a relatively high share of state
subsidised tenants {25% of the total).
The very low average rent per sqm at
EUR5.96 as well as the relatively low value
per sqrn of EUR,1503 make the company
particularly well suited to weather any
potential macro-economic shock. In
addition, the company has shown over
the years a conservative management

on the liabilities side which continued to
be the case in 2020 with a LTV of 37.6%
{maximum target set at 43% for 2021),

an average debt maturity of 7.4 years (8.1
years in 2019) and a net debt to adjusted
EBITDA of 11.8x. In 2020, LEG delivered

a strong total accounting retuen of 20%
ahead of the sector average at 14%. The
five-year total shareholder return has
been +106%.

> The peicentege of Irvestrert portte: o posmons set out above nciude exposures through CFD for both the ircv due pas tiars and the porttclio
=The nvestment Pertfolio by Lountry posilions set out ar page '8 die the physial haidings or y irqucec nthe nvestments held b fair va e i the Baldice Sheet ihe
pichit of loss positicns ar the CHD contracts (12 ral the nvestimenrt exposure) are dlso showr. of page 18 anc ate g uded i the B ance Sheet as debtors or crediters

1 the Cufrent assets
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Twelve Largest Equity Investments

DEUTSCHE
B  WOHNEN

4. DEUTSCHE WOHNEN

{GERMANY)
31 March
__ 2020

Shareholding value £54.5m  (£36.4m)
% of investment o

portialia’ 5% (3.0%)
% of equity owned 0.5% (0.3%)
Share price N €3978 (€34 .71)7

Deutsche Wohnen is Germany’s second
largest residential company with the bulk
of its exposure ta Greater Berfin (76%

of the total portfolio F¥). The company
owns a high-quality portfolio consisting of
more than 155,000 units with a combined
value of €26bn. In addition to the rental
business, the company is present in the
Nursing and Assisted Living business
which around represented 12% of the
Group EBITDA in 2020 (target to get to
5% in the medium-term}.The company
benefits from its development exposure
with a total investment cost of EUR6.5Dn
(27% of GAV) split between build-to-hold
{EUR4.3bn, 62% of the pipeline} and build-
to-sefl (EUR2.6bn, 38% of the pipeline}.
In a context of the implementation of

the rental freeze in Berlin, the company
showed a resilient financial performance
in 2020 with a total accounting return of
14% in line with German residential peers.
The Greater Berlin partfolio was valued

at EUR2,853 per sgm on average which
leaves significant upside potential in the
future. As expected, post FY20 results we
had the positive unequivocal decision
from the court that the rental freeze

was anti-constitutional and therefore
cancelled. The five-year total shareholder
return has been +62%.

“etes

MARGAN

5. ARGAN (FRANCE)

31 March
2020

Shareholding value £54.0m (£46.8m{
% of investment

portfolio! 3.5%  {3.3%)
% of equity owned 3.5%  {3.5%)
Share price €80.4 (€67.6)

Argan is a French company, created in
2000 by Jean-Claude Le Lan, which has
been listed since 2607. The objective

of the company has been teo build a
portfolio of premium logistic assets which
guarantee a stable and high occupancy
rate at around 100%. The company is
vertically integrated and has full controf
of the entire value chain by identifying
future needs of prospective and current
tenants and developing assets on their
behait. Therefore, Argan is able 1o capture
the deveioper margin while having little
to no risk on the letting side. In 2020,

the portfolic vaiue amounted to EUR3bn
(100% exposed to France, 27% exposed to
Greater Paris region, 16% to the North of
France and 13% ataund Lyan).

The company delivered solid 2020 results
with an EPRA NRV per share up 19%

YoY and a DPS up 11%. The funding of

the company is based on a conservative
mix of 90% amortizable mortgage loans
with an average maturity of 8 years

and 10% of bonds. The relatively low
dividend payout at below 50% altows the
company to retain ash and reinvest in
new development projects while repaying
debts. The management of the company
has been assumed by its founder Jean-
Claude Le Lan who owns alongside family
members 40% of the share capital which
is a strong guarantee of alignment. The
five-year total sharehofder return has
been +307%

gec:na

6. GECINA (FRANCE)

31 March
2020

Shareholdingiélue £53.9m  (£47.5m)
% of investrent

portfoliot 3.5% (3.5%)
% of equity owned 0.7% (0.6%)
Share price €174 (€120.7)

Gecina is the largest office landlord in
Europe with a portfolio of more than
€14bn focused almost exclusively on

the Paris region (97% of the total office
value) and with a high share in Paris city
(50% of the total office value). It awns
also a portfolio of €3.6bn of residentiai
assets (of which EUR367m in student
housing) predominantly located in

the Paris region. Finally, the company
owns a portfolio of exclusive high

street retail assets for a value of €1.6bn
tocated in Paris city. The management is
capitalizing on a development pipeline
of more than €3.5bn (17% of GAV) to be
delivered in the next five years. This is a
continuation of the total return strategy
which has been implemented by the
company over the last couple of years:

in essence, redeveloping assets where
the management sees value creation
potential and disposing mature assets

to crystalize capitat gains. Since the end
of 2014, the company has delivered 30
projects and generated EUR1.1bn of value
creatien (EUR1S per share). in 2020, the
company showed resilience with 99% rent
collection, stable portfolio valuation and
Like for like rental growth of +2.3%. The
financial position of the company is very
solid with an LTV at 35.6% and an average
debt maturity of 7.1 years,

The five-year shareholder tatal return has
been +21.6%.
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KLEPIERRE

7. KLEPIERRE (FRANCE)

31 March
) 2020

Shareholding value  £51.3m (Nil}
% of investment o

portfalio? 3.3% (0%)
% of equity owned 1.0% (0%}
Share price €19.39 (€1757)

safestore

8. SAFESTORE (UK)

Sharehixlding value £44.0m  (£279m)
% of investrnent

portfoliot 28%  (2.3%)
% of equity owned 26%  (1.9%)
Share price 796p (647p)

31 March
_ __ 2020

oIS

Swiss Property
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9. PSP (SWITZERLAND)

31 March
2020

Shareholding value £42.0m (Em)
% of investment

postiolior 2.7%  {2.3%)
% of equity owned 1.0% {0.6%)

Share price

€115.20  (€120.70)

Klepierre is a European shopping

center operator, managing around 140
centers with a total portfolio valuation
of EUR22bn. The main exposures are

in France/Belgium (39% of tatal), italy
{18%), Scandinavia {17%) and Iberia
{10%). The company, like the rest of
shopping center owners, was impacted
by the COVID crisis in 2020 and therefore
reported an EPS down 27% YoY and an
EPRA NTA per share down 15% YoY. On

a relative basis, the company benefits
from its focus on Continental Europe
where shopping centers are anchored
by food retailers contrary te UK or US
centers anchored by department stores
which have been undergoing significant
challenges {partly driven by online
competition). The financial position of
the company is also more solid than its
direct peers with an LTV of 41.4% and

a net debt to EBITDA ratio of 10.8x. The
board benefits from the experience of
David Simon (Chairman of the Supervisory
Board), Chairman and CEO of Simon
Property Group which owns a 21%
stake in Kleppierre. The five-year total
shareholder return has been -34%.

Nites,

safestore is the UK’ largest self-storage
operator, owning ¢.125 UK stores,
weighted towards London and the South
East (c.60%). in addition the company has
3 large footprint in the Paris market and
has recently been expanding into new
European cities (through both JV structures
and outright ownership} taking footholds
in Holland, Spain and Belgium. Safestore
has a best in class aperating platform
which, along with peer Big Yellow, allows
it to dominate the UK storage market,
particularly in terms of online search.

The comnpany has driven consistent
earnings growth both organically (through
like-for-like occupancy and rate growth,
opening new developments) and through
acquisitions, a trend we expect to
continue over the medium term; the self-
storage market has proved remarkabiy
resilient during the COVID-19 pandemic.
The five-year total shareholder return has
been 172%.

PSP Swiss Property is one of Switzerland's
leading real estate companies owning
properties valued at around CHF8.6bn.
These are mainly office and business
premises in prime lacations in
Switzerland's key economic centers.
Zurich represents 51% of the company's
exposure {Geneva at 14%). Vacancy rate
has consistently trended downward from
a level at 8.5% in 2018 to an historic

low of 3.0% at FY20. The company
reported selid results in 2020 with EPS
(excl revaluation) stable and NAV per
share growing by 3%. The company will
benefit from & development pipeline
adding EUR34m of rents (11% of current)
in the next three years. The pipeline is
mostly exposed to Zurich {85% of total
investment) and has a current pre-let
ratio of 77%. The financial profile of the
company is very conservative with an LTV
of 35%, average cost of debt of 0.47% and
a loan maturity of 5.5 years. The five-year
total shareholder return has been 48%.

> [he percentage of nvestment portfolio posit-ons set au! above include exposures threugh CHD for bath the individual pasit ans and the poittalio
>The Irvestment Portfclio by Country post ars sef oul or page “8 are (e phys cal Folcings only ncluded in the nvestiments heic at fair va Le # the B2 ance Sheet The
profit or loss positiens on the CHD confiacts (e not the nvestment exposLie) e d-5G shawn on pege 18 and are nicudec In the 3aidnce Sheet as cebtors or crec tory

n the Lurrent assets

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 21



22

Twelve Largest Equity Investments

Q\‘.} AROUNDTOWN -

10. ARODUNDTOWN (GERMANY)

31 March TR Elie ]
— o plog] 2020
Shareholding value £39.3m (£20.3m)
% of investment
portfoliot 2.5% (1.7%)
% of equity awned 0.5% {0.3%)

Share price €6.07 (€4.55)
Aroundtown is a diversified German-
based property company that owns a
EUR24.5bn porttolio. It has a diversified
commercial portfalio with expesure to
Office {60% of the commercial portfolia),
Hotels {28%}, Retail (3%} and Logistics
(3%). The majority of its exposure is

in Germany and the Netherlands (86%
together). The company is also exposed
to German Residential (14% of total GAY)
through its 39% holding in Grand City. The
portfolio has grown significantly since
Aroundtown was fisted in 2075, through a
series of deals, in particular, the takeover
compieted in early 2020 of listed German
peer TLG Immobilien. Mr Yakir Gabay
{advisory board deputy Chairman) whe
founded the company, stif! owns a 10%
stake in the company via its vehicle Avisco
Group {(down from 27% pre TLG deal). In
2020, the company closed EUR2.3bn of
disposals at a +3% margin to book value.
This year, the company will continue to
streamline the porttolio with a disposal
pipefine of EURS00m while buying

back shares for a maximum amount of
EURS00m. The five-year total sharehalder
return has been 58%.
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VEB Vermogen AG

11. VIB VERMOEGEN (GERMANY)

31 March
2020

Shareholding value £383.0m (£22.9m}
% of investment o

. 5% k
portfoliof 2.5% (1.9%]
% of equity owned 5.5% (4.1%)
Share price €29.25 (€_22.80)

VI8 is a German company develeping,
buying and holding commercial
properties, primasily in the high-growth
regions of Southern Germany. The
company pursues a develop of buy

and hold strategy aiming at growing

its earning base while maintaining a

sofid financiaf structure. The real estate
portiolio (EUR1.4bn) includes lagistics and
light industrial properties (70% of total
rents), garden centers and DIY stores
{11%), grocery and discounters (7.5%). The
company benefits from 3 higher yielding
portfolio than peers at 6.8% implying

a superior EPS yield and more potential
for yield comptession and therefore NAV
growth in a mid to long-term horizon. The
vacancy rate has averaged 1.26% over the
last five years. Between 2016 and 2020,
FFO per share increased by 41%, NAV pe:
share increased by 42% and DPS increased
by 35%. tn 2020, the company maintained
a sofid momentum with EPS growing by
+3% and NAV per share growing by 9%.
The five-year total shasehelder return has
been 93%.

DERWENT
LONDON

12. DERWENT LONDON {UK)

31 March
-]

Shareholding value  £37.6m (Nil)
% of investment

portfalio’ 2a% (%)
% of equity owned 1.0% (0%)
Share price  3223p  (3270p)

Derwent London is a tondon Office

owner and developey, with a £5.4bn
pertfolio covering ¢.5.5m sq ft, focused
primarily in the West £nd and “tech beit”
{0'd Street, Clerkenwell etc.) areas of
Londan. 2020 has been a difficult year

for office landlords following the impact
of COVID-19, which bath brought the
transaction market ang occupier market
to a halt, and left ongoing uncertainty
ove/ future office use as the necessity and
popularity of working from home grew.
we believe the role of the affice remains
important however, and think that
Derwent London is the best placed London
office landlord to weather the COVID-15
storm given a) its very defensive balance
sheet (LTV 18%), b} the ongoing spread
between prime office yields in London
and other European cities (¢.100bp), which
we believe will support valuations even
as ERVs soften and <) the company’s high
quality development capabilities which
continue to create value as schemes like
Soha Place, The Featherstone Building and
19-35 Baker Street complete. The five-year
total shareholder return has been 18%.
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Investment Properties
as at 31 March 2021

Spread of Direct Portfolio by Capital Valve (")

as at 31 Maich 202

west End of Lendon
Inner London®
South West

Tatal

“Inner London defined as inside the Narth and South Circular,

Lease Lengths within the Direct Property Portfolio

as at 31 March 2021

Retail Industrial
42 9% -
1.6% 31.2%
- 9.2%
44.5% 40.4%

Contracted Rent
as at 31 March

Gross rental income

0 to 5 years

5 to 10 years
10 to 15 years
15 to 20 years
20+ years

VALUE IN EXCESS OF £70 MILLION

Ferrier Street Industrial Estate,
Wandsworth, London SW18

The Colonnades, Bishops Bridge
Road, London W2

Sector

724% Yéar 1
17% Years 2-5
53% Yeals 5+

0%
6%

Sector

Residential
and
Ground Rents
14.5%
- - 312.8%
) - - 9.2%
14.5% 0.6% 100.0%
~ £3,000,000
£10,000,000
~ £15,000,000

VALUE LESS THAN £10 MILLION

16 Centre, Gloucester Business
Park, Gloucester GL3

B

Sector

Mixed Use industrial Industrial
Tenure Freehold ST T ?e;u;e Freehold Tenure vFreehoId B -
Size (sq ft) 64,000 Size (sq ft} 36,000 o Size (sq ft} 63,000
Principal  Waitrose Ltd, Graham & Green, Principal Koﬁ&éﬁbo! Hire Ltd Principal  Infusion GB B -
tenants Happy Lamb Hot Pot, tenants Page Lacquer tenants

1Rebel, Specsavers

tockdown Baker

The property comprises a large mixed-
use black in Bayswater, constructed
in the mid-1970s. The site extends to
approximately 2 acres on the north
east corner of the junction of Bishops
Bridge Road and Porchester Road,
close to Bayswater tube station and
the Whiteleys Shopping Centse. The
commercial element was extended
and refurbished in 2015 with a new
20 year lease being agreed with
Waitrose.

Site of just over an acre, 50

metres from Wandsworth Town
railway station in an area that is
predominantly residential. The estate
comprises 16 small industrial units
generally let to a mix of small to
medium-sized private companies.
Planning permission granted in
December 2019 for a mixed-use
employment led redevelopment.

The 10 Centre comprises six industria
units occupied by two tenants and sits
on a 4.5-acre site. Gloucester Business
Park is located to the east of Junction
11A of the M5 and one mile to the
east of Gloucester City Centre. The
property also has easy access to the
A417 providing good links to the M4
via junction 15.
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Investment Objective and Benchmark

The Company’s Objective is to maximise shareholders’ total return
by investing in the shares and securities of property companies
and property related businesses internationally and also in
investment property located in the UK.

The benchmark is the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed turope
Capped Net Total Return tndex in sterfing. The index, catculated
by FTSE, is free-float based and as at 31 March 2021 had 105
constituent companies. The index limits exposure to any one
cornpany to 10% and reweights the other constituents pro-rata.
The benchmark website www.epra.com contains further detatls
about the index and performance.

Business Model

The Company’s business model follows that of an externally managed
investment trust.

The Company has no employees. ils wholly non-executive 8oard of Directors
retains responsibility for corporate strategy; corporate governance; fisk and
control assessment; the overall investment and dividend policies; setting limits
on gearing and asset allocation and manitoring investment performance.

The Board has appointed BMO Investment Rusiness Limited as the Alternative
investment Fund Manager (“AIFM") with portfolic management delegated to
Thames River Capital LLP. Marcus Phayre-Mudge acts as Fund Manager to the
Company on behalf of Thames River Capital tLP and Alban Lhonneur is Deputy
fund Manager. George Gay is the Direct Property Manager and Joanne Elliott the
Finance Manager. They are supported by a team of equity and portfolio analysts.

Further information in relation to the 8oard and the arrangements under the
investment Management Agreement can be found in the Report of the Directors
on pages 4110 43.

In accordance with the Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive
(“AIFMD"), 8NP Paribas has been appointed as Depositary to the Company.
BNP Paribas also provide custodial and administration services to the Cormpany.
Company secretarial services are provided by Link Company Matiers.

The specific terms of the investment Management Agreement are set out on
pages 53 and 54.

F
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Strategy and Investment Policies
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Key Performance Indicators

The Board assesses the performance of the Managerin meeting the Trust's objective against
the tollowing Key Performiance Indicators ("KPIS )

KPL
Net Asset Value Total Return relative to the benchmark

The Directors regard the owt-performance of the
Company’s net asset value tolal return in performance
In companson with the benchmark as oeing an overall
measure of value delivered to the shareholders over the
longer-term

Board monitoring and outtome

The Board reviews the perfarmance in detail at each
meeting and discusses the results and outiook with the
Manager.

Oufcome
1year 5years

NAY Total Return ™ (Annualised) 20.7% 77%

Benchmark Total Return (Annualised) 159%  4.3%

" NAY Total Retuin s calculated by re-rvesting the dividengs in the assets ard
the Company frerr the relevant ex div dend date Dwdercs are deemes ta be
re- nvested on the ex-dividencs dete lor the benckmark

Delivering a reliable dividend which is growing over the longer term

The principal ob,ective of the Company 15 3 total return
abjective, however, the tund Managel alse aims to
deliver a reliable dividend with growth over the longe
term

The Board reviews statements on income received to date
and income forecasts at each meeting

Outcome
1year 5years
Compouna Annual Dividend Growth 14%  11.2%
Compound Annual RPI 15%  26%

“1he fing diagend Ir the 1me senes diviced by the mitd dracend ir the
per ot rased 1o the power of * dvicec by the ruinber of years 'n the senes

The Discount or Premium at which the Company’s shares trade compared with Net Asset Value

Whist expectation of investment performance 15 @ key
driver of the share price discount of premium to the fet
Asse! Value of aninvestment trast aver the longer-term,
there are periods when the discount ¢an widen The
Board 13 aware of the vuinerabiity of a sector-specialist
irust to a change of irvesto: sentiment towards that
secior. o 1o penods aof wider markel uncertainy. and the
impeact that can have or the ciscount

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

The Board takes powers al each AGM to buy-back and
15506 shares Wher considening the ments of share Buy-
back ar issuance, the Board looxs at a aumber of factors i
addition to the short and longer-term discount or premidm
to NAY 10 assess whether action would pe beneficial to
sharehoide-s overall Particuiar attention 1s paid o the
curient market sentimers, the potental impact af any
shae buy-aack activity on tne hqudity of the shares and
ar Ongoing {harges over the longei teim

Outcome
1year 5years
Average discount 102%  63%
Tozal number of shares ~epu-chased Nil 150,000

" Average da y dscount throeghelt the pencd of share price to
NAY with inccme Source B comberg



KPI
Level of Ongoing Charges

The Board 1s conscious of expenses anc arns Lo deliver a
balance between excellent service and cosls.

The AIC defiriian of Ongaing Charges includes any direct
property costs in addiion to the management fees angd
all other expenses incurred in runming a publicly hsted
company. As no other investment trusts hold part of ther
portfelio in direct propesty {they either hold 100% of ther
portfoilo as property secunties or 8s diect property), in
addition to Ongoing Charges as defined by the AIC, this
statistic 1s shown without direct property costs Lo allow

a clearer companison of overall admimistraticn costs with
ather funds investing in securities

The Board monitors the Ongamg Charges, In comparisan
to a range of other Investment Trusts of simular size, both
property sector specialists and other sector specialists.

8oard monitoring and outcome

kxpenses are budgeted for each financial year and the
Board reviews reqular reports on actual and forecast
expenses lhroughout the year

i
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Outcome
5 years

1year

Ongowng charges excluding

0.65%
performance fees ¢

0.65%
Ongoing charges excluding performance

63%
fees and Direct Property Costs 063%

0.62%
The ongoing charges are competitive when compared to
the peer group.

Investment Trust Status

The Company must continue to operate in arder to meet
the requirements for Section 1158 af the Corporation Tax
Acl 2010

The Board reviews financial information and forecasts at
each meeting which set out the requirements outlined in
Section 1158

The Directors believe that the canditions and ongeing
requirements have been met in respect of the year to
31 March 2021 and that the Company will continue to
meet the requirements,

The KPIs are cansidered to be Alternative Performance Measures as defined later in the Annual Report.
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Principal and Emerging Risks and Uncertainties

In defivering long-term returns ta shareholders, the Board must also identify and monitor the risks that have been taken
in order to achieve that return The Board has included below details of the prinaipal and emerging nisks and uncertainbies
facing the Company and the appropnate measures taken in order to muligate these nsks as far as practicable

The Boaid also cansiders rew and ermerqing r1sks adding appropriate momlenng and mitigation measures accordingly.

The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, the response of iinancial markets, the unknown durahoen of the pandemic and
ongoing impact on ecenomies around the world together with operational changes in response @ government guidelines
cenunues to incease seme of the nisks listed below in comparisan with prior years.

Risk identified Board monitoring and mitigation

Share price performs poorly in comparison to the underfying NAV

The shares of the Company are listed on the London + The Board monitors the level of discount or premiuim at
Stock Exchange and the share price 1s determined by which the shares are trading over the short and langer-
supply and demand The shares may trade at a discount term.

or premium to the Company's underbying NAY and this

discount or premium may flucluate over tme The Board encourages engagement with the shareholders

The Board 1ecelves reports at each imeeling on the acvity
of the Company’s hiokers, PR agent and meetings and
events allended by the Fund Manager

The Company's shares are gvailabie through the BMO
share schemes and the Company paitiopates in the active
marketing of these schemes The shares are also widely
available on open architecture platiorms and can He held
directly through the Company's reqistrai

The Board takes the powers o buy-hack and to1ssue
shares at each AGM

Pooi investment performance of the portfolio relative to the benchmark

The Company's cartfelio is acuvely managed Inaddiion - The sanagers oblective 15 Lo oulperform the benchmark
to investment secunties the Company also invests in The Board regularly reviewys the Company’s long-lerm
commercial property and accordingly, the portfolio may strategy and invesiment guidelires and the Manager’s
not Tollow or outperform tne ietumn of (he benchmark efative positions against these

The thanagzment Ergagemeant Commities reviews the
Manager's performance arnually The Board has the
powers 1o change the Manager If deemed agpropnate
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Risk Identified Board monitaring and mitigation

Market risk

B3oth share prices and exchange rates may rmove rapidly
and adversely impact the value of the Company’s
portfolio

Although the portfolio 1s diversified across a number of
geographical regions, the investment mandate 15 locused
on a single sector and therefore the portinlin will be
sensitive towards the property sector. as well as globat
equity markets more generally

Property companies are subject to many factors which
can adversely affect therr investment performance, these
include the general economic and financial envircnment
in which their tenants operate, mlerest rates, availability
of investment and development finance and regulaticns
issued by governments and authonties

Although we have now exited the furopean Union the
structure of our future relationship with Continental
Furope 1s stll evolving and there could be animpact on
crcupalion across each sector

The COVID-19 global pandernic dominated the financial
year This has changed the way we live and waolk,
creating unprecedented uncertainty regarding the impact
on economies and property markets around the world
both in the short and longer term

Any strengthening or weakening of Sterling will have

a direct impact as a propertion of our Balance Sheet s
heid 10 non-GBP denominated currences. The currency
exposure 1s maintained in ine with the benchmark and
will change aver ime. As at 31 March 2021, 72 1% of the
Trust's exposure hies Lo currencies other than GBP

The Board recerves and considers a regular report from
the Manager detailing asset allocation, investment
decisions, cutiency exposures, geaning levels and rationale
In relation to the prevailing market conditions

The report considers the polential impact of Brexit and Lhe
Manager's response N posiioning the portfolio

The report considers the current and potential future
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and the ongoing
implication for the property market and valuations overall
and by each sector.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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principal Risks and Uncertainties :ontinued

Risk tdentified Board monitoring and mitigation

The Company is unable to maintain dividend growth

Lower earnings Iin the underlying portfolio putting
pressure on the Company's ability Lo grow the dividend
could result from a number of factors

lower earnings and distributions in investee
companies. Companies in some property sectars
continue to be negatively 1mpacted by the COVID-19
pandemic Campanies in some seciors cancelled of
reduced dividends duning the last firangal year as a
precautionary measure to protect therr balance sheets
in the short term. Although most have returned to
paying divicends, some are at a lower level than
previously and others are continumng to withnold
dividends,

+ prolonged vacancies i the direct property porticho
and lease or rental renegotialions as a resuit of
(OVID-19,

strengthening Sterling reducing the va'ue of overseas
dividend receipts in Sterling terms The Company

fas seen g matenat increase n the level of earnings
i recent years A sigrificant factor in this was the
weakening of Sterhng follawing the Brexit decision
sterling strengthened in the last quarter of the
hnanaiai year TH1s May CconUnUe oF reverse agam

IN the near or medium term as the longer lerm
implications of Brext and the COVID-19 pandemic and
the impact or the UK and European economies are
understocod Strengthemng of Stering would lead to a
‘all i edinings,

adverse changes in the tax treatment of dividends or
olrer income recetved by the Corpary, and

changes in the timing of dividend receipts from
TLESieR COMpanies

The Board receives and considers reqular income
lorecasts

ncome forecast sensitivity to changes N FX rates 1s also
manitoied

The Company has substanhal revenue reserves which can
be diawn upon when required

The Board will continue to monitor the iImpact of COVID-19
and Lhe long term imphications for income generation,
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Risk Identified

Accounting and operational risks

Distuption or failure of systems and processes
underpinning the services provided by third parties and
the nisk that these supplers provide a sub-standard
service

The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and the
operationai response from the manager and service
providers has been closely monitored

Board monitoring and mitigation

Third party service providers produce penodic reporis Lo
lhe Board on their contral emvaronments and business
continualion provisions on a reqular basis
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The Management Fngagement Commitiee cansiders the
perfarmance of each af the service providers on g regular
basis and considers their ongoing appontment and lerms
and conditions

The Custodian and Deposttory are responsible for the
salequarding of assets. in the event of a loss of assets
the Depository must return assels of an identical type
or cofresponding amount unless able to demonstrate
that the loss was Lhe resull of an event beyond thenr
reasonable control

Monitoring the quality and timeliness of service as
service providers respond to COVID-19 regulations and
guidelines, 1n particular with widespread home working
and consideration of the durability of the arrangements.
Many arganisations are now planning to mcorperate
home working into therr operational structure as a
permanent feature

Financial risks

The Company’s iInvestment achiviues expose 1L Lo a
variety of finanaal risks which include counterparty
credit nsk, hquidity risk and the valuation of financial
instruments Any impact of the COVID-19 pandemic has
been considered

Details of these risks together with the palices for
managing these risks are found in the Noles 1o the
Financal Statements in the full Annual Reports and
Accounts

Loss of Investment Trust Status

The Company has been accepted by HWM Revenue &
Customs as an investment trust, subject to continuing
to meet the relevant elgibilty conditions As such the
Company 1s exempt fram capital gains tax an the profits
realised from the sale of Investments

Any breach of the relevant eligibility conditions could
lead 1o Lthe Company osing invesiment Lrust status and
being subject (o corporation tax on capital gains realised
withir the Company’s portloho

The Investment Manager monitors the mvestiment
sortfoho, incorme and propesed dividend levels o ensure
that the provisions of CTA 2010 are not bieached. The
resulls are reported to the Board at each meeling.

The income forecasts are reviewed by the Company’s lax
advisor through the year who also reparts to the Board
on the year-end tax position and reports on CTA 2010
comphance.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties continuid

Risk |dentified Board monitoring and mitigation

Legal, regulatory and reporting risks

Farlure ta comply with the London Slock Exchange
Listing Rules and Disclosure Guidance and Transparency
rufes; faillure to meel the requirements under the
Alternative Investment Funds Direclive, the provisions
of the Companies Act 2006 and other UK, European
and gverseas legislation affecting UK companies
Falure to meel the required accounting standards or
make appropnate disclosures in the Intenm and Annual
Reports

The Board receives reqular requlatory updates from
the Manager. Company Secrelary, legal advisors and
the Auditors. The Board considers these reports and
recommmendations and lakes action accordingly

The Board recerves an annual report and update from the
Depository

Internal checklists and review procedures are 1n place at
service praviders

Inappropriate use of gearing

Gearing, either through the use of bank debt or through
Ihe use of denvatives may be utilised from time 1o time
Whilsl ine use of geanng s intended ta enhance the NAV
total retoemn, 1t will have the opposite effect when the
return of the Company's investment portlolio 1s regative
ar where the cost of debt 1s higher than the return from
the portfoho

The Board recelves reqular reports from the Manager on
the levels of geanng in the partfoho These are considered
against the gedanng limits set in the Investment Guidehnes
and also it the context of current market condibions and
sentiment The cost of debt s monitored and a balance
sought between term, cost and flexibility

Personne! changes at Investment Manager

Loss of portfolio manager o1 other key staff

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

The Chairman conducts reqular meetings with the Fand
Management tearm

The fee basis protects the core inlrastructure and depth
and quality resources The fee structure incentivises
outperformance and i fundamenial in the 2bility to retam
key staff



Viability Statement

tn accerdance waith provision 31 of the UK Corporate
Governance Code, which requires the Company 1o assess
the prospects of the Company over the longer term, the
Direclors have assessed Lhe prospects of the Company
over the coming five yeairs This penod 1s used by the
Goard dunng the strategic planning process and the Board
consider this penod of ime approprate for a business of
our nature and size

This assessment takes account of the Company's current
positian and the policies and processes for managing the
principal and emerging nisks set out on pages 28 to 32 and
the Company’s ability to conlinue in cperation and meet 1ts
habilities as Lhey fall due aver the penod of assessment.

In making this statemenl the Board carried out a robust
assessment of the principal and emerging nisks lacing the
Company, including those that mught thiealen its tusiness
mode!, futute performance, solvency and hquidily

In reaching their conclusions the Directors have reviewed
flve-year forecasts for the Company werth sensitivity
analysis to a number of assumptions, Investee campany
dividend growth, interest rate, forekgn exchange rate, tax
rate and asset value growth

In the assessment of the viability of the Company
the Directors have noted that:

The Company has a long-lerm investmenl stralegy
under which it invests mainly 1n readily reahsable,
publicly hsted secunties and which 1estricts the level of
barrowings.

Of the current portfolio, 50% could be liquidated wathin
flive trading days and 69% within 10 tradig days

On a Group basis, Current assels exceed current
rabiities gt the Balance Sheet Date.

The Company invests in real estate related companies
which hoid real estate assets, and invests in commercidl
real estate directly These investments provide cash
receipts 1n the form of dividends and rental incame.

The Company 1s able to take advantage of its closed-
ended nvestment Trust stiucture and able to hold &
proportion of 1ts portfalio in less hquid direct property
with a view to long-term cutperformance
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Al the Balance Sheet Date the Company had
£35 milhion undrawn on its revalving loan faalities.

The stiuctuie has also enabled the Company to
secure long-term finanaing EUR 50 mulhon foan notes
tssied 1N 2016 are due to matuie at par in 2026 and
GBP15 million loan notes 1ssued on the same date are
due to mature at par 1n 2037

The impact of COVID-19 on the UK and European
commercial properly markets remains a consideration
This 1esulted m a reduction in dividend receipts from
investee companies in the year to 31 March 2027 with
some companies withholding or reducing dividends
The majonty ol compames have returned (o paying
dividends, although some at lower levels than befare
the pandemic. As a result an improvement i1 Income
15 anticipated 1 the forthcoming year The longer
term impact on some sectors 15 sl dificult ta assess,
howevet the company has low exposure to these
seclors

The direct property portfolio has been well positioned
in respect of the COVID-'3 cnsis and rental collection to
date has been robust. We have very limited expasure
to retail and seme smaller occupiers m the hospitahily
sector, however, averail the expected diop m income
from the direct portfeho in 2020/271 was nol material
and hkewise 1s nol expected to be in the forthcoming
year

The expenses ol the Company are predictable and
madest in companson with the assets. Reqular and
robusl momitonng of revenue and expenditure forecasts
are undertaken throughout the year The Company
could suffer a reduction in earnings of 95% and sull be
ab'e to meet1ts habilities as they feli due
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Viability Statement < onttiued

The Company has no employees and corsequently
does not have redundancy or other employment
related habilites or responsibilities.

The Company retains title to 11s assets held by Lthe
Custadian which are subject to further safequards
tmposed on the Depositary

The impact of Brexil and COVID-19 have been
considered in terms of the polentiat effect an Stering
72% of the portfolio s exposed to curencies other than
Sterting

The following assumptions have been made in
assessing the [onger-term viability:

Real Estale wili continue 1o be an investable seclor of
international stock markets and invesiors will conbinue
10 wish to have exposure to that seclor

Clased-ended Investment Trusts wil continue Lo be
wanted Dy investors and requlation of tax legislation
will not change to 4n extent to make the structwe
Jnattiactive in comparnser to other nvestment
produgis.

Tre performance of the Company will continue to be
satisfactary Should the performance be less tnan the
Board deems Lo de satisfactory, il has the appropnate
powers Lo 1eplace 1he Invesiment fanages

The Board has concluded that the Company will be
able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities
as they fall due over the coming five years. The
Company’s business model, capital structure and
strateqy have epabled the Company to operate
over many decades, and the Board expects this to
continue into the future.
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Corporate Responsibility

Approach

Environmental, Soaal and Governance (“FSG”) [actors

can present bolh opperlunities and threats to the
pefformance we aim Lo deliver to aur shareholders The
Board 15 therefore committed to taking a responsible
approach on ESG matters This covers the Company's own
responsibilities on governance and reporting and, the mest
matenal way in which the Company can have an impact,
through responsible ownership of the investments that are
made an its behalf by its Manager

As a long-term nvestor, governance and sustamabiity
consideranions have always been embedded in our
Manager's Investmenl Process ESG risk assessments
and considerations are mtegrated into the detalled
fundamental investment research and analysis thal takes
place on any potential Investment befare 1t 1S considered
for inclusion in the portfolio and continues on an ongoing
basis far all investments held

This approach 1s m line with the definition of an Artide
6 fund under the EU's Sustainable Finance Disclosure
Reqgulations. Whilst this is currently European not UK
regulation it 1s nonetheless a widely utihsed defimtion

There are two iundamental considerations to mvestiment
In property companies the assets themselves and the
management The Manager seeks to invesl in sustamable
assets which aie managed by quality leams in a well
governed corporate slructure. As a resull, there has

been a long-standing and strong culture of stewardship

In the Marages's investment approach The Manager
believes that engaqing with companies 15 best in the

first instance, rather than simply divesting o1 excluding
investment oppartunities. However, there are nslances
where governance matters have dniven a decsion not 1o
invest 1n a company As one of the largest teams investing
in Pan-European real estate equities, our Manager meets
with a significant number of the management teams of
investee and potential Investee companies each year and
has a robust recerd of engagement wath an agenda of
reduaing nsk, improving performance and encouraging
best practice. Whilst likely an elevated number reflecting
the impact of Cowid, over the course of the year, our
management team participated 1in 380 individeal or group
meeknags wath companies and their management teams

Carporate Governance disclosure requirements have
ncreased transparency enoimously In recent years
and enabled informed engagement, with social and

employment practices also gamning increased focus and
disclosure Environmental measures are now rapidly
coming to the fore and wath wider disclosure requirements
being placed upon our investee compantes, as a resull the
Manager 1s able Lo scrutinise more easily other measures
such as chmale change and sustainabilily policies and
ouicomes
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Company Corporate Governance and Reporting

The Board also recognises the tmpartance cf the
Company's own Governance and disclosures The
Company’s comphance with the revised AlC Code of
Corporale Governance 1s detalled in the Carporate
Governance Slatement on page 44 of this Annual Reporl

Under Section 414 ol the Companies Act 2006 there 15 the
requiement to detall Information aboul employee and
human aghts, including information about any palicies

it has i 1elabien to these matters and effectiveness

of these policies As the Trust has no employees, this
requirement daes nat apply The Company 15 not within
the scope of the UK Modern Slavery Acl 2015 because 1t
has nat exceeded the tuinover threshold and 1s therefore
not obliged to make a slavery and human tiafficking
staternent. The Directars are satislied that, to the best of
their knowledge, the Company's principal supphers, which
are listed on page 108, comply wath the prowsions of the
UK Modern Slavery Act 2015

The Board currently comprises three male Directors and
two fernale Directars The activities of the Nomination
Commitlee in relation to the board changes are referred
lo-in the Nomimation Committee Report on pages 51 and
52 The Board's diversity policy 1s cuthned sn more detall
in the Corporate Governance Report The Manager nas an
equal opportunity policy whichs set gut on 1ts website
www bmo.com

Governance of Investee Companies and Exercise of
Voting Power

The Board has appraved a corporate governance voting
polcy which, inits opimion, accords with current best
practice whilst maintaining a pnmary focus on financiai
returns

Ihe exerase of vating rights attached to the portfolio
has been delegated to the Manager Where practicabie,
all shareholdings were voted at 3%t company meetings
in the finanaal year in accordance with BMOGAM'S
own corporate goveraance polices This ensures that

a strong, consislent approach 1s taken to proxy voting
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As can be seenin the chart above, the fund’s poitfolo
welghled carbon intensity was broadly in ne wath that of
the benchmark, whilst sigmficantly lower than the widey

global equity index  This reflects the fact that for property,

this 15 largely measuning the imgact ¢f ongoing emissions
from running a bullding whereas he wider index includes
operating campanies with manufactuning capabihites and
the need Lo distnbute goods worldwide

For the properly sector, the fotus s currently on the
energy efficiency of buildings once they are occupied,
but we expect i ime more atienticn will be paid to
the carbon emitted 1N getting them built and eventually
dismantled which accounts for a farge proportion of a
bullding’s emissiens aver 1ts lifespan

The message 1s that this 1s still an area where 1t 15 difficult
to make fully informed decisions. The assessments from
the vanious data providers reach different conclusions

as they do nat all score 1n a consistent way. We expect
this to impove and change but it will be a journey Our
Manager 1s dedicating a lot of 1esource to the analysis

of the information available and also has the benefit

ol the knowledge of BMOs award winning Responsible
tvestment Team As data caverage IMproves, aur
fManager will 0 turn be able o engage with our investee
compdnies on environmental matters and report to our
shateholders in more depth.

Direct Property Portfolio

The Management team recognises the impartance of
sustaimability 1in our business and in the direct property
assets which we invest in, hald and manage on behalf of
our investors  Property impacts upon Lthe environment,
the health and wellbeing of occupiers, and the
communilies 1n which they are situated  Specilic issues
relevant Lo physical property investment portfolio include,
for example, responsible and sustamable refuibishment
practices, eflficient use of resouices throughout their
aperation. and design and services to suppoit the health
and wellbeing of occupiers and local comimusities

Environmental Audits are conducied on all our buildings
prior to purchase The Company will take remedial

action or enforce tenant cbligations to do so wherever
apprepriate 10 manaqing Environmental, Socal and
Governance issues across the diect portfolio - our
Manager engages with occupiers, external managers and
supphers  As a tesponsible steward of the Company’s
assels, our Managers commitlied to improving
sustamabilty charactenstics through interventions that are
carefully planned and executed
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Our Manager has strong, direct relationships with
occupiers and s committed to working with them to
develop the data, measurement tools and resources to
sel and achieve meaningful sustainability targets for the
assetsn the portfolio  As part of this, and working with
the portfoho property managers. a Sustainability Roadman
15 being iImplemented which targets biodiversity net gan
across the portfolio by 2025, iImproving energy, water and
wasle efficiency, transitioning to 100% renewable energy
and reducing greenhouse gas ermissions In hne with
chmale science.

By order of the Boaid

David Watson
Chairman

3 June 2027
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DAVID WATSON

KATE BOLSOVER

SARAH-JANE CURTIS

Chairman Non-Executive Director Non-Executive Director
Appointed: Appointed: Appointed:

April 2012 October 2019 January 2020
Experience; Experience: Experience:

David became Chairman faltowing
the retirement of Hugh Seaborn on
28 July 2020. Since 30 September
2018 David had served as the Board's
Senier Independent Director when he
simultaneously handed Chairmanship
of the Audit Committee to Tim, a
position he was appointed fo on 1
January 2013. He spent 9 years as
Finance Director of M&G Group ple,
where he was a director of four
equity investment trusts, and more
recently at Aviva plc as Chief finance
Officer of Aviva General Insurance.
He is a Chartered Accountant and

has had a distinguished career in the
Financial Services Industry.

Skills and Contribution to the Board:

Throughout his executive career, David
has accumulated relevant skills in
finance, audit and risk management
and experience in the investment
industry. His experience as SID and
Chair in a number of boards have built

Kate previously worked for Cazenove
Group and J.P Morgan Cazenove
between 1995 and 2005 where she
was Managing Director of the mutual
fund business, and latterly director of
Corporate Communications. Prior to
this, she worked extensively in the
investment fund industry and was
managing Director of Baring’s mutual
tund group. Kate was also previously
a non-executive director of JPMorgan
American Investment Trust pic until
2016, Senior Independent Director of
Montanare UK Smaller Companies
Trust until 2019 and Chairman and
Trustee of Tomorrow's People until
2017

Skills and Contribution to the Board:
From her executive experience, Kate
contributes significant and relevant
skills of the investment industry to
the Trust. Kate’s role in various boards
also gives her the relevant experience
in investor and shareholder

Sarah-Jane is a Member of the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors.
Sarab-Jane was previously Business
Director at Bicester Village for Value
Retail. Before this, Sarah-Jane was
Director, Covent Garden for Capital
and Counties PLC. She has also
worked for Grosvenor for 24 years
including as London Estate Birector
{retail/Residential) and Fund Manager
for Liverpool ONE.

Skills and Contribution to the Board:
Sarah-jane has gained extensive
experience during her varied

career, particularly in the retail, and
experience sectors and for Fund and
Investment management activities.

significant experience in shareholder engagement.
and investor engagement.
Other Appointments: Other Appointments: Other Appointments:

David is currently Chairman of
Aegon Asset Management UK plc
and he is a Director and Chairs the
Audit Committee at the Prudential
Assurance Company.
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Kate is currently Chairman of

Fidelity Asian values PLC and Senior
Independent Director of Invesca Bond
Income Plus Limited. She is also a
non-executive Director of Baillie
Gifford & Co Ltd.

sarah-Jane is currently Property
Director of Bicester Moticn as well as
a consultant to Value Retail PLC.



/

A

SIMON MARRISON
Senior Independent Director

r A

TIM GILLBANKS
Chairman of the Audit Committee

Appointed:

September 2011

Experience:

simon joined the Board of the
Company on 28 September 2011 and
became Senior Independent Director
on 28th July 2020. He has over 30
years’ experience in the European
property investment industry. He is
currently senior advisor for European
Real Estate at KKR (Kohlberg Kravis
Roberts). Pricr to this he spent 19 years
at LaSalle Investment Management
where he was European CEO for 12
years with responsibility for a portfolio
of over €20 billion across Eurcpe.
Simon has been based in Paris since
1990 having started his career in
London. Untit 1997 he was a partner
at Healey & Baker (now Cushman &
Wakefield} and from 1997 to 2001 he
was at Rodamco where he became
Country Manager for France. He joined
tasalle in 2001 as Managing Director
for Continental Europe.

Appointed:
January 2018

Experience:

Tim is a Chartered Accountant, with
30 years’ experience in the financial
services and investment industry.
Most recently he spent 13 years at
Columbia Threadneedle Investments,
initially as Chief Financial Officer, then
Chief Operating Officer and finally as
interim Chief Executive Officer.

Skills and Contribution to the Board:
Simon brings in a wealth of
experience, particularly in the
European property market. He has
gained leadership and management
skills in his executive rofes and
relevant skills in investment
management.

Other Appointments:

Senior advisor for European Real Estate
at KKR (Kohlberg Kravis Roberts)

Alt directors are independent of the manager and are members of the Audit Committee

Skilis and Contribution to the Board:
Tim brings a wide experience,
particularly in financial services

and investment management. His
previous financial experience during
his executive career informs him in
his role as the Chairman of the Audit
Committee.

70|her Appointments:

Tim is currently a Non-Executive
Director for Henderson Global
investors timited and Henderson
Group Holdings Asset Management
Limited. He is also Vice-Chair of the
Board of Trustees of Blood Cancer UK.
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MARCUS PHAYRE-MUDGE

Marcus Phayre-Mudge, Fund Manager, joined the
Management team for the Company at Henderson Global
Investors in January 1997, initially managing the Company's
direct property portfolio and iatterly focusing on real estate
equities, managing a number of UK and Pan European real
estate equity funds in addition to activities in the Trust.
Marcus moved to Thames River Capital in Qctober 2004
where he is also fund manager of Thames River Propesty
Growth & income Fund Limited. Prior to joining Henderson,
Marcus was an investment surveyor at Knight Frank

(1990) and was made an Associate Partner in the fund
management division (1995). He qualified as a Chartered
Surveyor in 1992 and has a BS¢ (Hons) in Land Management
from Reading University.

P

GEORGE GAY

JO ELLIOTT

Jo Hiiott, Finance Manager, has been Finance Manager
since 1995, first at Henderson Global Investoss then, since
January 2005, at Thames River Capital, when she joined
as CFO for the property team. She joined Henderson
Global Investors in 1995, where she most recently held
the position of Director of Property, Finance & Operations,
Europe. Previously she was Corporate Finance Manager
with tondon and Edinburgh Trust pic and prior to that was
an investment/treasury analyst with Heron Corporation
plc. Jo has a BSc (Hons) in Zoology from the University of
Nottingham and qualified as & Chartered Accountant with
Ernst & Young in 1988. Jo is a Non-Executive Director and
Audit Committee Chair of Polar Capital Global Financials
Trust plc.

ALBAN LHONNEUR

George Gay, Direct Property Fund Manager, has been the
Direct Property Fund Manager since 2008. He joined Thames
River Capital in 2005 as assistant direct property manager
and qualified as a Chartered Surveyaor in 2006. George was
previously at niche City investment agent, Morgan Pepper
where as an investment graduate he gained considerable
industry experience. He has an MA in Property Valuation and
Law from City University.

Alban thonneur, Deputy Fund Manager, joined Thames
River Capital in August 2008. He was previously at Citigroup
Global Markets as an Equity Research analyst focusing on
Continental European Real Estate. Prior to that he was at
Societe Generale Securities, where he focused on transport
equity research. He has a BSt in Business and Management
from the ESC Toulouse including one year at the Brunel
University, tondon. He also attended CERAM Nice High
Business School. in 2005 he obtained a post-graduate
Specialised Master in Finance in 2005 from ESCP-EAF.
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The Directors present the audited financial statements of
the Group and the Company and their Stralegic Repor!
and Reparl of Directors for the year ended 31 March

2021 The Group comprises TR Properly Investment Trust
ple and 11s wholly owned subsidiaries As permitted by
feqislation, some matters normalty included 1n the Report
of the Directors Nave been ncluded i tne Strateqic Report
because the Board considers them to be of stralegic
importance Therefoie, [he review of the business of the
Company, recent events and outloak can be found on
pages 4 to 35

STATUS

The Companty 1S an investment company, as defined in
Section 833 of the Campanies Act 2006 and cperates as
an investment trust in accordance with Section 1158 of the
Corporation Tax Act 2010

The Company has a single share class, Ordinary shares,
with a nominal value of 25p each which are premium
lsted on the Londen Stock Exchange

The Company has recerved confirmation from HM Revenue
& Customs that the Cempany has been accepted as

an appraved mvestment trust for accouating perods
COMMEn<INg on or after 1 April 2017 subject to the
Company cenlinuing to meet the eligibiity conditions of
Secfion 1158 Corporation Tax Acl 2010 and the ongoing
requirements for approved comaanies in Chapter 3

of Part 2 investment Trust (Approved Company) (Tax)
Requlations 2011 (Slatutory Instrument 2011/2999)

Tne Directors are of the opinion that the Company has
conducted and will continue to conduct (s affairs so as

fo mamtain investment trust status The Company has
also conducted its affars, and will continue to conduct

s afiairs. 10 such a way as to comply with the Indnadoal
Savings Accounts Regulations The Ordinary shares can be
held in Individual Savings Accounls (15As)

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

Al 31 March 2021 the net assets of the Company amounted
10 £1,326 million (2020 £1,136 million), on a per share
basis 41797p (2020 358 11p) per share.

Revenue earnings per share for the year amounted to

12 25p {2020 14.62p} and the Directors recommend the
payment of a final diyidend of 900p (2020, & 80p) per
share bringing the totai dividend for the year to 14 20p
(2019-1400p) I arrang at thewr dividend proposal, the
Board also reviewed the incame forecasts for the year 1o
March 2022

Performance detalls are sel out in the Financial Highlights
on page 2 and the outcome of what the Directors consider

lo be the Key Performance Indicators on pages 26 and 27
The Charman's Statement and the Manager’s Repor! give
full details and analysis of the results for the year

SHARE CAPITAL AND BUY-BACK ACTIVITY

AL 31 March 2021 the Company had 317,350,980
{7020 317.350,980) Ordinary shares in ssue

At the AGM in 2020 the Direclors were given power to

buy back 47.570.911 Ordinary shares Since this AGM the
Directors have not bought back any Ordinary shares al

the nominal value of 25p each under this authanty. The
outstanding authorty 15 therefore 47.570,911 shares
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Thts authonty wall exprie at the 2021 AGM The Campany
will seek to renew the power to make market purchases
of Ordinary shares at this year's AGM

Since 1 Apnl 2071 o the date of this report, the Company
has made na markel purchases for cancellation The Board
has not sel a specihic discount at which shares will be
repurchased

MANAGEMENT ARRANGEMENTS AND FEES
Detalls ol the management arrangements and fees are
set oul in the Report of the Managernent Engagement
Committee beginning on page 53 Total fees paid

to the Manager in any ane year (Management and
Performance Fees) may not exceed 4.99% of Group
Equity Shareholders’ Funds. Total fees payable foi the
year to 31 March 2021 amount ta 12% (207G 0 8%) ol
Group Equity Shareholders” Funds Included in this were
perfarmance fees earned n the year ended 31 March 2021
of £9.653.000 (2020: £2,683,000)

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND IFRS

The Group and Campany financial slatements for the year
ended 31 March 2021 have been prepared on a gaing
concern basis in accordance with International Finanrat
Reporting Standards ('FRS), which comprise standards and
interpretations approved by the Inlernational Accounting
Standards Board {IASB), together with inlerpretations

of the Inlernational Accounting Standards and Standing
Interpretations Committee approved by the International
Accounting Standards Commuttee {(IA5C) that remair i
eflect, 1o the extent that they have been adopled by the
European Union and as regards the Group and Company
financial statements, as applied In accordance with the
pravisicrs of the Campanies Act 2006

The accounting policies are set oul 1 note 1 to the
financial Statements on pages 73 o 77
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Repoit af the Biedtors

FENANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company's Finanaal Instruments comprise its
investment portfoho, cash balances, borrowings and
debtors and creditors that anse directly from its operations
such as sales and purchases awaiting settlement, profit

i loss balances on denvative instruments and accrued
inceme and expenses The finanaal fsk management
abjectives and policies ansing from its financal
instrurnents and exposure of the Company To risk are
disclosed in note 11 to the [inancial statements

GOING CONCERN

The Directors” assessment of the longer-term wiabiiity af
the Company 1s sel out on pages 33 and 34

In assessing Going Concern, the Board has made o detalled
assessment of the ability of the Company and Group 1o
meel 11s habilities as they fail due, including stress and
Iiquidity tests which considered the effects of substanual
falls in mvestment valuations, substantial reductions
n1evenue recelved and reductions in market iiquidity
inclucing the effects ard potential effects of the continued
economic iImpact caused by the Coronavirus pandemic The
Board 1s salisfied with the cperational resiience of service
providers despite COVID-19 and conlinues to momior theii
periormarce throughout the pandesic

in hght of testing carned out, the averal' levels of the
investment fiquidity held by the Company and the
significant net asse! poitfolio position. and cespite the
small net current habiity position of the Parent Company

and Group, the Directors are salished that the Company
anc the Gioup have edequate financial resouices to
conunue 10 operation for at least the next 12 mor:hs
fallowing the signing of the financial slatements and
therefore 1t 15 appropriaie 1o adopt tre ¢oing concern basis
of accounting

INTERNAL CONTROLS

T~e Board has overail resporsibility for tie Group's
sysiems of Interna’ contiols 2nd for reviewing ther
effectiveress The Portfalio Manager 1s cesponsinle {or the
day to day Irvestmant maragerent dedsions an hahalf
of I7e Gioup ACCounting and company secetenal senvices
have hoth hee~ ouisourced

Ihe irterna: carirals aim to ensure rat the assets of the
aroup ace sa‘mg larsed, prope” acounting records are
manizired, and the hnamaal infermatior used wathie

t~e bgsiness erd ‘or publication is rehiabe Control of the
risks idenutied, covenirg finandiel, ooerationai, compliance
a~d sk management, 15 embeceed in e controls of

e Group By a senes of ~egqular investmient cerformancs
anc ainm. mur siatements, inarcial ara s anatyses,
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AIFM and Partfohio Manager reports and guarterly controf
repoils Key risks have been identihied and controls put in
place o mitigate them, including those not directly the
responsibility of the AtFM or Portlolio Manager. The key
rsks are explained in more detail in the Strateqsc Report
on pages 78 lo 37

The effectiveness of each \hird party provider's internal
tontrols is assessed on 3 continuing basis by the Compliance
and Risk departments of the AiFM and Portfolio Manager,
the administrator and the Company Secretary Each
maintains 1ts ewn systern of internal controls. and the Board
and Audit Commiltee receve reqular reports from them

The control systems are designed to provide reasonable, but
nol absolute, assurance aganst matenal misstalernent or
loss and to manage, rather than eliminate, risk of failure to
achieve objectives.

As the Company hds no emplovess and its operational
functions a‘e undertaken by third parties, the Audit
Commuttee does not consider 1L necessary for the Company
to estabhish #s own internal audit funclion Instead. the
Audit Comrmuttes relies on internal control reports received
fiom its pnncipal service providers to salisly stself as to the
contrafs m place

The Board has established a process for 1dentifying,
evaluatng and managing any major nsks faced by the
Group The Board undestakes an annual review of the
Group's system of internal controls in ine with the Turnbull
guidance Business qsks have also been ana‘ysed by
the Board and recorded i a sk map that 1s reviewer
requlary Each quater the Board receives a farmal
report from each of the AIFM. Portiohio Manager. the
Administratar and the Company Secretary detailing the
steps taken to monitor the areas of nsk, including those
nat are not directly thewr respansibibity, and which repart
lhe detalls of any known internal cortio! failures

The Board elso considers the flow of info:mation and the
interactior between e third party service providers and
the controls 1n 5lace o ensure accdracy and completeness
g° e recording or assels ard Income. The Boarc receives

a reporl from the Port’olio Alanager setung out the key
cantrols 1N O,,-e\a\m

T=2 Soarc alse has direct access 1o company secretanal
advice arg sevices siovided by Lirk Comucmg,- Male:
which, ihrough its nomirated representztive, 1s
resparsiale 1or ensanng that {hEE Boar-ﬁ ang Lomwnttee
proceqgures are fodowed and that applicable reguiations
ae comphed ath

These contrams have beer 1m dlace thigugnou! the wenod
under reviev: ard up e the date of signing he accoun's




Key nisks 1dentiied by the Auditors are considered by the
Audit Commiltee le ensure robust internal controls and
montonng procedures aie n place n respect of these
risks an an ongoing basis.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING {THE "AGM ™}

The AGM will be held or 27 July 2027 at 2.30pm al Lhe Royal
Autornobile Club, 83/91 Pall Mall, London SW1Y 5HS The Notice
ol AGM 15 set out on pages 100 and 107 The full text of the
resobltions and an explanation of earh s contained in the
Motice of AGM and explanatory notes on pages 134 to 107

MATEREAL INTERESTS

There were no contracts subsisting durnng or at the end

ol the year in which a director of the Company 1s of was
matenally interested and which 1s or was signifrcant in
felation lo the Company’s business. Mo Director Nas a
contract of service with the Company Further detalls
regarding the appoiniment letters can be found on page 52.

DONATIONS
The Company made no political or chantable donations
dunng the year (2020 £nil)

LISTING RULE DISCLOSURE

The Company confirms that there are no Hems which
require disclosure under Listing Rule 98 4R in respect of
the year ended 31 March 2021

VOTINMG INTERESTS

wuphms gnd Chhganans Mrcing to shaiss

Subject to apphicable stalules and olher shareholdess” fights,
shaies may be issued with such nghts and restnctions as
the Company may by oiainary resolution deaide, or (if there
15 no such resoletion o so far as it does nol make spedific
provision) as the Board may decide, Subject to the Articles,
the Compantes Act 2006 and other shareholders nghts,
unissued shares are at the disposal of the Board

Vating

Al a general meeting of the Company, when voling 15
undertaken by way of a pall, each share affords its ownes
one vote

Rostictiuns on yehig

No member shalt be entitled 1o vole 1f he has been
served wilh a restniction notice (as defined in the Articles)
after farlure to provide the Company with information
concerning interests i those shares required to be
provided under the Comparies Acl 2006.

Dognintes far votiig Reghs
Yotes ale exercisable at the generai meeling of the Campany
In respect of which the business being voted upon s being

heard Voles may be exercised in person, by proxy. orin
relation to corporate members, by corporale representatives,

The Articles provide a deadline for submussion of proxy
farms of not less than 48 howrs (or such shorter ime
as the Board may determine) helore the meeting (not
excluding non-working days)

Transfer of Shares

Any shares in the Company may be held in uncertificated
form and, subjec! to the Arhicles, ttle to uncerlificated shares
may be transferred by means of a relevant syslem Subject
to the Articles, any member may Lransler all ar any of his
certificated shares by an instrument of tiansler in any usual
form or in any other form which the Board may appiove

Significant Yeting Rights

Al 31 March 2021, no shareholders held over 3% of voling
nghts on & discretionary basis Hawever, at 31 March 2021
the following shareholders held over 3% of the voting
nghts on 3 non-discretionary basis

Shareholder 3 :
Brewin DolphinLtd 1%
Retail Investars - UK 8.9%
Interactive Investor Share Dealing Services 7.4%
Rathbone Investment Maragement Ltd 51%
Hargreaves Lansdown Asset Management Ltd 51%
Quilter Cheviot Investment Management Ltd 3.9%
Investec Wealth & Investment Ltd 3.8%
Charles Stanley Group ple ~ 30%

* gee abowe for further inlormgton on the voting nyhts of idinary shares
Since 31 March 2021 to the dale of this report, the
Company has net been informed of any noufiable changes
with respect to Lthe Ordinary shares

Arthioes of Assacation

The Company's Articles of Assotation may only be
amended by a special resolution dl a Genelal Meeling of
the shareholders

Amendments to the Articles o Assoaation will be
proposed at the 2027 AGM and further details are set out
on page 106 to 107,

LoD aty G 2 niagnia

Full detalls are given n the Corporate Gavernance Report
on pages 44 to 50 The Corporate Governance Report forms
part af this Direclars’ Report.
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The Board of Directors 1s accountable to sharenolders for
the governance of the Company’s affairs

This stalement descnibes how the prnnaples of the 2018
edilion of UK Corporate Governance Code {"the Lode”)
15sued by the Financial Reporting Councyl {the "FRC™Y 1n
2018 have been appled to the affarrs of the Company The
Code can be viewead at www frc.org uk,

Apphicatien uf the AlC Cada’s Princpies

In applying the prinuple of the Code, the Directors

have also taken account of the 2019 Code of Corpoiale
Governance published by the AIC (the "AlC Code™), of which
the Company 15 @ member. The AIC Cade estabhishes the
framewoik of best practice speaifically foi the Boards of
myvestment trust companies. Furthermare, the AIC Code
has full endorsement of the FRC, which means that AlC
members who report agamst the AlC Code, on the whole,
meel their obligatians under the Code and the related
disclosure reguirements contained in the Listing Rules The
AlC Cade can be viewed at www theaic couk

Ihe Directors beleve that dunng the penod under reviews
they have complied with the main princples and refevant
provisions of the Code, 1nsofar as they apply (o the
Compary's business, and with the provisions of the AIC Code

Tarenl bl e
The Direclors note fal the Company did rot comply wih
the following prowsions of the Code it the year ended

31 March 2021

Pravision 9 Due Lo the nature and straclure of the
Compary the Board of non-executive disectors does not
feel 1t is appropriate to appoirt a chiel executive

Pravision 24 The Board beieves that all Directars,
including the Charmar. should sit on aki of the Board's
Committees

Provision 26 As the Company has no employees and 1.
opeiatonal funciions are undertaken by third parties, the
Audit Committee does not comsider it appropnate for the
Company 1o esiablish its owninternal audi function The
Compary s service p owiders provice assJiance of thay
effective nternal processes and contrals

Provisior 32 The Board does ot heve @ seoarate
Remuneration Com™atiee The funchions of o
rRemureration: Corrmittee are carned out by the
shanager-ent Engagement Commities
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Composition and tindepaendence of the doad

The Board currently consists of five directors, all of whom
are non-executive The Board's independence, including
that of the Chairman. has been considered and all of the
Direclors are deemed (o be independent in characler and
have no relationships or crcumstances which are hkely 10
alfect therr judgement

The Baard subscnibes to the view expressed in the AlC
Code that fong-setving Directors should not be prevented
from forming part of an independent majonty. It does not
conswder that the length of a Director’s tenure, 1n isolation,
reduces hts or her abrlity to act independently. The
Board’s policy on lenure is that continuity and expenence
add significantly to the strength of the Beard although
the Board believes in the ments of an ongoing and
pragressive refreshment of 1ts composition

Drvarsity

The Board recogrises the benefit of diversity and as of the
date of this report the Board consists of three men and
w0 women

Diversity is taken into account as part of the recruitment,
appuintment and succession planming process and

ihe Goard 15 also aware of (he developing corporate
qovernance with regard 1o ethraty of mdivdual

Duectors The Board 1s committed Lo appointing the maost
appropriate candidate. regardless of gender or other forms
of diversity ard theiefore no targets kave been sel agamst
whith 10 feport

Sawey ot tha Dyeeton

Subject to the Company's Articles of Assaaiation, the
Comparies Act 2006 and any diceciions given by specal
res0lution, the business of the Company 15 Mmanaged

by the Board who may exercise ab the powers of the
Company, whether relating to the maragement of the
business of the Caompany or 0oL In particular, the Board
may exelcse dl' the powers of the Company to boriow
matiey ard to mortgage or chage any of 1ts undertexings.
property, assels and uncalied capita ang 10 1ssue
debertures ard ather secunties and o give security far
any deb habidy or phligation of ire Lomnany 10 any third

Jary

There ae no 1acis of arrangements with thiad paries
which affect. alter or ter=irate upan 2 crange of contral
of the Company



DIRECTORS and believe that they iemain independent in characler

The Chairman s M Watson and the Senior Independent and judgement

Direclor 1s Mr Marrison Mrwatson succeeded Mr Seaborn
as Chairman when he retired fram the Board of Director
following the AGM an 28 July 2020, Mr Marfison succeeded

Directoss are not compensated by the Company for lass of
office in an event of a takeover bid.

Mr Watson as the Senior Independent Director on this BOARD COMMITTEES

dale The Direclors’ biographies, on pages 33 and 39, The Board has estabhished an Audit Commitlee, a

demonstiate the breadth of investment, commercial and Nomination Commitles and a fanagement Fngagement §

professional experience celevant o therr pesitions as Committes, which also carmnes out the functions of 3

Mirectars of the Company a Remuneralion Lommitlee. All the Directors of the _?
a

Company are non-execulive and serve an each Cammittee
aof the Board It has been the Company’s policy to

include all Diectors on all Committees This encourages
pnity, clear commumnication and prevents duplication of

Ms Bolsover, Ms Curtis, 8r Gillbanks, Mr Marnisan, discussion between the Board and the Committees

Mr watson will all 1etire at the forthcoming AGM 1n
accordance with the Code and. being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election All Directors are regarded as
being free of any conflicts of interest and no (ssues I
respec! of independence anse The Board has concluded
thal all Directors continue to make valuable centnbutions

Direclors rerement by rotation and re-election 1s subject
to the Articles of Association In accordance wath the Code,
all directors will be subject to annual re-eleclion

The roles and responsibitities of each Cammillee are set
out on the mdwidual Commuttee reports which follow Lach
Cammuitee has wrtten terms of reference which clearly
define 1its responsibiities and duties These can be found
on the Company's website, are available on request and
will also be availlable for inspection at the AGM.

BOARD MEETINGS

The number of meetings of the Board ang Committees held duiing the vear under review, and the atiendance of
individuat Directors, are shown below:

l;avid Watson 6 6

Tim Gillbanks 6 6 2 2 1 1 1 1
Simon Marrison 6 6 2 2 1 1 1 1
Kate Bolsover 6 6 2 2 1 1 1 1
Sarah-Jane Curtis 6 6 2 2 1 1 1 1

In addition 1o farmal Board and Comimittee meetings, the Gireciors also attend a number of informal meetings o
represent the nterests of the Company, and to discuss operational markets and succession planning

THE BOARD

The Board 1s responsible for the effective stewardship of the Company’s affairs Cerlain strategic ssues are manitored

Ly the Board at meeiings against a framewaork which has been agreed with the Manager. Additional meetings may

he arranged as required The Baard has a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved forits decision, which are
cateqonsed under vanous headings. incleding strategy, management, struclure, capital, inancial reporting, interndl
controls, geanng, assel allocation, share price discount, contracts, imvestment policy, finance, nsk, investment restichons,
performance, corporate governance and Board membership and appointments

I vicer to erable them ta discharge their responsibiliies, all Duectors have full and timely access o 1elevant information
At each meeting. the Board 1eviews the Company’s investment performance and censiders financial analyses and other
reports of an operational nature The Board monitars compliance with the Company’s objectives and 15 responsiole for
setting assel allocation and snvestment and geanng hmits within which the Poiifolio Manager has discretion Lo act and
thus supervises the management of the investment portfahio, which 1s contractuatly delegated to the Portfoliy Manager
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Corpnrate Governanoe fepait

The Board has responsibility for the approval of
investments n unguoted investiments and any
investrients i funds managed or advised by the Portfolio
Manager 1t nas also adopted a piocedure for Direclors,

in the furtherance of their duties, to take incependent
professional advice at the expense of the Campany.

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

In ine with the Companies Act 2006, the Board has the
power 10 authonse any potential conflicts of nterest that may
arse and Impose such bmits or conditions as It thinks fit. A
register of potential conflicts 1s maintained and 15 reviewed at
every Board meeting Lo ensure all details are kepl up-to-date
Appropriate authodsation wiit be sought prior to the
appoirtment of any new Director of If any new conflicts anse

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Shareholder relations are given high pronty by the Boaid,
the AlFk and the Portichio sanager The pnme medium
by which the Company communicales with shareholders
is through the Intenm and Annuai Reports which aim o
provide shareholders with o ciear understanding of the
Company s aclivities and thewr results This information 1s
supplemented by 1he daily calculation of the Net Asset
Yalue ol the Company's Qrdinayy shares which 1s pubhshed
on the London Stock Excrange

This informatior s also available on the Company's
website, www irproperty com together with 3 monthly
factsheet and Manager commentary

It 15 the imtenuar of e Board thal the Annual Report and
Accounts and Notice of the AGM be issued 10 shareho ders
50 a5 10 orovide at least twenty working cays notice of
the AGM Sharehaldess wishing to lodge questions in
advarce of the AGM, or to contact the Board at any other
tme, are Invited Lo do so by willing to the Comrpany
Secletary at the reqistered address given on page 108

General piesentatio™s are given o both shareholders and
analysts following the aubuacation of the a7 ual results
All meetings belyween the dManager ang sharenoders ae
repoited o the Board

SECTION 172 COMPANITS AL 2G04

Secuor 177 of the Compapies At 23085 requires dir2Cars
1o act 1r good faith anc i ¢ way that s the maost ikely
(o opromote the success of the Company in accoidance
with the mequirements af the Comoanies (Miscellareouds
ReDorting) Reguigtiors 2078, belovs, tie Compar,

exp ans how the Directars nave discrarged ther Cuty
Jrder sechion 172 dunrg the eporirg zenad Fulf) g
1h1s cuty raturally, sunports the Company It achieving i
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Investmanl Objective and helps to ensure that all decsions
are made in a responsible and sustainable way

Upon appomntrment, Direclors” are provided with a delailed
induction outhning their duties, legally and requlatory, as

a Director of @ UK public imited company and continue (o
reqularly recewe relevant technical updates and framing
Under therr letler of appoeintment, the Birectors also have
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary,
and when deemed necessary, the Direciors have the
opportunity {o seek independent professional advice in the
furtherance of their duties as a direclor, al the Company s
expense The Company has a scheduie of Matters Reserved
for the Board which clearly descnbes the Soard’s dulies
and responsibilities In addition, there are also the Terms

of References of the Board’s Committees which oulling

the responsibilities that are delegated from the Board.

The Terms of References are reviewed at [east annually to
consider any requlatory and best practice developments

DECISION MAKING

Tre mportance of stakehoider considerations, n
particular in the conlext of decision-making, is reqular'y
brought te the Board's attention by the Company
Secretary and taken mlo account al every 8oarc
meetng, and a paper reminding Cirectors of that 1s
tabled at the start of every Board meeting The Board
considers the impact that any matenal decision will
have on all relevant stakeholders 1o ensure that 1t s
making a decision that pramotes the long-term success
of ite Company, whelber this be, for example, in
relaton to dividends, new myestment opporiunities or
the Company's furward stralegy, In addition, the Board,
a‘ong with the Manager, hold a meeting focused on
stiategy on an annual basis to lock ahead i the market
arc anuapate potenual scenanos and how this may
impacl the Company’s stakeholders

STAKEHOLDERS

Tre Board recogrises the needs and 1mporiance of

the Company’s stakeholders ang ensures that they g e
considered duting ail its discussions and as past of 1ig
detision-r-aking Since the Company 15 an Investmeant
trust thatis exterra ty managed, the Company doas
2ol ave ar, empoyees (Ihe Directors have 3 Letter of
Appointment and are gt er-ployess of the {ompariy).
not does 17 nave a drect impacl of the carmunity

of eryIronment 1N the cenventiona! serse The Boar:
ecangnises 1's key stakenolcers and explans below
Wy these stacenoldes are considered imzonait to
Ihe Compary anc e actions taken to ensure thal therr
Interesls are 1aken Nt accoant



shareholders

Shareholder support is
essential to the existence of
the Company and delivery
of long term strategy of the
business.

The Company has over 3,000 Shareholders, including institutional and retail investors. The
Board is committed to maintaining open channels of communication and to engage with
shareholders in a manner they find most meaningful in order to gain an understanding of
their views. These include the channels below:

- Annual General Meeting - the Company welcomes and encourages attendance and
participation from Shareholders at its AGM. Shareholders have the opportunity to meet the
Directors and Manager and to address questions to them directly. The Manager attends the
AGM and provides a presentation on the Company's performance and the future outlook. The
Company values any feedback and questions it may receive from Shareholders ahead of and
during the AGM and takes action or makes changes, when and as appropriate.

x
s
"

Publications - The annual and half year reports are made available on the website
and sent to shareholders, These publications provide information on the Company and
its portfofio of investments and a better understanding of the Trust's financial position.
This is supplemented by daily publication of the NAY on the Stock Exchange and
monthly factsheets on the Company’s website. The Company is open to feedback from
shareholders to improve its publications.

Shareholder meetings - The Manager meets with shareholders periodically and often and
feedback is shared with the Board.

working with the Brokers - The Manager and Brokers work together to maintain dialogue
with shareholders and prospective investors at scheduled meetings. The Board is provided
with regular updates at meetings and outside meetings if required.

Shareholder concerns - in the event that Shareholders wish to raise issues or concerns
with the Board, they are welcome to do so at any time by writing to the Chairman at the
registered office. The Senior Independent Director is also available to Shareholders if they
have concerns that contact through the normal channel of the Chairman has failed to resolve
or for which such contact is inappropriate.

The Manager

- - . -

Holding the Company’s

shares offers investors a
liguid investment vehicle
through which they can obtain
exposure to the Company’s
diversified portfolio. The
Investment Manager’s
performance is critical for

the Company to successfully
deliver its investment strategy
and meet its objective.

Maintaining a close and constructive working relationship with the Manager is crucial, as
the Board and the Manager both aim to continue to achieve consistent, long-term returns in
line with the Company’s investment objective. Important components in the collabosation
with the Manager, representative of the Company's culture include those listed below.

Encouraging open, honest and collaborative discussions at all levels, allowing time and
space for original and innovative thinking.

Ensuring that the impact on the Manager is fully considered and understaod befare any
business decision is made.

Ensuring that any potential conflicts of interest are avoided or managed effectively.

The Board holds detailed discussions with the Manzger on all key strategic and operational
topics on an ongoing basis. In addition, the Chairman reqularly meets with the Manager to
ensure a close dialogue is maintained.
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fwmum Board engagement

External Service Providers, particularly the Company Secretary, the Administrator, the Registrar and the

Depository and the Brokef

Arange of advusers enables
the Company to functien as
an investment trust and a
constituent of the FTSE 250 to
ensure it meets its relevant
obligations.

The Board maintains regular contact with its key external prowders and receives reqular
reporting from them through the Board and committee meetings, as well as outside of
the regular meeting cyde. Their advice, as well as their needs and views are routinely
taken into account. The Management Engagernent Committee formally assesses their
performance, fees and continuing appointment at least annually to ensure that the

key service providers continue to function at an acceptable level and are appropriately

remunerated to deliver the expected level of service. The Audit Committee reviews and
evaluates the cantra! environments in place at each service provider as appropriate.

Lenders

Availability of funding and
liquidity are crudial to the
Company’s ability to take
advantage of investment
opportunities as they arise.

The Board needs to demonstrate to Ienders that |t is a wel| managed busmess capable of
consistently delivering long-term returns.

Reguiatonﬂ

The Company can only
operate with the approval
of its regulators who have
a legitimate interest in how
the Company operates in
the market and treats its
shareholders.

Investee (ompames

Portfollo companies are
ultimately shareholders
assets and the Board
recognises the importance

of good stewardship and
communication with investee
companies in meeting the
Company's investment
objective and strategy.

meetings.

The Board |s always mindiu of the ~equirement to act 1N
tne hest interests of snaiehiolders as a whole and to have
regard o other eopiicable sectior 172 facors which form
part of Bozrd’s detision-meaking piotess The followrg
key decisiors taken by e Board cunrg the year endec
3104 2027 are exames of s

GEARING

Ounrg the Iindncias y2ar, the Compaany continued (o uhse
s existng revelving annudi ioan facies anc fol oung

a reviewy of the availahle opnons each were renewed on
sroadly simular tems as the repesvals fell dug thioaghout tre
year Tha Soard 15 <eer [o manrtair a wide range of bankirg
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The Managet commumcates regularly with portfullo companles and is an engaged
shareholder (on behalf of the Company).

The Board regu!arly c0n5|ders how it meets various regulatory and statutory obllgatmns and
fallows voluntary and best-practice guidance, incluvding how any governance decisions it
makes can have an impact on its stakeholders, both in the shorter and in the longer-term.

The Board monitors the Manager’s stewardship arrangements and receives reqular feedback
on meetings with the management of portfolio companies and voting at their general

relatiorsiips 10 ersure that it Pas access to 3 diverse range
af terms and 15 not "ehiart on ary one provider The fachties
provide ‘lexicility anc corrplerment the [onger-term Srivate

oatemert fed e dent thatis e tuate

Using reverus rese ves
10 s auehotde 5

support 112 dradends paid

Subiect to sharehoider eporoyal of the sroposed fina

cnidenc, Ine Company paid a toia dviderd of 74 20p for ike
firanaal vea recresenting ar cease of 140% CO’“p“’Ed
0 the previogs wear The fimanaal yea vas a Jpnod of

.

uncetairty wien maty cormoanies, Jarticd atly witnin the
L< ard buose, aither cut, postponed or cancelied thar




dividends The Board recognises the importance of dividends
to shareholders and after carelul review of the Company's
revenue forecasts and reserves lagather with the investment
outlock with the Manager, the Board deaided that,
notwithstanding the exceplional markel conditions, it would
draw on the revenue reserve o suppart the dividend

PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT

Dufing the year the Board continued to focus on the
performance of the Manager n achieving the Company’s
investment objective within an appropriate nsk framewaork
Following the emergence of the COVID-19 pandernic in March
202G, 1he focus widenad Lo consider the potential impact of
CovID-19 on the Company (Including portfolio actvity, nsks and
opportunities, geanng, revenue {orecasts and the cperations
of other third party providers) to ensure that the portfolio had
suflicient resilience togetber with the Company's operational
structure to meet the unprecedented arcumstances.

DIRECTORATE

The Baard's policy an tenure was reviewed duning the
year The stability of the Board duning one of the mos:
challenging penods was considered important particutarly
as appointments had been made Lo the Board 1n October
2019 and January 2070 Therefore no changes were made

to the Board composition dunng the finanaal year Howevel,

the Board s muadful of the importance of having 3 sutahle
succession plan especally as David Watson has served on
the Board since 2012 and Simor Mainson since 2011,

CULTURE AND BUSINESS CONDUCT

The Board 15 i agreement that having a qood corporale
cuiture, particularly Inits engagement wilh the Manager,
shareholders and other key stakeholders will aid delivery
of 115 long term strategy The Boaid promotes a culture
of operngss, 10 ine waith this purpose through ongaing
engagement with 1ts service providers and the Manager

(he Dwrectors agree that establishing and mamntaining

a healthy corparate culture within the Board and n 1ts
nteraction with the Manager, Sharehalders and other
stakeholders wall support the delivery of its purpose, values
and stiategqy The Board seeks to promote a cullure of
openness, debate and integnty through ongoing dialogue
and engagerment wilth i1s service providers, principally the
Manager The Board strives 1o ensare that its culture 151
line with the Company’s purpase, values and strategy

The Company has a number ol pohoes and procedures
in place to assist with maintaiming a culture of good

governance including thase relating to diversity,

Diiectors confhicts of interest and Directors” dealings in

the Campany’s shaies The Board assesses and monitors
comphance wilh these policies as well as the general
culture of the Board requlaly through Board meetings and
in particular during the annual evaluation process which s
undertaken by each Dredior (for more information see the
Board evaluation seclton on page 51)

The Board seeks to anprint the best possible service
providers and evaluates thenr service on a regular basis
as descnbed on page 53. The Board cansiders the culture
of the Manager and cther service providers, nciuding
ther policies, practices and behaviour. thiough regular
reporting from Lhese stakeholders and i particular during
the annual 1eview of the performance and conbinuing
appointment of all service providers

EMPLOYEE, SOCIAL IMPACT AND WIDER
COMMUNITY

The Board recogoises the requirement under the Companes
Act 2006 1o detail information abeut human nghts,
employees and community 1ssues, including izlormation
about any policies 1t has in relation to these matlers and
the effectiveness of these polices These requirements,
practically, are not applicable to the Company as it has no
empioyees, all the Directors are non-executive ard it has
outsourced alt operational functions to third-party service
providers Therefore, the Company has nol repoited further
In respect of these provisions

DIRECTORS' INDEMNITY

Directors” and Officers” nability insurance cover 1sn
olace inrespect of the Directors The Company's Articles
of Assouation provide, subject to the provisions of UK
leqislation, an indemnity for Directors in respect of costs
which they may incur relating to the defence of any
oroceedings brought against them ansing out of their
posiions as Direclors, N which they are acquitled o
Judgement (s qiven i their favour Dy the court

To the exlent permitted by law and by the Company’s
Articles of Assotiation, the Company has entered into
deeds of indemmity for the benefil of each Diteclor of
the Company in respect of 3lities which may allach to
them n their capacity as Directors of the Company. These
provisions, which are qualifying third party indemnity
provisions as dehined by section 234 of the Companies
ACL 2006, were Intinduced 10 january 2007 and curnrently
remain i force.
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Carparate Governance Report coriiued

DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT AS TO DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

The Direciors who were members of the Board al the hme
of approving the Directors’ report are listed on pages 38
and 39 Having made enquines of fellow directors and of
the Company’s auditors, each of these Dweclors confirms
that

lo the best of each Director’s knowledge and belef,
there s no information (that is, mformation needed by
the Company’s auditors 1n cannection with prepanng
their reporty of which the Company's auditors are
unaware, and

each Oimector has taken all the steps a Diregior might
reasonabty be expected to have taken {6 be aware of
relevant audit Information and 1o estabhsh that the
Lompany’s auditors are aware of that infermation

This information 1s grven and should be interpreted i
accordance with the provisions of Section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006

By orcer of the Board

David Watson
Chaiiman

3 June 2021
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Report of the Nomination Committee

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Charrman Mr Watson

KEY RESPONSIBILITIES

Review the Board and its Committees and make
recommendations in relation to structure, size and
composilion, the balance of knowledge, experience
and skill ranges;

Consider succession planning and tenute polcy and
aversee he development of a diverse pipeline;

Consider the re-election of Directors, and
Review the oulcome of the toard evaluation process.

The Nomination Commuttee meets at least on an annual
basis. and mare frequently as and when required and last
metin March 2021

ACTIVITY DURING THE YEAR

The Commuittee discussed succession planning of the
Board, the tenure and diversily policies.

The Committee annually reviews the size and stiuckure

of the Board and will continue to review succession
planning and further recruitment and take into account the
recommendations of external Board evaluations

BOARD EVALUATION

Following the engagement of Tim Stephenson of
Stephenson & Co, to faalitate an independent evaluation
of the effectiveness af the Board, tts comimittees and
the performance of each director for the year ended

31 March 2020 The annual evaluation for the year ended
31 March 20271 was carned out by the Company. This
took the form of guestionnaires followed by discussions
to 1dentfy the effectiveness of the Board's activities,
including 1ts Committees

The Chairman also reviewed with each Director therr
ndividual performance, cortnbution and commitrent
The: appraisal of the Charrrran followed the same format
and was led by Simon Mamscr. The results of the
evalualion process were presented to and considered by
the Board There were no significant actions arising from
the evaluation process and 1t was agreed that the carrent
compasition of the Board and 1ts Cammuttees eflected a
suttable mix of skitis and experience, and that the Board
as a whole, the individual Direciors and 1ts Committees
were functioning effectively.

After careful consideration, particularly of the Board's Policy
Governing Board Members’ Tenure and Reappointment, alt
ol the directors, will be offening themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming AGM 1115 considered that each of them
melit 1e-eleclion by shareholders. Further infarmation on

each directors” skilis and thenr contitbulion to the Board are
outhned in the directors’ biograpties on pages 38 and 39

In accordance with the provisions of the Code 1t 1s the
intention of the Board to engage an exlernal facilitater to
assist with the performance evaluation every three years
and the next external evaluation will be carned out for
the year ended 31 March 2023 The Board will continue Lo
complete an internal board evaluation annually wathun the
intervening years.

BOARD’S POLICY ON TENURE

In line with the update of the Cade 1n 2018, the AIC has
updated 1ts Code of Corporate Governance n 2019 The AIC
recommended, under Provision 24, a different approach to
tenure i relation o investment companies, considenng
how they differ to charrs of operating companies, where
the Board does not have a chief executive The Board took
inlo consideration the approach and introduced the ‘Policy
Governing Board Members’ Tenure and Reappointment’
This policy outhnes the Company’s appreach to tenure and
reappaintment of non-executive directors It highlights the
Board’s belel that the value brought through continuity
and expenence ol Directars with longer penods of service
Is fiol only desirabie, but essenual in an investment
company The Board did not feel that 1t would be
appropiiate to set a speafic tenure henit for individual
Directors or the Chairman of the Board or its committees
Instead, the Board will seek Lo recruit 3 new Director on
average evely three years so as regularly to bning the
challenge of Iresh thinking into the Board's discussions,
ensurng that on each accasion that the Board enters into
new Investment comimtments, at least half the Board
members have direct personal experence of negotiating
previous commitments with the Manager

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

When a new Director 1s appointed. he/she 1s offered
training to suit then needs. Diectors are also provided
with key information on the Company’s activities on

a reqular basis, Including requlatery and stalutory
requirernents and internal contrals Changes affecting
Directors” responsibilities are advised to the Board as they
arise Directors ensure that they are undated on regutalory,
statutary and industry matters

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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Report of the Management Engageme

MANAGEMENT ENGAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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MAMNAGEMENT FEES

The fee for the pernod under teview was a fixed fee of
£3745,000 plus an ad valorem fee of 0.20% pa based on
the net assel value {detenmined 1n accordance with the
AIC method of valuation) on the last day of March, june,
September and Decembet, payable quaite Iy in advance

Ihe fee arrangements have been reviewed by the Board
for the year to 31 March 2027 and the fixed elfement of the
fee and the ad valoremn rate will remain unchanged.

The Boaid continues to consider that the fee stiucture
aligns the interests of the shareholder and the fanager as
well as being highly competitive

The lee arrangements will continue to be reviewed on an
annuai basis.

PERFORMANCE FEES

In addition to the management fees, the Board has agreed
to pay the Manager performance related fees 1n respect of
an accounting penod 1f certain performance ofyeclives are
achieved

A performance fee 15 payable i the total return of adjusled
net assets (atter deduction of all Base Management
Fees and other expenses). as defined in the IMA, al

31 8arch each year outperforms the total retur of the
Compeny's bencimark plus 1% (the “hurcle 1ate”), tus
gulperlormance (expressed as a perce lage} 1s known
as the “percentage oulperfarmance” Any fee payable
wili be the amount equivalent to the adjusted net assets
al 31 March each vear multiplied by the percentage
outperformance then multiplied by 15% The maximum
peiformance fee payable for a penod s capped al 15v%
of the adiusted net assets However, il the adsusted

net asse!s at the end of any penod are less tnan at the
beginming of the nerad, the rmaximum perfesmance fee
payabe will be Imiled o 1% of the ad;uslz¢ net gssets

If t1e total return of shareholders” funds for any
performarce senod 1s less tha~ the benchmaik for the
relevant cerformance oeniod, such uncerpe-formarce
{expressed as a percentage) will be carned forward 1o
fature performance penocs

I* any fee exceeds he cao, such excess perforvance
{expressed as a pertentage) will be canied forward end
apphied to offset 2ny percentage unde-performance

in future pe-formance penods 0 the event that the
betchmark s excesced Dot i~e hurddle s rot, tat
outzerforrance of tne henchmerk can be used 1o offset
past or future underperformance These amounis can

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

be used tor offset purposes only and therefore cannot
have the effect of creating a fee in a year where a [ee
would not otherwise be payable or increasing the fee
in that year At 31 March 2021 there 15 a cairy forward of
outperformance of 18% (2020 1 8%)

No fee will be payable uniess the adjusted nel assets
oltwenrform the hurdle rate, afler Laking inlo account

any accumulated percentage underperformance

biought forward at the beginiing of the financial year
pParformance fees eamed in the vear ended 31 March
2021 were £9.659000 (2020 £2.683,000) Total fees

paid to the Manager in any one year (Management and
Performance Fees) may not exceed 4.99% of Group Equity
Shareholders’ Funds Total fees payable for the year to 37
starch 2021 amount o 1 2% (2020 2.8%) of Group Equity
Sharehoiders” Funds

DEPOSITARY ARRANGEMENTS AND FEES

BAP Panbas was appointed as Deposiiary on 14 july 2014
in accordance with the AIFMD The Depositary's
responsipilites include. cash monitonng, segregation and
sale keeping of the Company's finanaal instruments, and
manitoring the Compary's compliance with investment
and leverage requuements. The Depasitary recerves
forits services a fee of 2.0 basis points per annum on
the first £150 million of the Company's assels, T4 basis
S0iNts per annum on assels above £150 mulhon and
below E500 mulhior and 075 basis points on assets aboye
£500 milion

REVIEW OF THIRD PARTY PROVIDERS' FEES

Custody and Administration Services are provided by

BNP Panhas ard Compary Secretanal Servicas by Link
Company Matters Tre fees for these services are chaiged
direct-y 1o the Company ard are cortained within

atier administiative expenses disciosed in notes Lo the
accaunts

David Watsan

3 June 2021



Directors’ Remuneration Report

INTRODUCTION

The Board has prepared tius reporl and the Directors’
Remuneration Policy, 10 accardance with the requiremnents
of Schedule 8 of the Large and Medwm Sized Companies
and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Requlations 2013, An
ordinary reselution for the approval cf this repart will be
put lo the members at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeling

The law requires the Company's Auditors, KPMG LLP

to audit certain of the disclosures provided Where
disclosures have been audited, they are indicated as such
The Auditar’s opinion s included in the ‘Independent
Auditor's Report’

ANNUAL STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF
THE COMMITTEE

The MEC met in March 2021 and cansidered the resulls
and feedback from the boaid evaluation alongside
other factors The MEC also considered the fiequency of
remuneration mncreases for the Trust, feedback from the
market and investors on the level of frequency and the
current impact of the cutbreak of coranavirus (COVIO-19)

Following the MEC meeling in March 2021, 1t was agreed
that the current level of remuneration for the Boaid of the
Trust remaned appropnate. 1t was alsa agreed thaf the
Non-execulive Director’s fee waould remain at £35000 per
annum with effect from 1 Apnil 2027 1t was further agreed
that the Directors holding the rele of the Audit Commultee
Chanman and Senior independent Cirector would continue
to receive an additional £5,000 to reflect the increase In
their responsibiities Morecver, it was agreed that the
Charman's remuneration would remain at £70,000

DIRECTORS REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company’s policy 15 that the fees payable to the
Diectors should reflect the time spent by the Board on
the Company’s affairs and the respensibilities borne by the
Duectors and should be sufficient to enable candidates of
high calibre to be recruited The policy s for the Chairman
of the Board, the chanman of the Audit Commuiltee and
the Senior Independent Director o be paid higher fees

than the other Directors in recognition of thelr more
onerous roles This policy was approved by the members
at the 2020 AGM, and the Duectors intention 1s that this
will contiaue for the year ending 31 March 2023

The Directars are remunerated in the form of fees,
payable monthly in arrears. 10 the Director personally or
to a third party speafied by that Director There are no
lang-term incentive schemes, share option schemes or
pension arranrements and the fecs are not speahically
related to the Directors’ performance, either individually or
collectively

The Board consists entirely of Non-execulive Directors,
who are appointed with the expectation that they wili
serve for a perod of three years Diectors” appomntments
are reviewed formaily every three years therealter by the
Board as a whole None of the Directors have a contiact
of service and a Cirector may resign by notice in wiling
lo the Board at any time, there are no nolice penods The
terms of their appointment are detailed in a letier 1o them
when they joir the Board As the Directors da not have
service conliacts, the Company dees nol have a policy an
termmation payments

There 15 no notice penod and no payments for loss of
office were made during the penod The Company's
Articles of Assoaation currently imit the total aggregate
fees payable Lo the Board Lo £300.000 per annum

Sharehoiders views 1n respect of Direclors’ remuneration
are communicated at the Company’s AGM and are taken
Into account i formulating the Directors 1emuneration
policy Al the last AGM, over 99 6% of shareholders voted
far the resolution approving the Cirectors’ Remuneration
Report (0.4% against) At the 2020 AGM, over 99% voled
for the resolution approving the Directors’ Remuneration
Policy (0.4% agamst), showing significant shareholdel
support.

The components of the remuneration package for
Naon-executive Directors, which are compnsed in the
Directors remuneration pohicy of the Company are set aut
below. with a description and approach to determination
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30

Fixed fees

The aggregate limit for the
fFees for the Board as a whole
fs £300,000 per annuim, in
accordance to the Articles of
Assgctation, which is divided
between the Directors as
they may deern appropriate.

| Additional Fees

Remuneration Type

Additional fees may be paid
to any Girector who fulfils the
role of the Chairman, wha
chairs any committee of the
Board or who is appointed

as the Senior Independent
Director.

_ . _|FExpensesFees

The Directors are entitled

to be paid all reasonable
expenses properly incurred
by them attending meelings
with shareholders or other
Directors or otherwise

in connection with the

|
Board members afe not
eligibie for bonuses, pension
benefits, share aptions,
lang-term incentive schemed
or other non-cash benefits ar
taxable expenses.

discharge of their duties as
Directors.

These fees will be set

at a competitive level to
reflect experience and time
commitiment.

Annual fees are set to

reflect the experience of
each board member and
time commitment required
by Board members to carry
put their duties and is
determined with reference to
the appointment of Directors
of similar investment
companies.

ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPORY
For the year ended 31 March 2021, Directors” fees were paid al the annual rates of Chanmap £70,000 (2620, £70,000)
and alb other directors £35,000 (2620 £33000) An additional £5.000 15 paid per annum for each of the roles of Audit
Commuttee Chairman and Senior Independent Direclor The actual amounts paid 1o ine Directors dunng the hinanoal vear
under review are as shown below.

AMOUNT OF £EACH DIRECTOR’S EMOLUMENTS (AUDITED)

The fees payable i respect of each of the Diectors who served dunng the finanaial year wete as follows

m B
£

David Watson®™ 60,4561 40,000
Simon Marrisont? 38,410 35,000
Tim Gillbanks 40,000 40,000
Kate Bolsover 35,000 17,500
Satah-jane Curtis 35,000 6,372
Hugh-Seaborn® 23,333 70,000
oal S - 232,204 208,872

All fees are at a fixed rate and there 15 ro vanable remuneration Fees afe pro-raied where 3 cnange taxas place dunng
a financia yea There were no payments to ihind patties inciuged 1o the Tees referred (o 1n the tadle auove There are no
further fees to disclose as the Company has no emeoyees. chiel executive of executive direciorns

epportec as Cherm o o 28 0’y 2020

cOpalfed a5 Ser of recercert Tiactol o 28 L v 20i0

ratiteC 2: Charmmer or 28 Ly 2000
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Directors’ Remuneration Report (ontion

COMPANY PERFORMANCE

The graph below compares, for the ten years ended

31 March 2021, the percentage cnange aver each period

In the share prnice total retuin to shareholders compared

1o the share price total ietun of benchmark, which the
Board considers to be the mast apprapnate benchmark

for investment performance measurement purposes An
explanation of the performance of the Company 15 given 10
the Charnman’s Statement and Manager’s Reporl

Performance Graph - Share Price Total Return for
Ordinary Share Class
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MIET MEFIl Ma-13 M4 M35 MR MarT? MEIS Mar1y Marzn Mar-

Wl TR Property Share Price Tolal Retuin 8 Benchmark Total Retuin

Skare Price fota Returr dssumirg mvestiment of £1.60C er 37 March 2017 anc
reirvestrrent of 2l div cencs (excludirg dealing experses) (Source Thames

Rwer Cap tal)

Benchmai < Igtal Returr assuning net ardl investmient :nta the ndex of £1,000 on
31 March 2011 (Source Thames River Lapite )

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES (AUDITED)

The interesls of the Directars in the shares of the
Compeny, at the begmning and at the end of the year. ol
dale of appointment, 1f laler, were as follows

Ordinary shares of 25 pence

David Watson 36,083 35,692
Simon Marnson 43,367 42,326
Tim Gillbanks - -
Kate Bolsover 2,360 2,360

Sarzh-Jane Curtis - -

Since 31 Maich 2021 to the dale of this report, there have
been na subsequent changes to the Directars” mterests n
the shares ol the Campany

Relative Importance of Spend on Pay

201 2020
£000 £000 Change
Dividends paid 44,429 43,794 1.4%
11.0%

Directors’ fees 232 209

Five year change comparison
Over the last five years, Directors’ pay has inceased as sel
oul 1n the table below

pli7i] 2016

£'000 £000 Change
Chairman 70,000 70,000 0%
Audit Committee
Chairman 40,000 35,000 14.3%
Senior independent
Directar 40,000 35,000 14.3%
Director 35,000 30,000 16.7%

For and on behaif of the Board

David Watson

3 June 2027
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Report of the Audit Committee

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Chawrman- M7 Gilibanks

KEY RESPONSIBILITIES
Review the intemal imanaal and non-frnancial controts,

Review reports from key third party service providers,

Consifer and recommend (o the Board for approval the
contents of the diaft intenim and Annual Reparts,

Review accounting pohcies and significant financial
reporting yudgernents,

rMonitor, together with the Manager, the Company’s
camphance with financral reporting and reqgulatory
requirements,

The review and subsequent propasal Lo the Board of
the intenm and final deadends, and

Considenng the impact of providing non-audit services
on the extemnal Auditors dependance and obyectiaty

Representatives of the Managers mntermal audit and
comphiance departments may altend these commttee
meetings 4l the Committee Chairman's request

Representalives of the Company's Auditos attend the
Commiltee meetings al which the diaft intenm and
Annual Report and Accounts are reviewed. and are given
the appoftuniiy o speak to the Comimitteg members
without the presence of the representatives of the
Manager

The Board 1ecognises the requisement far the Audit
Comimittee as a whole to have competence relevant

to the sector and at least one mermber wiih recent and
relevant finanaal expenence The Chairman and Me
Walson are Chartered accountants with extensive and
recent experience 0 the Finarcal Services Industry. The
athes members af the Committee have 3 combimation of
property. fnancial, investment and busiress expenenca
thiough semior positians heid throughout their careers

ACTIVITY DURING THE YEAR
Duneg the year the Corrmittee mel bace wath 4t

mea~bers al eech meeling and consiceres the foilowing

{onsideranarn of 1he Risk Xap, any changes 1o the
tkeinood o impact o nsks and conseguertial
(~anges recired Lo Baard Monitonng ang miligaion

piocegures Lonsideration of ary Tew or emerging

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

nsks and inclusion in the Risk fMap 1t appropnate This
has included consideration of the angoing COVID-19
pandermic and impact across a range of nsk calegories,

The Group's internal Contiols and consideration of the
Reports thereon,

The ISAE/AAF and SSAET6 reports or therr equivalent
fram BMO and BNF Partbgs,

Whether the Company should have its own mternal
audit function;

The External Auditors Planming Memaiandum setting
out the scope of the annual audit and proposed key
areas of facus;

The reports fromt the Auditors concerning therr audi
of the Finanaal Statements of the Company and
Consideralion of Significant 1ssues 1n relation to the
Financtat Statements,

The appropnateness of, and any changes 1o, the
accounting pohiaies of the Company, including the
reasonableness of any Judaements required by such
pclicies,

The viabiity Stalement and consideralion of the
preparation of the Financial Statements on a Going
Concern Basis igking accouat of forward looking incame
forecasts. the hauidity of the investment portfoho and
dent profile,

Tre inancian and other disclosures in tre Finanaa!
Statemnents,

The inlormalion piesented i the Interim: and Annuai
Repoils Lo assess whether, taken as a whole, the
Reparis are fai, balanced and understandable and the
information presented waill enable the sharenolders to
assess Lhe Company s position, pefformance, business
model and strateqgy,

Tre performence of the exiernal auditors, 1o approve
! assessmenrt of

Tre review and subsecuent proposal to the Joard of
teartenim and (ira) dividends, ard

The reyrewa’ of the Corriftes’s Terms af Re‘erence,
ensuring they remain appropate and compiant with

e 2018 LK Coiporate Governance Code



Repait of the Audit Committee continued

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND MANAGEMENT OF
RISK

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's system
of internal Conltrels and for reviewing their effectiveness
Key nisks identlied by the Auditors are considered by the
Audit Commiliee to ensure that rebust internal controls
and manitoring procedures 11 respect of these are n place
on an ongoing basis Further details can be found on

page 28 o 32

The Audil Committee recerved and considered reports on
tnternal Conliols from the key service providers No areas
of concern were highlighted

The Cornpany's Risk Map was considered to idenufy any
new risks and whether any adjustments were required 1o
existing risks, and the contiols and mitigaticn measures
i place in respect of these nisks. The impact of (OVID-19,
the response of financial maikels, the ongoing 1mpact

on economies around the world and operational charges
made by our service providers in response lo government
guidelines were considered and the nsk map adjusted
accordingly

Gased on the processes and controds 1n place within the
BMC Group and other significant service providers, the
Board has concurred that there 15 no current aeed for the
Company {0 have a dedicated internal audil function

SIGNIFICANT ISSUES IN RELATION TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Commuittee has considered this repart and financial
statements and the viability Statement on pages 33

and 34 The Commuttee considered the Auditor’s
assessment of nsk of mateniai misstaternent and reviewed
the inleral controls in place 1n respect of Lhe key areas
wentified and the process by which the Board monitors
each of the procedures to give the Cammittee comiort

ar these nisks on an ongoing basis. These nisks are also
highlighted i the Company's Risk Map

Carrying amount of listed investments {Group
and Parent Company) - The Group's investments are
priced for the daily NAV by BNP Panbas The guoled
assets are priced by the Adminstrator’s Global Pricing
Platform which uses independent external piang
sources. The cantrel process surrounding this 15 set
oul 1n the BNP Panbas AAF 01/06 Internal Controls
Reporl and testing by the reporting accountant for the
period reported o 31 December 2020 did not reveal
any significant exceptiens The quartetly control repor!
to the Board from BNP Panbas covenng the penod up

10 31 March 2021 had no significant 1ssues Lo report
In addition the Manager esimates the NAY using
an alternative pncing souice on a daily basis as an
independent check.

The Auditors agreed 100% of the histed investments
aof he porifoho to externally quoted prices and
ndependently recewved third party confirmatians from
investment custadians and found the carrying value of
listed Investments Lo be acceptahle

valuation of Direct Property Investments (Group
and Parent Company) - The physical property
portfolio (s valued every six manths by professional
independent vatuers

Knight Frank LLP value the portfolio on the basis of
Fair Value in accordance with the RICS Valuation -
Professional Standards vPS4 (1 5) Fair value and YPGA
1Valuations for Inclusion in Financial Statements,
which apply the definition of Fair value adopled by
the International Financial Reporting Slandards 1FRS 13
defines Far value as

“The amount for which an assel couid be exchanged, a
hability settled. or an equity nstrument granted could
be exchanged, between knowledqgeabie vilhing parlies
in an arm’s length transaction”

In undertaking thew valuation of each property, Knght
Frank make ther assessment on the basis of a collation
and analysis of appropriate comparable investments,
rental and sale lransactions, together with evidence

of demand within the vioimity of each property. This
information 15 then apphed to the properlies, taking
into account size, location, terms, covenant and other
matenal factors.

The board has reviewed reports from the Manager and
the external valuer and determimed the valuation to be
reasanable.

The Auditors have set out thew detailed iesting and
procedures in respeci of the Direct property valuation
and concluded that they found the Company’s valuation
of investment properiies Lo be acceptable.

There has been nothing biought to the Committee’s
altention in respect of the linanaal statements for the year
ended 31 March 2021, which was material or significant o
that the Commuittee felt shauld be brought Lo shareholders
atlention,

TR PROPERTY iNVESTMENT TRUST



AUDITOR ASSESSMENT AND INDEPENDENCE

The Company's external auditor, KPRMG LLP was
appointed as the Company's auditars al the 2016 AGM.
The Commitiee expects (o repeal a tender process no
later than 2026 10 respect of the audit for the following
31 March year end, in ine with Lhe latest Corporate
GOvernance provisions

During the year, XPMG presentled their Audil Plan for

the year end at the internm Committee meeting and the
Commutlee considered the audit process and fee proposal.
The Cormmitiee also reviewed KPMG'S independence
policies and procedures including quality assance
procedures IUwas considered that these policies are fit
for purpose and the Directors are satisfied that KPMG are
independent

Total fees payable lo the Audilor in respect of the aydit for
the year to 37 Maich 2027 were £80,000 (2020, £80,000),
which were appioved by the Audil Coimmittee

The Commutlee has approved and implemented a policy
on the engagement of the Auditor to supply non-audit
services, taking mlo accoun! the recomimendations of
the Accounting Praciices Board wilth @ view o ensunng
that the external Audiler does not provide ror-audit
senvices that have the polential W imearr of appear to
impzalr the independence of their audil role In addition,
the Commuliee reviewed the achions put in place by the
Audilor to ensuie there was a dear separation between
audit and advisory services The Comimiitee does not
believe there 1o be any impediment o the Auditor’s
objectivity and irdesendence.

The {ees for non-audit services for the year 1o 31 March
2071 wera il (2020 ol)

Full detans af (ke Auditor’s fees are acovided in nate 6 to
the accounts on page 79,

The Board noted that war Kelly, the cuirenl partner was
anpointed for the 2017 yea-end aucit ang w1 continug

as parines only untr the condiusion of the 2027 year-end
audic M derchant will repiacs M <eiey a3 audi pattner
for the 2022 vear-end audit &b Werchart Pas cansiderabie
gApeieree I the finanaal Services sec ol #nd o2 auar of
Investment Trust Comiaries

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

Following each audit, the Commitiee reviews the audi
process and considers its effechiveness and the qualty
of the senvices provided to the Compary Within this
process, the Commitiee takes imo considaration thel
own assessment, the self-evaluation of the auditor and
the Audit Quality Reviews Repaort produced by the FRC N
order to monitar the pragress of the Auditor's perfarmance
camparable with its pees and the targets set by the FRC.
The reviewy following the completion of the 2020 Audit
concluded that the Committee was satished with the
Auditor's effectiveness and performance

The Comimittee fell that KPMG had run an effective

and efficent audit process with appropriate challenge.
Subsequently, a resolution to 1e-appoint KPMG LLP as
the Company's Auditor will be put to shaieholders al the
forthcoming AGM

Tim Gitlbanks

3 June 2021



Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in relation to the

Group financial statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual
Report, the Strateqic Report, the Diectors Report and the
financial statements 10 accordance with applicable law and
requiations.

Company faw requires the directors to prepare Group
and Parent Company financial statements for each
financiat year Under thal law they are reguired to
prepare the Group financial statements 1n accordance
with internattons! accounting standards in conformity
with the requirements of the Companies Adt 2006 and
apohcable law and have elected (o prepare the Parent
Company financial statements on the same basis In
addition the Group finanaal statements are required uvnder
the UK Disclosuie Guidance and Transparency Rules to
be prepared in accardance with International Financial
Reporung Standards adopted pursuant to Reguiation (LC)
No 1606/2002 as it applies in the Ewopean Union

Under company law the directors must noet approve the
financial staternents unless they are satisfied that they
give a tive and fair view of the state of affars of the
Group and Parent Company and of the Group’s profit or
luss for thal peniod. In prepanng each of the Group and
Parent Company financial statements, the directors are
reguired to

select suitable accounting pohaes and then apply them
consistently;

make judgements and estimatas that are reasonabie,
relevant and reliable,

stale whelher they have been prepared in accordance
wilh international accounting standards in conforrity
with the requuements of the Companies Act 2006 and,
as regards the group hranaal statements, Internationa
Financial Reporling Slandards adopted pursuant o
Requlation (EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies in the
European Union;

assess the Group and Parent Company s ability to
continye as a going concern, disciasing, as apphicable,
matters related o going concern, and

use the going concern basis of accounting unless they
etther intend to hquidate the Group or the Parent
Company of lo cease operalions, of have no realislic
alternative but to do so

The directors are 1esponsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficent to show and explaim
the Parent Companys transactions and disclose with
reasonadble accuracy at any tme the financal position

of the Palent Company and enable them to ensure thal

its financial statements comply with the Comparies Act
2006 They are responsible for such internai control as
they determine 1s necessary Lo enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from matenal
misstalement, whether due to fraud o1 eror, and have
general responsibility for taking such sleps as are
reasonably open to them Lo salequard the assets of
the Group and to pievent and detect fraud and other
trreqularities.

Under applicable law and requlations, the directors are
also responsible for preparing a Strategic Report, Directors’
Report. Directors’ Remuneration Report and Corparate
Governance Statement that complies with that law and
those requlations

The direclors are responsible for the maintenance and
integnity of the corporate and financial information
included on the Company's website Legistation in the
UK goverming the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from teqgistation i other
jurisdictions

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT OF THE DIRECTORS
IN RESPECT OF THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

Each of the directors confirms that to the best of ther
knowledge.

the financaal stalements, prepared i accordance with
the applicable set of accounting standards, give a true
and lan view of the assets, liabilities, financial position
and profit or loss of the Group and Patent Company and
the undertakings included in tne consolidation taken as
a whole; and

the strateqic report includes a fai review of the
development and performance of the business and the
position of the ssuer and the undertakings included

In the cansolidation taken as a whole, together with a
descaption of the principal nsks and uncertainties that
they face

The Ditectors consider the annual report and accounts,
taken as a whole, 1s far, balanced and understandable
and provides Lthe information necessary for shareholders
to assess the group’s posilion and performance, business
maodel and strateqgy

By order cf the Board

David Watson

3 June 2021
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KPMG

Independent auditor’s report

to the members of TR Property Investment Trust pic

1. OUR OPINION 15 UNMODIFIED

We have audited the finanoial statements of TR Property
investment Trust Plc {"the Company”) far the year ended
31 March 2021 which comprise the Group Statement of
Comprehensive Incore, Group and Company Statements
of Changes in kquily, Group and Company Balance Sheels,
Group and Company Cash Fiow Stalements and the related
noles, including the accounting policies 1N note 1

tn our opinion:

— ihe finanaial statemenis give a true and fan view of
the state of the Company’s alfairs as at 31 March 2021
and of the Group’s returr: for the year then ended,

- The Group financial statements have beer property
prepared in accordance with UK-adapted international
accaunting standards,

— Ihe Parent Comipany financal statements have bean
praperly prepared in accordance with UK-acopted
mternabional accounting standards and as appied in
accordance weh the provisions of the Companies Act
2006 and

— The finenuar statements have been prenared 1N
accordance with the requiremenis of the Companies
ACL 2006 and, as reqards the Group finanaal
statements, Aricle 4 of tre JAS Regulanor Lo the exient
apphcable

Basis for opinion

we conducted our audit i accordance with Inlernatipnal
Standards on Auditing {UK) {"15As (UK)") and applicable
lawe. Our responsibilities are described below We believe
that the audit evidence we have oblained s a sufficient
and appropriate basis for our opinion Our audit opinion 15
consistent with our report to the audit comimittes

_

Materiality: £14.9m-(2020:£12.5m)

Financial statements 1% (2020: %) of Tatal Assets

as a whole

Key audit matters vs 2020

Recurring risks valuation of direct
property investments O
Carrying amount of listed
investments 4

we were fisl appointed as auditor by the Diectors on

2 Novemnber 2076, The penod ol tatal uminterrupted
engagement s for the 5 financial years ended 31 March
2021 we have fullilled our elhical resporsibiities

undes, ang we remaln independent of the Companry in
accordance with, UK ethical requiremerss including the
FRC Ethical Standard 2s apolied 1o isted public intejest
enlilies Mo ron-auds services prohibited by that stanagard
weie provided

2. KEY AUDIT MATTERS: INCLUDING OUR ASSESSMENT OF RISKS OF MATERIAL MISSTATEMENT

ey aJgoit ratters are trase maess that i our professiond judgermen:

were of mast signicicance m the auar. of the

Inance statenerts and incluce the mos: sigmficatt assessed 7isks of maienal missiaiemenrt (whetrer o not due 1o
Feudyidentlied oy us, incluging those wouc ad the areaiest effect on the overell zucit sategy, the 2llocation of
“asgurces It the audit, avd directing the effarts of the engegement team We surmmarise Delow 1he key audit matle™s
(Inchanges from 2020). n cecreasing order of audil sigrilicence, 17 a719ing at our audi opimiar 2bove, toganer wilh
U key qudit oracedares to add-ess thase matiers and, as recarred for puhic 1nterest entties, aur resuns from those
procedaras Tnase mailers wera addressed. ang our results ere based on proceduras undertaken, in the context of, a1s

sglely fom the purpose of, our audit of t~e inancig statements as a wikole. dod i forming Gu ooImon

0 2l

consequentty are inqidenta o that opimon, and we 29 net provide a separate opiniop o these materns

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST



Independent auditor’s repart conbired

Valuation of direct
property investments

(Group and Parent
Company)

(£83 1 milhon;
2020 £94 5 mullion)

Refer 1o pages 58 10 60
(Audit Cominitiee Reporl),
page 74 and 75 {accounhing
pohicy), and note 10 on
pages 82 1o 85 {Iinancial
disclosures)

Subjective valuation:

5.6% {2020 75 of the Gioups
total assets (hy value) ate hield I

nvestment properties

The fair value of each property
requires signilicant estimation,

i particular wth regard to
the key estimated rental

value and yield assurnptions,

The key assumplions will be

impacted by a number of factors
including quahty and condition

of the building and tenant
covenant strength

The effect of these matters
15 that, as part of our risk
assessment, we determined

that the valuation of investment
properlies has a high degree of
gstimation uncertainty, with a
potential range of reasonable

outcomes greater than our
matenality for the hinancial
slalements as a whaole The

financial statements (note 10)
discloss the sensttaty estimated

by the Gioup

we petformed the detailed tesls below rather than
seeking o rely on contrals. because the nature

of the balance 15 such that we would expect to
obtain audit evidence primaniy through the detailed
procedures described,

Owr procedures included

— Assessing valuer's credentials: Using our own
property valuation specalist, we evaluated the
competence, expenence and mdependence of the
exlernal valuer;

— Tests of Detail: We compared the mnformation
provided by the Group to its external property
valuer for a sample of praperties, such as rental
income and lenancy data to supporting documents
including lease agreements;

— Methadology choice: e held discussians with
the Group’s external property valuer to determine
the valuation methodology used we included oui
own property valuation specialist to assist us in
critically assessing the results of the valuer's report
by checking that the valualions were in accordance
with the RICS valuation Professicnal Standards
‘the Red Book” and IFRS and that the methodology
adopted was appropnate by reference (o
acceptable valuation praclice,

- Benchmarking assumptions: with the
assistance of our own properly valuation speaahst.
we held discussions with the Group's external
property valuer to understand movements in
property values For g sample of praperties, we
assessed the key assumplions used by the valuer
upon which the valuations are based, mcluding
thaose relating to estimated rental value and vield,
by making 4 companson to our own understanding
of the market and toindustry benchmarks;

— Assessing transparency: \We alse considered the

adequacy of the Group's disclosures about the degiee
of estimation and sensitivity to key assumption made
when valuing the direct property nvestments

Qur results:

— we found the valuation of investment properties to
be acceplable (2020 acceptable)

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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(Group and Parent)

(£1.3174 mullion;
2020 £1.0601 mulhon)

Refer to pages 58 Lo 60

(Auait Commultee Report),
page 75 {accounting policy)
and note
to 85 (financial disclasures)

The risk

Carrying amount of listed Low risk, high value:
investments

The Groups porticho of quoted
lewvel 1investments makes up
88 2% (2020 84 4%) of the
Group's lolal assets (hy value)
and s one of the key divers of
results. We do not consider these
nvestmenis to be al a high nsk
of significant musstatement, or
to be subject to a sigmficant
level of udgemant because
they campnse hauid, guoled
invesimenls However, due o
thair matenahty in the context

of the hinannal %ratemol 15 as a
whole, they are considerec o
be one of the areas wrich had
the grealest effect on our overall
audit stiategy and allocation

10 on pages 82

Gur response

we performed the detarled tests below rather than
seeking Lo rely on contrals, because the nature of

the balance 1s such that detatled testing 1s determined
to be the mast effective manner of obtamnng

audit evidence

Qur procedures inclyded

— Test of detall Agreeing the valuation of 100%0!
level tlisted investments in the portfolio to
externally quoted paces, and

— Enquiry of custodians: Agieeing 100% of level
1 hsted investment holdings in the portfolio to
inczpendentiy recerved third party confirmations
fromy investmen: custodians

Our resylts

— e founa the carr, mg amount of lisled

Of 1esnurces
completing our aucit

3. OUR APPLICATION OF MATERIALITY AND AN
OVERVIEW OF THE SCOPE OF OUR AUDIT

Mateniaiity for the financial statements as a wrole was
set al £14 Gm (2020 £12 5m), determined with reference
to a benchmark of total assets, of which (t represents
10% (2020 10%)

atenaliy for the Parent Company finanua' statements as
who.e was al £147m (2020 12 0m) determined as ¢ 9%
of the intal assets of the parent company {2020 0 9%)

in e wath our audt methodowgy, our procedues on

indiwicual account balances and disclosuies were performed

to a tower threshold, performance matenality, so as 1o reduce

to ar acceplable level the ask that Individually immaternial
misstatements n individual account balances acd up to a matenal
amount acioss the firangial staterments as 8 wiple Performance
materaliry was sel at /5% (2015 75%;) of matenally for the
fnanaial statemnents as o whowe, which equates to £171m (2020
£94my “or the Giour and £10 3m (2020 £90my) for the Parent
Corrpany We apolied this percentage n our delerminauor of
perfoimarce matenality because we did notideny™y am, factors
incicaing an elevated lewei of sk

7 addiior we appied matenaty of £2 6m (2029
£32my anc peroimance matenatsy of £ 5m (2026

£2 4mj) o investmentincome. other ozeatng Intome,
gross rertal income, seryvice €1arge INcoms and net
retures on contract fo- difererces for whicn we beisve
musstatements of iesser 2 mourts (han matertalty far
re francal staterments as a whole coud reasorably

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

N planning and

inLestments 1 be acceptable {2020 acceptable)

be exoecled to nfluence the Company’s members’
assessiment of the hinancial performance af the Company

Wwe agreed 10 report o the Audit Commitlee any corrected ar
uncorrected 1dentified misstaternents exceeding £0 75m
(2020- £063m) 11 addiion Lo other idenbihed misstatements
thal wartarted reporting on qualletive grounas

Gur audit of the Company was undertaken to the
matenality level specified above and was performed oy 3
single audil team.

The audr: tegrr performed the audit of the Graup as ¢ it was

a single aggregated set of inanciat information Tris aperoach
15 unchanged from the prior year The audit of the Group was
nerfarmed asing the Group mafenah’v level set cut above

Total Assets
£1,481m (2020, £1,256m}

Group Materiality
£14 9m (2020 £12 5my

£14.9m

Whale financiai
statemerts materianty
{2020: €12 5y

£14.1m

Parert Compary
Materiality
{2020: £12 Qrry

£0.75m Misstatements
reported to the auart
carcmittee 12020:

£0 63rr]




Independent auditor’s report continued

4. GOING CONCERN

The Direclars have prepared the financial statements on
the going cancern basis as they do not intend to iquidate
the Gioup of Company of lo cease 1ts operations, and

as they have concluded that the Group or Company’s
financial position means that this s realistic. They have
also concluded that there are no matenal uncertainties
that could have cast significant doubl oveits ability to
continue &5 a gomg concern for at least a year from the
date of approval of the finanaial statersents ("the yuing
concern penod”)

we used our knowledge of the Group, its Industry, and the
general economic environment to 1dentify the inherent
risks to1ts husiness model and analysed how those risks
might affect the Group or Company’s financial resources

or abthty to continue operations over the going concern
penod The risks that we considered most itkely to
adversely affect the Group or Company's avallable financial
resources and 1ts ability Lo operale over Lhis penod were

— Theimpact of a significant reductior in the valualion
of investments and the imphcations for the Group o
Company’s debl covenants,

— The liquidity of the investment portfolio and its ability
o meet the liabilities of the Group as and when they
fali due; and

— The operational restience ol key service organisations.

We considered whiether these nisks could plausibly affect
the liquidity 1n the gaing cencern penod by assessing Lhe
degree of downside assumption that, individually and
coliectively, could result In a iquidity 1ssue, taking into
account Lthe Group or Company’s current and projecled
cash and liquid invesiment position (and the results of
their reverse stiess lesting),

We considered whether the qoing corcen disclosure n
note 1 to the financial stalements gives a full and accurate
description of the Direclors’ assessment of going concern,
inctuding the ideatified nsks ard related sensitivibies

Our conclusions based on this wark.

— We consider thatl the Dreciors use of the going
concern basis of accounting 1n the preparation of the
financial statements 1s appropnale,

— We have notidentifred, and concur with the Direciors’
assessment that there 1s not, 4 matenal uncertanty
related to events or conditions that, individually or
collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group or

Company’s ability lo cantinue as a going concern for
the going concern penad;

- We have nothing matenal lo add ar draw atlention to
in relation to the Directors statement in nole 1 to the
inancial statements on the use of the going concern
basis of accounting with no material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt over the Group or Company’s
use of that basis for the going concern period, and
we found the going concern discinsure in note 1 to be
acceptable, and

- The related stalement under the Listing Rules set aul
on pages 41 and 4215 materially consistent with the
financial statements and odr audit knowledge

However, 35 we cannol predict ail fulure events or
conditions and as subsequent events may tesult In
outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements that
were reasonable at the time they were made, the
above conclusions are not a guarantee that the Group of
Company will continue In operalion

5. FRAUD AND BREACHES OF LAWS AND
REGULATIONS - ABILITY TO DETECT

identifying and responding 1o nsks of material
misstatement due Lo fraud

To identify risks of matenal misstatement due to fraud
(“fraud risks”) we assessed events or condilions that
could indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud
or provide an opportunity to commit fraud Our sk
assessment procedures included

Enquiing of Direclors as {o the Group’s igh-level
policies and procedures 1o prevent and detect fraud, as
well as whether they have knowledge of any actual,
suspected or alleged fiaud,

— Assessing the segregation of duties in place between
the Directors, the Administiator and the Groups
Investment Manager; and

— Reading Board and Audit Corrmittee minutes

As required by sudiling standards, we perform procedures
to address the nsk of management avernde of controls,

i parlicular Lo the nisk that management may be i

a posiion to make mappropriate accounting entnes

We evalualed the design ana mplementation of the
controls over journal enlries and other adjustrments and
made inguines of the Administrator about napproprate
oi unusual activity relating to the processing of jourmnal
entiies and other adiustments Wwe substaniively tested all

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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malenal post-closing entnes and, based on the 1esults of
oui nsk assessment procedures and understanding of the
process, including the segiegation of duties between the
Diectors and the Administrator, ne further fugh-1isk journal
enfries or ather adjustments were identified

on this gudrl we have rebutted the fraud risk relaled

to revenue recogniion because the revenue 15 non-
judgemental and straightforward. walh hmited opportunity
for manipulation We did not identify any signilicant
unusual transactions or additional fiaud risks.

Identifying and respanding to risks of materiat
misstatement due to non-compliance with laws and
regulations

We entified areas of laws and regulations that could
reasonably he expected to have 4 matenal effect on the finanaal
staterments lrom ol general commercial and seclor expenence
and through discussion wath the Directors, the Investment
Mariager and the Admuinistratar {as required by Juditing
standards) and discussed with the Directors the policies and
procedures regarding comgphiance with laws and requiations

The potenbal effect of these [aws and regulations on the
fmancial statements vanes considerably

Fustly, the Company 15 subject to laws and requlations

that directly alfect the financal statements includirg
fimanaal reporting legislation (including relaled comaanies
legistation), distnbutable proiils leqislabon, and its
qualihication as an Investment Trusl under UK taxabion
legislation, any preach of which could lead to the Group
losimg varnous deduciions and exemptons from UK
corporation tax, and we assessed the exten: of compliance
with these 1aws and regulatons as part of eur procedures
on the related finanaial staterment items

Secondly, the Group 15 subject 1o many other laws and
regulations where the corsequences of non-comphance
could have a matenal effect on ameunts o disclosures

11 the [inancia statements, for instance through the
imposthiar of fmes o iigation We ideatified the followng
areas as those most lkely to have such an eflect money
laundenng, data u.oteciion, bisbery and corruption
legisiation and certain aspects of company legistatior
recogrising the financar rature of the Groups activities
and '3 legal form Auditing slandasds hmie e requied
audit procecures 1 identily nen-compliange with these
laws and regulations o enguiry 6f the Drectors and ine
Administrator and inspection of reguiatory ard legal
corresnandendce, 1 any Therefore 1 a Sreacr of operational
requ-ations 1s rot disclosed 1o us of evidert from elevan:

cotresgordence, ar audit will not dewect that breach.

TR PRCPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

tontext of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or
breaches of law or regulation

Owing to the nherent hmtabions of 4p audil. there 1s an
unavordable nsk that we may nat have detected same
materral misstatements i the hinancial statements, even
though we have properly planned and performed our
audit in accordance wilh auditing standards For example,
the further remaved non-complhance with laws and
reqgulations is fiom the events and transactions reflected
in the financial statements, the less hikelv the inherently
limited procedures required by auditing slandards would
identify it

In addimon, as with any sudit, there remained a higher nisk
ol non-detection of fraud, as these may invclve collusian,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
overnde of internal controls Qur audd procedures are
gesigned to delect matenal misstatement We are not
responsible for preventing non-compiiance or fraud and
cannol be expecled to delect non-comphance with ali
laws and lequlations

6. WE HAVE NOTHING TO REPORT ON THE OTHER
INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The Direclors are responsible for the other information
presented in the Annual Report together with the finargial
statements Qur apanon en the financial stalemenis does
nal cover the other information and, accordingly, we do
nol express an audit opinion or, except as exphaily stated
below any form of assurance conclusion therean

Ouwr resporsibility 15 10 1ead the ather information and,

in doing so, consider whether. based on our financial
statements audit work, the information therein 1s
maienally musstated or inconsistent with the linangiak
stalements or our audit knowledge Based solety on that
work we have not idenufled matenal musstalements in the
other Information

Strategic report and Directors’ report
Based solely on our wark 01 e other information

— we Mave notidentiflied matenal misstatermenis i the
Straieqic report and the Drectors 1epart,

— 00T gpion the informatior giver In t70se iepots
ror the inancal year 1s consistent with the finanaa
stalements, and

- In our opirion those reports have been preparec In
accordance wiky e Compames Act 2005



Independent auditor’s report continieec

Directors’ remuneration report

In our opinton the part of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report to be audiled has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006

Disclosures of emerging and principal risks and
longer-term viability

We are reauired Lo perform procedures to idenlify whether
there 15 a matenal inconsistency between the Direclors’
disclosures i 1espect of emerging and principal nsks and
the vigbilily statement, and the tinancial stalements and
our audit know!edge.

Based on thase procedures, we have nathing matenal to
add or draw attention to in relatien to

— the Directors’ confirmation within the Viability Staterment
on pages 33 and 34 that they have carmed out 4 robust
assessment of the emerging and principal nisks facng the
Group, Including those that would Lhreaten its business
model, future performance, solvency and liquidity,

— the Pnncipal Risks and Uncertainties disclosures
descnbing these nisks and how emerging risks are
identified, and explaining how they are being managed
and metigated, and

— the Directors” explanation in the Viabilily Statement of
how they have assessed the prospects of the Company,
aver what penod they have dane so and why they
considered that penod to be appropnate. and thenr
statement as to whether they have a reasanahle
expectation that the Group will he able to conbinue
In operation and meet 1ts fiabilites as they fall due
over the perod of their assessment, includmg any
related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary
gualfications or assumptions,

We are also required to review the viability Statement, set
out on pages 33 and 34 under the Listing Rules Based on
the above procedures, we have concluded that the above
disclosures are malenally consistent with the finangial
staternents and our sudil knowledge

Our waork 1s mited to assessing these matiers n the
context of only the knowledge acguired dunng our
financial statements acdit As we cannot predict all fulure
events of conditions and as subsequent events may

result 1n outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements
thal were reasonable at the ime they were made, the
absence of anything to report oin these statements 15 not a
guarantee as to the Company's longer-term viabihity

Corporate governance disclosures

We are required to perform procedures to identify whether
there (s @ matenal incansistency between the Directors’
corporate governance disclosures and the financial
statements and our audit knowledge

Based on these procedures, we have congluded thal each
of the Tollowing 1s matenally consistent with the financia!
stalements and our audit knowledge,

the Directors’ statement that they consider that the
annual repert and fimancial slatements taken as a
whole 1s faii, balanced and understandable, and
provides the information necessary for shareholders to
assess the Group's position and performance, business
model and strategy;

the section of the annual repart descrihing the work of
the Audit Commuttee, including the sigmificant 1ssues
that the audit committee considered in relation 10

the financial statements, and how these 1ssues were
addressed, and

the section of the annual repert that describes
the review of the effectiveness of 1he Group’s nisk
managemsnt and internal control systems.

We are required to review the part of Corporate
Governance Statement relating to the Group’s comphance
with the provisions of the UK Corparale Governance Code
speafied by the Listing Rules for our review We have
nolhing to report in this respect

7. WE HAVE NOTHING TO REPORT ON THE OTHER
MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO
REPORT BY EXCEPTION

Under the Companies Act 2006, we are tequired to report
to you +f, 10 our oprion:

— adequate accounting records have not been kept, or
retumns adequale for sur avdit have not been receved
from branches not visited by us, or

— the finanaal statements and the part of the Cirectors’
Remuneration Report to be audited are agtin
ageeement with the accountirg records and returns, or

— certain disclosures of Cirectors remuneration speciiied
by law are qol made, o

— we have nol recerved ail the information and
explanations we require for our audit

We have nothing to repoit in these respects.
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8. RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES

Directors’ responsibilities

As explamned more fully in ther statement set oul on
page &1, the Directors are responsible for the preparation
of the finanaial statements ncluding being satisfied that
they give a tiue and fair view, such faternal control as
they delermine (5 necessary to enable the preparation

of iinancial statements that are free from matenal
mrsstatement, whether due to fraud or errar; dssessing
the Company’'s ability to continue as a going concern,
distlosing, as apphicable, matters related o going concern,
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
they either intend 1o hquidate the Company of 1o cease
aperalions. of have no realistic alternative bul to do so

Auditor’s responsibilities

Our ohjectives aie to oblain reasonable assurance about
whether the financal statements as a whale are free fram
matenat misstatement, whether due to fraud or erfor, and
to 1ssue our opinion In an 2uditon's report. Reasonable
ASSUTANce 15 a tugh level of assurance, but goes not
guarantee thal an audit canducted i accordance with 15As
{UK) wilt always detect a matenal misstatement when it
exisis Misstalemnents can anse from fraud or error and are
considered matenal i, mdnadaaly or in aggregate, they
could reasonably he expected to influence the economic
dewsions of users taken on the basis of the inancal
slatements

A fulec descupuon of our resporsibiities s provided on
the FRC's website at-
www f1¢ org uk/auditorsresponsibilities
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9. THE PURPOSE OF OUR AUDIT WORK AND TQ
WHOM WE OWE OUR RESPONSIBILITIES

This report is made solely Lo the Group’s members, as

a body. n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of Lhe
Cormpanies Act 2006 and the terms of our engagement by
the Company. Our audit work has been undertaken so that
we mught state to the Group's members those matters we
are required to stale to them in an auditor’s report and for
no other purpose. T the fullest extent permitted by law,
we do not accept of assume sesponsitubty 1o anyone other
than the Group and the Group's members, as a body, for
our audit work, for this report, o1 for the opimions we have
formed

Richard Kelly (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP Statutory Auditos
Charterad Accountants

Saltire Court

15 Canada square

London

£14 5GL

3 june 2021



Group Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 March 2021
Notes Year ended 31 March 2021 Year ended 31 March 2020
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Retuin Return
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000
Income
Investment income 2 36,557 - 36,557 47112 - 4712
Cther operating income 4 67 - 67 35 - 35
Gross rental income 3 3,185 - 3,185 3,415 - 3,415
Service charge income 3 1,051 - 1,051 1,786 - 1,786
Gains/(losses) on investments held at
fair value 10 - 196,582 196,582 - (153,614) (153,614)
Net movement on foreign exchange;
investments and loan notes - (3.144) (3,144) - 1,296 11,296
Net movement on foreign exchange; 22
cash and cash equivalents - (1,474) (1,474} - 302 302 é %
Net returns on contracts for difference 10 3,320 17,978 21,298 5,724 (41,276) (35,552) g =
Net return on total return swap 10 - _ (128) _(188) - {3,808) (3,808) “
Total Income 44,180 209,754 253,934 58,072 (187,700) {129,028)
Expenses
Management and performance fees 5 {1,556) {14,328) {15,884) (1,570) (7,392) (8,962)
Direct property expenses, rent payable
and service charge costs 3 {1,321) - (1,321) (1,984) - (1,984)
Other administrative expenses 6 {1,231) (604)  (1,835) {1,398) {615) (2,013)
Total operating expenses {4,108) (14,932) (19.040) (4,952} (8,007) (12,959)
Operating profit/(loss) 40,072 194,822 234,894 53120 (195,167) (141,987)
Finance costs 7 (416) (1,969) (2,385) {814) (2,443) (3,257)
Profit/(loss) from operations before N
tax 39,656 192,853 232,509 52,306 (197,550) {145,244)
Taxation 8 (7671 2661 1,900 {5.912) 3,149 (2.763)
Total comprehensive income 38,889 195,520 234,409 46,394 (194,401)  (148,007)
Earnings/(loss) per Ordinary share 9 12.25p  61.61p 73.86p 14.62p (61.26)p {46.64)p

The Total column of this statement represents the Group’s Statement of Comprehensive income, prepaied in accordance with IFRS. The
Revenue Return and Capital Return columns are supplementary to this and are prepared under guidance published by the Association of
Investment Companies. All items in the above statement derive from continuing operations.

The Group does not have any ather income or expense that is not induded in the above statement therefore “Total comprehensive
income” is also the profit for the year.

All income is attributable to the shareholders of the parent company.

The notes from pages 73 to 97 form part of these Financial Statements.
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Group and Company Statement of Changes in Equity

GROUP
For the year ended 31 March 2021 Notes share Share Capital Retained
Capital Premium  Redemption Earnings
Ordinary Account Reserve Ocdinary
£'000 £'000 £000 £°000
At 31 March 2020 79,338 43,162 43,971 969,982 1,136,453
Total comprehensive income - - - 234,409 234,409
Dividends paid 17 - - - (44,429) {44,429)
At 31 March 2021 79,338 43,162 43,9711 1,159,962 1,326,433
COMPANY
For the year ended 31 March 2021 Notes share share Capital Retained
Capital Premium  Redemption Earnings
Ordinary Account Reserve Ordinary
£°000 £'000 £°000 £'000
At 31 March 2020 79,338 43,162 43,971 969,982 1,136,453
Total comprehensive income - - - 234,409 234,409
Dividends paid 17 - - - (44,429) (44,429)
At 31 March 2021 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,159,962 1,326,433
GROUP
Far the year ended 31 March 2020 Notes Share Share Capital Retained
Capital Premium Redemption Earnings
Ordinary Account Reserve Ordinary Total
£000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000
At 31 March 2019 79,338 43,162 43,97 1,761,783 1,328,254
Total comprehensive income - - - (148,007) (148,007)
Dividends paid 17 - - - (43,794) (43,794}
At 31 March 2020 79338 43,162 439N 969,982 1,136,453
COMPANY
For the year ended 31 March 2020 Notes Share Share Capital Retained
Capital Premium Redemption £arnings
Ordinary Account Reserve Ordinary Total
£000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000
At 31 March 2019 79338 43162 43,97 1,161,783 1,328,254
Total comprehensive income - - - (148,007) {148,007)
Dividends paid 7 - - - (43,794) (43.794)
Al 31 March 2020 79,338 43,162 43,971 969,982 1,736,453

The notes from pages 73 to 97 form part of these Financial Statements.
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Group and Company Balance Sheets
as at 31 March 2021

Notes Company Group Company
2021 2021 2020 2020
£000 £000 £'000
Non-cufrent assets
Investments held at fair value 10 1,400,516 1,400,516 1,155,295 1,155,295
Investments in subsidiaries 10 - 43,312 - 50,429
" 1,400,516 1,443,828 1,155,295 1,205,724
Deferred taxation asset 12 686 636 - -
1,401,202 1,444,514 1,155,295 1,205,724
Current assets
Debtors 12 60,990 60,520 60,094 59972
Cash and cash equivalents 29,114 29,112 40,129 40,27
© 90104 "~ 89632 100,223 100,099 =

Current Habilities 3 (107,280) (150,120) (59711 (110,016) S £
Net current (liabilities)/assets T T (1776) (60,488) 40512 9917) 53
Total assets less current Habilities 1,384,026 1,384,026 1,195,807 1,195,807 @
Non-current liabilities 13 (57,593) (57,593) {59.354) {59,354)
Net assets 1,326,433 1,326,433 1,136,453 1,136,453
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 14 79,338 79,338 79,338 79,338
Share premium account 15 43,162 43,162 43,162 43162
Capital redernption reserve 15 43971 43971 43,971 43,971
Retained earnings 16 1,159,962 1,159,962 969,582 969,982
Equity shareholders’ funds 1,326,433 1,326,433 1,136,453 1,136,453
Net Asset vValue per:
Ordinary share 19 N7.97p 7.97p 331p 358.11p

These financial statements were approved by the directors of TR Property fnvestment Trust plc (Company No:84452) and authorised for
issue on 3 june 2021.

D Watson
Director

The notes from pages 73 to 97 form part of these Financial Staternents.
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Group and Company Cash Flow Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2021

Company Group Company
2021 2020 2020
£°000 £000 £°000
Reconciliation of profit/{loss) from opetations before
tax to net cash outflow from operating activities
Profit/(loss) frem operations before tax 232,509 231,844 (145,244) (145,244)
Finance costs 2,385 2,385 3,257 3,257
(Gains)/losses on Investments and derivatives held at fair
valye through profit of loss (214,372) (207,255) 198,698 198,71
Net movement on foreign exchange; cash and cash
equivalents and loan notes (179) (179) 859 859
{Increase)/decrease in accrued income (102) (102) 584 584
Sales of investments 353,167 353,167 316,841 316,841
Purchases of investments (370,496) (370,496) (383,674) {383,674)
Decrease/(increase) in sales settiement debtor 4,753 4,753 (1,417} (1,417}
{Decrease)/increase in purchase settlement creditor {5,781) {5,781} 4501 4,501
(increase)/decrease in other debtors (11,436) (11,436) 4,447 4,447
increase/(decrease) in other creditars 2,451 (4,001) 2,047 2,034
Scrip dividends included in investment income and net
retuens on contracts for difference (8,489) {8,489) {3,878) {3,818)
Net cash outflow from operating activities before
interest and taxation (15,590) {15,590 (2.919) 2919)
Interest paid {(2,607) (2,607) (3,4} (3,421}
Taxation paid _(e15) {1,915) {2,321) (2,321
Net cash outflow from operating activities {20,112) {20112) {8,661) (8,661)
Financing activities
Equity dividends paid (44,429) (44,429) (43,794) {43,794)
Dtawdown of loans ~ 55,000 55,000 40,000 40,000
Net cash from/{used in) financing activities S 10,571 _ 105N (3.794) (3.799)
Decrease in cash (9,541) (9,541) {12,455) {12,455)
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year 40,129 40,127 52,282 52,280
Net movement on foreign exchange; cash and cash
equivalents o Qan) (1,474) 302 302
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 29,114 29,112 40,129 40,127
Note
Dividends received 38,224 38,224 52,003 52,003
Interest received 45 45 37 37

The notes from pages 73 to 57 form part of these Financial Statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 have been prepared on a going concern basis, in accordance with
international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) adopted pursuant to Reguiation (EC) Mo 1606/2002 as it applies in the European
Union and in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. The financial statements have alse been prepared in
accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP), “Financial Staternents of Investrnent Trust Companies and Venture
Capital Trusts,” to the extent that it is consistent with [FRS.

in assessing Going Concern the Board has made a detailed assessment of the ability of the Company and the Group to meet

its liabilities as they fall due, including stress and liquidity tests which considered the effects of substantial falls in investment
valuations, substantial reductions in revenues received and reductions in market liquidity including the effects and potential effects
of the current and likely ongoing econemic impact caused by the Coranavirus pandemic. The Board is satisfied with the operational
resilience of service providers despite COVID-15 and continues to manitor their performance througheut the pandemic.

in light of the testing carried out, the liquidity of the level 1 assets held by the Company and the sigrificant net asset value position,
and despite the net current kability position of the Group and Parent Company (which could be mitigated by the sale of liquid fevel 1
investments), the Directors are satisfied thai the Company and Group have adequate financial resources to continue in operation

for at least the next 12 manths following the signing of the financial statements and therefore it is appropriate to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting.

The Group and Company financial statements are expressed in Sterling, which is their functional and presentational cutrency.
Sterling is the functional cutrency because it is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group operates.
values are rounded to the nearest thousand pounds (£'000) except whefe otherwise indicated.
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Key estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements necessarily requires the exercise of judgement, both in application of accounting
policies, which are set out below, and in the selection of assumptions used in the calculation of estimates. These estimates and '
judgements are reviewed on an ongoing basis and are continually evaluated based on historical experience and othes factors.
However, actual results may differ from these estimates. The only key estimate is considered to be the valuation of investment
properties. See section {f) of this note. There are not considered to be any key judgements.

a) Basis of consolidation
The Group financial statements consolidate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries to 31 March 2021. All the
subsidiaries of the Company have heen consolidated in these financial statements.

tn accordance with IFRSI0 the Company has been designated as an investment entity on the basis that:
[t obtains funds from investors and provides those investors with investment management services;

|t commits to its investors that its business purpose is to Invest solely for returns from capital appreciation and investment
income; and
It measures and evaluates performance of substantially all of its investments on a fair value basis.

Each of the subsidiaries of the Company was established for the sole purpose of operating of supporting the investrment operations of
the Company (including raising additional financing), and is not itself an investment entity. IFRS 10 sets out that in the case of controlied
entities that suppart the investment activity of the investrent entity, those entities should be consolidated rather than presented as
investments at fair value. Accordingly the Company has consolidated the results and financial positions of those subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of their acquisition, being the date on which the Company obtains conteol, and continue
1o be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. The finandial staterments of subsidiaries used in the preparation of the
consclidated financial staternents are based on consistent accounting policies. Al! intra-group bafances and transactions, including
unrealised profits arising therefrom, are eliminated. This is consistent with the presentation in previous years.

b) Income
Dividends receivable on equity shares are treated as revenue for the year on an ex-dividend basis. Where no ex-dividend date is
available, dividends receivable on or before the year end are treated as revenue for the year. Provisian is made for any dividends
not expected 1o be received. where the Group has elected to receive these dividends in the form of additional shares rather
than cash the amount of cash dividend foregone is recognised as income. Differences between the value of shares received and
the cash dividend foregone are recognised in the capital returns of the Group Statement of Comprehensive income. The fixed
returns on debt securities are recognised on a time apportionment basis so as to reflect the effective yield on each such security.
Interest receivable from cash and short term depaosits is accrued 1o the end of the year. Stock fending income is recognised on
an accruals basis. Underwriting commission is taken to revenue, unless any shares underwritten are required to be taken up, in
which case the praportionate commission received is deducted from the cast of the investment.

Recognition of property rental income is set out in section (f) of this note.

Recognition of income from contracts of difference is set out in section {g) of this note.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

<) Expenses
All expenses and finance costs are accounted for on an accruals basis. An analysis of retained earnings broken down into

revenue and capital itemns is given in note 16. in arriving at this breakdown, expenses have been presented as revenue items
except as follows:

+  Expenses which are incidental to the acquisition or disposal of an investment;

+  Expenses are presenled as capital where a conneclion with the maintenance or enhancernent of the value of the
investments can be demonstiated, this includes irrecoverable VAT incutied on costs relating to the extension of residential
teases as premiurmns received for extending or terminating leases are recognised in the capital account;

+  One quaiter of the base management fee is charged to revenue, with three quarters allpcated to capital return to reflect the
Board's expectations of lang term investment retums. All performance fees are charged to capital return;

+  The fund administration, depositary, custody and company secretarial services are charged directly to the Company and
are included within ‘Other administrative expenses’ in note 6. These expenses afe charged on the same basis as the base
managemment fee; one quarter 1o income and three quarters to capital.

d) Finance costs
The finance cost in respect of capital instruments other than equity shares is calcufated so as fo give a constant rate of return on
the outstanding balance. One quarter of the finance cost is charged to revenue and three quarters to capitat retumn.

€) Taxation
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on 1ax rates and laws that are enacted or subslantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Income tax is charged or credited directly to equity if it relates to items that are credited or charged to equity. Otherwise income
tax is recognised in the Group Statement of Cornprehensive income.

The tax effect of different items of expenditure s allocated between capital and revenue using the Group’ effective rate of
tax for the year. The charge for taxation is based on the profit for the year and takes inta account taxation deferred because of
temporary differences between the treatment of certain itemns for taxation and accounting purposes.

In accordance with the recommendations of the SORP, the atlocation method used to calculate tax relief on expenses presented
against capital returns in the supplementary information in the Statement of Comprehensive tncome is the “marginal basis”.
Under this basis, if taxable incomne is capable of being offset entirely by expenses presented in the revenue fefurn colurmn of the
Statement of Comprehensive fncome, then no tax retief is transferred to the capital column.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the catrying amounts of assets and
liabilites in the Balance Sheet and the carresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted

for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are tecognised for &l taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits wili be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

The Company is an investment trust ynder 1158 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 and, as such, is not liable for tax on capital
gains. Capital gains arising in subsidiary companies are subject to capital gains tax.

{) Investment property
Investment property is measured initially af cost including transaction costs. Transaction costs include transier taxes, professional
fees for legal services and initial leasing commissions to bring the property to the condition necessaty for it to be capable of
operating. The carrying amount also includes the cast of replacing part of an existing investment property at the time that
cost is incurred if the recognition witeria are met. The purchase and sale of properties is recogrised to be effected on the date
unconditional contracts are exchanged.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is stated at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
values are included in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year in which they arise.

Investment property is detecognised when it has been disposed of of permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic
benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or fosses on the retirement or disposal of investrment property are recognised in
the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year of disposal.

Gains or losses on the disposal of investment property are determined as the difference between net disposal proceeds and the
carrying value of the asset at the date of disposal.

Revaluation of investment properties

The Group carries its investment properties at fair value in accordance with IFRS 13, revalued twice a year, with changes in fair
values being recognised in the Group Statement of Comnprehensive income. The Group engaged Knight Frank LLP as independent
valyation specialists to determine fair value as at 31 March 2021,
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

valuations of investment properties
Determination of the fair value of investment properties has been prepared on the basis defined by the RICS Valuation - Globat
Standards {The Red Book Global Standards) as follows:

“The estimated amount for which a property should exchange on the date of valuation between a willing buyer and a willing
seller in an arm’s length transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and
without compulsion.”

The valuation takes into account future cash fiow from assets (such as lettings, tenants’ profiles, future revenue streams, capital values of
fixtures and fittings, plant and machinery, any environmental matters and the everall repair and condition of the property} and discount
rates applicable to those assets. These assumptions are based on local market conditions existing at the balance sheet date.

In arriving at their estimates of fair values as at 31 March 2021, the valuers have used their market knowledge and professional
judgement and have not anly relied solely on historical transactional comparables. Examples of inputs to the valuation can be seen
in the sensitivity analysis disclosed in note 10 (g).

Rental income
Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, except for
contingent rental income which is recognised when it arises.
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Incentives for lessees ta enter into lease agreements of other negotiated rent free periods agreed are spread evenly over the
lease term, even if the payrments are not made on such a basis. The lease term is the non-cancellable period of the lease
together with any further term for which the tenant has the option to continue the lease, where, at the inception of the lease,
the directors are reasonably certain that the tenant will exercise that option. Premiurns received to terminate of extend leases
are recognised in the capital account of the Group Staternent of Cormprehensive Income when they arise.

Service charges and expenses recoverable from tenants

income arising from expenses recharged to tenants is recagnised in the period in which the expense can be contractually
recovered. Service charges and other such receipts are included gross of the related costs in revenue as the directors consider
that the Group acts as principal in this respect.

g) Investments
when a purchase or sale is made under contract, the terms of which require delivery within the timeframe of the relevant
market, the investments concerned are recognised ar derecognised on the trade date.

All the Group's investments are defined under IFRS as investments designated as fair value through profit of Joss but are also
described in these financial statements as investments held at fair value,

All investments are designated upon initial recognition as held at fair value, and are measured at subsequent reporting dates at
fair value, which, for quoted investments, is deemed to be closing prices for stocks sourced from European stock exchanges and
for SETS stocks sourced from the London Stock Exchange. SETS is the London Stock Exchange electronic trading service covering
most of the market including ail the FISE All -Share and the most liquid AIM constituents. Unqucted investments or investments
for which there is only an inactive market are held at fair value which is based on valuations made by the directors in accordance
with IPEVCA guidelines and using cufrent market prices, trading conditions and the general economic climate.

In its financial statemments the Company recognises the fair value of ils investments in subsidiaries as being the adjusted net
asset valye. The subsidiaries have historically been halding vehicles for direct pioperty investment or financing vehicles. No
assets are currently held through the subsidiary structure and all financing instruments are directly held by the Company.

Changes in the fair value are recognised in the Group Statement of €omprehensive income. On disposal, realised gains and
losses are also recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Derivatives

Derivatives are held at fair vatue based on traded prices. Gains and losses on derivative transactions are recognised in the Group
Statement of Comprehensive Income. Gains and losses on CFOs and total return swaps resulting from movements in the price
of the underlying stock are treated as capital. Dividends from the underlying investment and financing costs of CFDs and total
return swaps are treated as revenue/capital expenses.

Gains and losses on forward currency contracts used for capital hedging purposes are treated as capital.
Contracts for Difference (“CFDs”™) are synthetic equities and are valued by reference to the investments’ underlying market values.

The sources of the returns under the derivative contract (e.g. notional dividends, financing costs, interest returns and capital
changes) are allocated to the revenue and capital accounts in alignment with the nature of the underlying source of income and
in accordance with the guidance given in the AIC SORP Notional dividend income or expenses arising on long or short positions
are apportioned wholly to the revenue account. Notional interest expense on long positions is apportioned between revenue
and capital in accordance with the Board's long term expected returns of the Company (currently determined to be 25% to the
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

fevenue account and 75% to capital reserves). Changes in value relating to undertying price movements of securities in relation
o CFD exposures are allocated wholly to capital reserves,

h) Bomrowings, loan notes and debentures
All loans and debentures are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received, less issue costs where applicable.
After initial recognition, all interest bearing toans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amaortised cost.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on settlement. The costs of arranging any interest
bearing loans are capitalised and amortised over the iife of the loan on an effective interest rate basis.

i) Foreign currency translation
Transaclions involving foreign cumencies are converled at the rate ruling at the date of the transaction.

Foreign curtency monetary assets and liabilities are translated into Sterding at the rate ruling on the balance sheet date. Foreign
exchange ditferences are recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income.

j) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are measured at amortised cost and comprise cash in hand and demand depaosits.

k) Dividends payabie to shareholders
Interim dividends are recognised in the periad in which they are paid and final dividends are recognised when approved by
shareholders.

#} Adoption of new and revised Standards
Standards and Interpretations effective in the current period
The accounting poticies adopted are consistent with those of the previous consolidated financial statements except as noted below.

IFRS 3 amendments. The amendments provided mare guidance on the definition of a business 1o assist in determining
whether a transaction resulis in an asset or a business acquisition. The amendments have not had an impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

interest Rate Benchmark Reform ~ Amendments to IFRS 9, 4AS 3% and IFRS 7 The amendments provided temporary teliefs
which enable hedge accounting to continue during the period of uncertainty before the replacement of an existing interest
rate benchmark with an altemative risk free interest rate. The amendments have not had a material impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

Amendments to 1AS 1 and IAS 8 - Definition of Matetial. The International Accounting Standards Board refined its definition of
“material” and Issued practicat quidance an applying the concept of materiality. The amendments have not had a material impact
on the Group’s financal statements,

The Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting. The Conceptual Framework is not a standard however its purpose is to gutline
a set of concepts for financial reporting, standard setting, guidance fer preparers in developing consistent accounting policies

and assistance to others in understanding and interpreting the standards. The Framework has not had a material impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

Early adaption of standards and interpretations

The standards issued before the reporting date that become effective after 31 March 2021 are not expected to have a material
effect on equity or profit for the subsequent period. The Group has not early adopted any new International Financial Reporting
Standard or Interpretation. Standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of
the Group’s financial statements are listed below:

1AS 1 Amendmnents - Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current (effective date amended to 1 Januaty 2023). The
amendments specify the requirernents for classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments are not expected to
have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

IAS 1 Amendments - Disclosure of Accounting Policies (effective 1 january 2023). The arnendments require an entity to disclose
its material accounting policy information instead of its significant accounting policies. The amendments contain guidance and
examples on identifying material accounting poticy information. The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on
the Group’s financial statements.

IAS 8 Amendsments - Definition of Accounting Estimates {effective 1 january 2023) The amendments define accounting estimates
as "monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”. The amendments also clarify the
interaction between an accounting policy and an accounting estimate. The amendments are not expected to have a material
impact on the Group's financial statements.

1AS 16 Amendments - Proceeds befare intended Use {effective 1 Jannary 2022) The amendments intend to clarify the accounting
for the net proceeds from selling any items produced while bringing an item of property, plant and equipment into use. The
amendrments are not expected to have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements,
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

1AS 37 Amendments - Onerous Contracts - Cost of fulfilling contract (effective 1)anuary 2022) The amendrments clarify that for
the purpose of assessing whether a contract is onergys, the cost of fulfilling the contract includes both the incremental costs
of fulfilling that contract and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfiliing contracts. The amendments are not
expected to have a material impact on the Group's financial statements.

IAS 39, IFRS 4, 7, 9 and 16 Amendments - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Phase 2) (effective 1 January 2021) tBOR reform refers
ta the global reform of interest rate benchmarks which includes the replacement of sare interbank offered rates (IBOR) with
alternative benchmark rates. To ensure users of financial statements can understand the effect of the reform on a company's
financial instruments and risk management strategy, additional information on the nature and extent of risks to which the
company is exposed arising from financial instruments subject to IBOR reform is required. In addition, details of the company’s
pragress in completing its transitions to alternative benchmark rates is required.

IAS 41, IFRS 1, 9 and 16 Amendments - Annual Improvements 2018-20 Cycle (effective 1 january 2022) The minor improvements,
none of which will have a material impact on the Group's financial statements, {o the standards noted were endorsed in
September 2020.

IFRS 3 Amendrnents - Reference to the Conceptual Framework (effective 1 January 2022) The amendments require that for
transactions within the scope of 1AS 37 or IFRIC 21, an acquirer applies 1AS 37 of IFRIC 21 (instead of the Conceptual Framework)
to identify the liabilities it has assumed in a business combination. In addition, IFRS 3 now contains a statement that an acquirer
does not recogriise contingent assets acquired in a business combination. The amendments are not expected to have a material
impact an the Group's financial statements.
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IFRS 4 Amendments - Extension of IFRS 9 Deferral (effective 1 January 2023) The option for companies whose business is the
issuance of insurance contracts, to defer the effective date of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments has been extended. The amendment
is not expected to have an impact on the Group's financial statements.

IFRS 16 Amendments - Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions (effective 1 Aprit 2021) the May 2020 amendments, which introduced
an optional practicat expedient that simplifies how a Jessee accounts for rent concessions that are a direct consequence of
Covid-19, have been extended to tease payments originally due on or befare 30 june 2022.

IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts (effective 1 January 2023) IFRS 17 replaces IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts and contains several areas that
are covered, including measurement of revenue, insurance performance, onerous contracts and disclosure. The standard is nat
expected to have an impact on the Group’s financial statements.

IFRS 17 Amendments - Amendments to IFRS 17 {effective 1 January 2023) In june 2020, amendments to IFRS 17 were issued
which are intended to make financial performance easier to explain and reduce comptiance costs by simplifying some
requirernents in the standard. The amendments are not expected to have an impact on the Group’s financial statements.

2 INVESTMENT INCOME
2021 2020
£000 £000

Dividends from UK listed investments 3,753 491
Dividends from overseas listed investments 18,656 26,631
Sceip dividends from listed investments 7,482 3370
Property income distributions 6,666 12,200

S 3(5_,55'5r 47112

3 NET RENTAL INCOME

£000 £'000

Gioss rental income 3,185 3,415

Service charge income 1,051 1,786
Direct property expenses, rent payable and service charge costs {1,321) (1,984)

' 2,915 3,277
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

3 NET RENTAL INCOME continued

Operating leases

The Group has entered into commercial leases on its property portfalio. Commercial praperty leases typically have lease terms
between 5 and 15 years and include clauses to enable periadic upward revision of the rental charge according to prevailing market

conditions. Sorme leases contain options to break before the end of the lease term.

Future minimum rentals ynder non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 March are as foflows:

2021 2020
£'000 £'000
within 1 year 3,000 2,950
After 1 year but not morse thap 5 years 10,000 10,300
More than 5 years 19,000 15,500
32,000 28,550

OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Intesest receivable 1 2
interest on refund of overseas withholding tax 44 3
Undeswriting commission Y ¥) -
67 DS

Underwriting is part of the process af introducing new securities to the market, The Company may participate in the underwriting of
investee companies’ securities, as one of a number of participants, for which compensation in the form of commission is received. The
Company only participates in underwriting having assessed the risks involved and in securities in which it is prepared to increase its
holding should that be the outcome. The commission eamned is taken to revenue unless any securities underwritten are required to

be taken up in which tase the proportionate commisston is deducted from the cest of the invesiment. During the year the Company
participated in one (2020: nil) underwsiting and ail commission earned was taken to revenue and shown under Other operating income.

MANAGEMENT AND PERFORMANCE FEES

2021
Revenue

Return
£'000

Management lee 1,556
Performance fee -
1,556

2021
Capital
Return

£000

4,669
9,659

13328

6,225
9,659
15,884

2020 2020 2020

Revenue Capital Total
Retuin Retuen

£000 £'000 £000

1,570 4,709 6,279

- 2,683 2,683

1,570 7392 8,962

A summary of the terms of the management agreement is given in the Report of the Direclors on page 41.

78 TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST



6 OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

2021 2020
£000 £000
Directors' fees (Directors' Remuneration Report on pages 55 to 57) 232 209
Auditor's remuneration:
- for audit of the consclidated and parent company financial statements 80 80
Legal fees 15 3t
Taxation fees 69 103
Other administrative expenses 199 199
Other expenses 454 562
trrecoverable VAT 182 214
Expenses charged to Revenue O m 1,398
Expenses charged to Capital 604 615
1835 2,013

Other administrative expenses include depositary, custody and company secretarial services. These expenses are charged on the
same basis as the base management fee; one quarter 1o income and three quarters to capital. Total other administrative expenses
charged to both income and capital are £797000 (2020: £796,000).

Other expenses include broker fees, marketing and PR costs, Directors’ National Insurance ard recruitment, Registrars and
listing fees, and annual report and other publication printing and distribution cosls. These expenses are tharged solely to the
fevenue account.

VAT on costs incurred in connection with the extension of the residential teases on The Colonnades are charged to the capital account.

7 FINANCE COSTS
2021 2020
£'000

Bank loans and overdrafts repayable within 1 year 1,241 1,866
Loan notes repayable after 5 years 1,384 1,391
HMRC interest: release of Fil GLO provision (240) -
2,385 3,257
Amount allocated to capital return (1,969) (2,443)
Amount allocated to revenue returmn - 116 814
8 TAXATION

a) Analysis of charge in the year

2021 201 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return Return

£000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000

UK corporation tax at 19% {2020: 19%) 1,989 {1,989) - 3,362 (3,149) 213
Overseas taxation - B6s 8 874 2,606 - 2,606
2,855 (1,981) 874 5,968 (3.149) 2,818

{Over)/under provision in respect of prior

years ~ {1,980) - {1980) (406) - {406)
875 (1,981} {1,106) 5,562 (3,149) 2,413

Delerred taxation ~ (103) {686) (799) 350 - 350
Cusrent tax charge for the year 767 (2,667) (1,900) 5912 (3,149) 2,763
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

8 TAXATION continued

b) Factors affecting total tax charge for the year
The tax assessed for the year is lower (2020. lower) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK for a farge company of 19%
(2020: 19%).

The difference is explained below:

201 2021 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return Return
£'000 £000 £000 £000 £'600
Net profit/{loss) on ordinary activities
before taxation 39,656 192,853 232,509 52,306 (197,550) (145,244)
Corporation tax charge at 19% (2020:19%) 7,535 36,642 44,177 9,938 (37,535) (27.597)
Effects of:
Non taxable gains on investments - (37,357) (37,351) - 29187 29,187
Currency movements not taxable - 877 877 - {2,204) (2,204)
Tax relief on expenses chatged to capital - 139 139 - {1,038) (1,038)
Non-taxable returns (23) {3,380) (3,403) - 8,566 8,566
Non-taxabie UK dividends (972) - (972) (1,043) - (1,043}
Non-taxable overseas dividends {4,573) - (4,573) (5,540) - (5,540)
Overseas withholding taxes 866 8 874 2,606 - 2,606
Deferred tax prior year adjustment (108) {686) (794) - - -
(Over}/under provision in respect of prior
years (1,980) - (1,980) (406) 5 {a01)
Disallowable expenses 19 - 19 69 (43 26
Deferred tax not provided 3 1,084 1,087 288 (87} 201
767 {2,667) {1,900) 5512 (3.,149) 2,763

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets of £2,703,000 (2020: £nif} arising as a result of losses carried forward.

It is considered too uncertain that the Group will generate profits in the relevant companies that the losses would be available to
offset against and, on this basis, the deferred tax asset in respect of these expenses has not been recognised.

Due to the Company's status as an Investment Trust, and the intention to continue meeting the conditions reguired to obtain
approval for the foreseeable future, the Company has not provided deferred tax on any capital gains arising on the revatuation or
dispasal of investrnents.

<) Provision for deferred taxation
the amaunts for deferred taxation provided at 19% (2020: 19%) comprise:

Group
pliral 201 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return Return

£000 £°000 £000 £000 £000
Accelerated capital allewances - - - 108 - 108
Unutilised losses carried forward - (686) (636) - - -

Shown as:
Deferred tax (asset)/liabitity - {636) {686) 108 - 108
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8 TAXATION continued
¢) Provision for deferred taxation continuved

Company
2021 201 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return Return
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £00¢
Accelerated capital allowances - - - 108 - 108
Unutilised losses carried forward - (686) (686) - - -
Shown as:
Deferred tax (asset)/liability - {686) (686) 108 - 108

The movement in provision in the year is as follows:

Group vz
2021 2021 2020 2020 2020 55
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total 2o
Return Return Return Return =2
£000 £'000 £'600 £'000 £000 ¢
Provision at the start of the year 108 - 108 107 (350) (243)
Accelerated capital allowances {108) - (108) 1 350 Ly
Unutilised losses carried forward - (686) (686) - - -
Provision at the end of the year - (686) (686) 108 - 108
Company
2021 2021 2620 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return Return
£000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000
Provisien at the start of the year 108 - 108 107 (350) (243)
Accelerated capital allowances (108) - {108) 1 350 351
Unutilised losses carried forward - (686) (686) - - -
Provision at the end of the year 7 - {686) (686) 108 - 108

9 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
Eamings/{loss) per Ordinary share
The earnings/{loss} per Ordinary share can be analysed between revenue and capital, as below.

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

£000 £000

Net revenue profit 38,889 46,394
Net capital profit/(loss) 195,520 (194,407}
Net total profit/(loss) 234,409 (148,007}
Weighted average number of shares in issue during the year 317,350,980 317,350,980
Revenue earnings per share 12.25 1462
Capital earnings/(loss) per share 61.61 (61.26)
Earnings/(loss) per Ordinary share 73.86 {46.64)

The Group has no securities in issue that could dilute the retuin per Ordinary share. Therefore the basic and diluted return per
Ordinary share are the same,
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10 INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE
a} Analysis of investments

Company Group Company

2021 2020 2020

£°000 £000 £000

Listed in the United Kingdom 394,176 394,176 351,506 351,506
Unlisted in the United Kingdom 1,468 1,468 682 682
Listed Overseas 921,801 921,801 708,597 708,597
Investment properties 83,071 83,07 94,510 94,510
Investments held at fair value 1,400,516 1,400,516 1,155,295 1,155,295
investments in subsidiaries at fair value - 43,312 - 50,429

1,400,516 1,443,828 1,155,295 1,205,724

b) Business segment reporting

Gross Gross

Valuaticn Net Net IREUTELTD] revenue revenue

3t March  additions/ appreciation/ JEIRCETL 31 March 31 March

2020 (disposals)  (depreciation) 201 2021 2020

£'000 £'600 £000 £'000 £'000 £000

Listed investments 1,060,103 58,477 197397 1,315,977 36,403 46,964
Unlisted investments 682 - 786 1,468 154 148
Contracts for difference 8,698 (26,817) 17,978 (141) 3,320 5,724
Tetal return swap {3,808) 3,996 (188} - - -
Total investments segment 1,065,675 35,656 215,973 1,317,304 39,877 52,836
Direct property segment 94,510 {9,838) {1,601) 83,07 4,236 5,201
1,160,185 25,818 214,372 1,400,375 44,113 58,037

I seeking to achieve its investment objective, the Company invests in the shares and securities of property companies and property
related businesses internationally and alsa in investment property located in the UK. The Company therefore considers that there
are two distinct reparting segments, investments and direct property, which are used for evaluating performance and allocation of
resources. The Board, which is the principal decision maker, receives information on the two segments on a reqular basis. Whilst
revenue streams and direct property costs can be attributed to the reporting segments, general administrative expenses cannat be
split to allow a profit for each segment to be determined. The assets and grass revenues for each segment are shown above.

The praperty costs included within note 3 are £1,321,000 (2020: £1,984,000) and deducting these costs from the direct property
gross revenue above would result in net income of £2,915,000 (2020: £3,217,000) for the direct property reporting segment.
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10 INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE continued
¢) Geographical segment reporting

Gross Gross
valuation Net [\ valuation revenue revenue
31 March  additions/ appreciation/ FEIRVENNG 31 March 31 march
2020  (disposals)  (depreciation) 2021 201 2020
£'000 £°000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000
UK listed equities and convertibles 351,506 (30,616) 73,286 394,176 10,265 16,963
UK unlisted equities 682 - 786 1,468 154 148
UK direct property* 94,510 (9.338) (1,601) 83,071 4,236 520
Continental Furopean listed equities 708,597 89,093 124,1M 921,801 26,138 30,001
1,155,295 48,639 196,582 1,400,516 40,793 52,313
UK contracts for difference? 50N {13,108) 8,621 584 1,242 2,14
European contracts for difference? 3627 (13,709) 9,357 (725) 2,078 3,010 =
3
UK total return swap® (3,808) 399 (138) - - - g %
1,160,185 25,818 214,372 1,400,375 44,113 58,037 E 7

included in the above figures are purchase costs of £741,000 {2020: £460,800) and sales costs of £184,000 (2020: £199,000).

These comprise mainly stamp duty and commission.

The Company received £329,(18,000 (2020: £367,977,000) from investments, including direct property, sold in the year. The book cost
of these investments when they were purchased was £266,450,000 (2020: £317,581,000). These investments have been revalued
ovet time and until they were sold any unrealised gains/losses were included in the fair value of the investments.

' Net additions/(disposals) includes £465,000 {2020: £981,000) of capital expenditure. Net appreciation/{depreciation) includes
amounts in respect of rent free periods.

2 Gross revenue for contracts for difference relates ta dividends receivable, on an ex dividend basis, on the underlying positions
held. The appreciation/(depreciation) In CFDs relates to the movement in fair value in the year.

3 The depreciation in the TRS relates to the mavement in fair value in the year until maturity,

d) Substantial share interests
The Group held interests in 3% or mote of any class of capitat in 10 companies (2020: 8 companies) in which it invests. None
of these investments is considered significant in the context of these financial statements. See nate 21 on pages 96 and 97 for
further details of subsidiary investments.

e) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are carried in the Balance Sheet either at their fair value (investments) or the balance
sheet amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value (due from brokers, dividends and interest receivable, due to brokers,
accruals and cash at bank).

Fair value hieraschy disclosures
Categorisation within the hierarchy has been determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement of the relevant asset as follows:

Level 1 - valued using quoted prices in an active market for identical assets.
Level 2 - valued by reference to valuation techniques using observable inputs other than quoted prices within Level 1.
Level 3 - valued by reference to valuation techniques using inputs that are not based on observable market dala.

The valuation techniques used by the Group are explained in the éccounting policies in notes 1 {f) and 1 {g}.
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10 INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE continued

¢) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities continued
The table below sets out fair value measurements using IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy.

Financial assets/(liabilities) at fair value through profit or loss

At 31 March 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £000

Equity investmenls 1,315,977 - 1,468 1,317,445

Investment properties - - 83,071 43,071
Contracts tor difference - {(1a1) - (141)
Foreign exchange forward contracts - {1,107) - (1,107)

1,315,977 (1,248) 84,539 1,399,268

At 31 March 2020 tevel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

£'000 £'000 £000 £'060

Equity investments 1,060,103 - 682 1,060,785

Investment propecties - - 94,510 94,510

Contracts for difference - 8,698 - 8,698
Total return swap - (3,808) - (3,808)
Foreign exchange forward contracts (5.609) - (5,609)

1,060,103 (19 95,192 1,154,576

The table above represents the Group’s fair value hierarchy. The Company’s fair value hierarchy is identical except for the inclusion
of the fair vatue of the investment in Subsidiaries which at 31 March 2021 was £43,312,000 (2020: £50,429,000). These have been
cateqorised as level 3 in both years. The movement in the year of £7,117000 (2020: £13,000) is the change in fair vatue in the year,
which includes a distribution from a subsidiary cornpany of £6,435,000 and the release of a corporation tax provision of £348,600
in a subsidiary company. The tota! financial assets at fair value for the Company at 31 March 2027 was £1,443,828,000 (2020:
£1,214,422,000).

Reconciliation of movements in financial assets categorised as level 3

At 31 March 2021 31 March Appreciation / ELLEIL]
2020  Puichases Sales (Depreciation)
£000 £000 £000 £000
Unlisted equity investments 682 - - 786 1,468
investment properties o
- Mixed use 52,623 5 (303) (4,658) 47977
- Office & industrial 1,887 150 (10,000 3,057 35,094
94,510 465 (10,303) (1,607 83,071
95,192 465 {10,303) (815) 84,539

All appreciation/(depreciation) as stated above refates to movernents in fair value of unfisted equity investments and investrnent
properties held at 31 March 2021,

The Group held one unguoted investment at the year end (see 11.6 averleaf).

Transfers between hierarchy levels
There were no transfers during the year between any of the levels.
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10 INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE continued

Sensitivity information for Investment Property Valuations
The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy of
investment properties are:

@ Estimated rental value: £6.5 - £65 per 5q ft {2020: £6.5- £65)
® Capitalisation rates: 2.0% - 6.0% (2020: 2.0% - 6.0%)

Significant increases (decreases) in estimated rental value and rent growth In isolation weuld result in a significantly higher (lower}
fair value measurement. A significant increase (decrease) in long-term vacancy rate in isolation would result in a significantly lower
(higher) fair value measurement. ‘

There are interrelationships between the yields and rental values as they are partially determined by market rate condition. The
sensitivity of the valuation 1o changes in the most significant inputs per tlass of investment property ate shown below:

Estimated movement in fair value of investment properties at office & - -
31 March 2021 arising from Retail  Industrial BEZ
£000 £000 2
2
2
Increase in rental value by 5% 310 1,585 50 1,945 ©
Decrease in rental value by 5% {250) (1,610) (25) {1,885)
Increase in yield by 0.5% {4,040) {5,835) (925) (10,800)
Decrease in yield by 0.5% 5,155 9,505 1,325 15,985
Estimated movement in fair value of investment properties at Office &
31 march 2020 arising from Reiail industrial Other Total
£000 £'000 £000 £000
Increase in rental value by 5% 1,300 1,780 - 3,080
Decrease in rental value by 5% {1,225) (1,720 - (2,945)
Increase in yield by 0.5% {5,025} {6,005) {950} {11,980)
Decrease in yield by 0.5% 6,750 9355 1,365 12,470

11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Risk management policies and procedures

The Group invests in equities and other instruments far the long term in the pursuit of the investment Objectives set out on
page 24. The Group is exposed to 3 variety of risks that couid result in either a reduction or an increase in the profits available for
distribution by way of dividends.

The principal risks the Group faces in its portfolio management activities are:
& Market risk (comprising price risk, currency risk and interest fate risk)

@ Liquidity risk

® (redit risk

The Manager’s policies and processes for managing these risks are summarised on page 25 and have been applied throughout the
yeai.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS confinued

11.1 Market price risk
By the very nalure of its activities, the Group’s investments are exposed to market price fluctuations,

Management of the risk
The Manager runs a diversified portiolio and reparts to the Boaid on the portfolio activity and performante at each Board meeting.
The Board monitors the investment activity and strategy to ensure it is compatible with the stated objectives.

The Group’s expesure to changes in market prices on its quoted equity investments, CFDs and investment property portfolio, was as

follows:
2021 2026
£000 £'000
Investments held at fair vafue 1,400,516 1,155,295
CFD fong gross exposure 146,001 56,728
TRS long gross exposure - 6,598

Concentration of exposure to price risks

As set out in the Investment Policies on page 25, there are guidelines to the amount of exposute to a single company, geographical
region or direct properly. These guidelines ensure an appropriate spread of exposure to individual or sector price risks. As an
investment company dedicated to investment in the property sector, the Group is exposed to price movements across the property
asset class as a whole.

Price risk sensitivity

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the profit after taxation for the year and the value of shareholders’ funds to an
increase or decrease of 15% in the fair values of the Group's equity, fixed interest, CFD and direct property investments. The level of
change is consistent with the illustration shown in the previous year. The sensitivity is based on the Group’s equity, fixed interest,
CFD and direct property exposure at each balance sheet date, with all other variables held constant.

2021 2021 2620 2020
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
in fair in fair in fair in fair
value value value value
£000 £000 £000 £000

Statement of Comprehensive Income - profit after tax

Revenue retuen (103) 103 77) 77
Capital return 209,801  (209,801) 173,817 (173,817)
Change to the profit after tax for the year/shareholders' funds 209,698 {209,698) 173,740 (173,740)
Change to total earnings per Ordinary Share 66.08p {66.08)p 54.75p {54.75)p
11.2 Currency risk

A proportion of the Geoup’s portiolio is invested in overseas securities and their Sterling value an be significantly affected by
movements in foreign exchange rates.

Management of the rigk

The Board receives a report at each Board meeting on the propartion of the investment portfolic held in Sterling, Eurcs or other
currencies. The Group may sometimes hedge foreign currency moverments outside the Eurozone by funding investments in gverseas
securities with unsecured oans denominated in the same currency or through forward cumency contracts.

Cash depaosits are held in Sterling and/or Euro deneminated accounts.
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Foreign currency exposure
At the reporting date the Group had the following exposure:
(Sterling has been shown for reference)

Sterling 28.0% 27.0%
turo 51.0% 53.0%
Swedish Krona 13.0% 11.0%
Other 8.0% 9.0%

The following table sets out the Group's total exposure to foreign currency risk and the net exposure to foreign currenties of the net
monetary assets and liabilities:

Swedish .

sterling Krona EE

2021 £'000 £000 2o

A z
Receivables (due from brokers, dividends and other income receivable) 49,462 10,668 561 299
Cash at bank and on depaosit 22,853 4,339 650 1,272
Bank loans, loan notes and overdrafts (95,000) - - -
Payables (due to brokers, accruals and other creditors) {10,142) (1,031) - -
FX forwards {61,209) - 13,848 46,254
Total foreign currency exposure on net monetary items —(54,0:!_6)_ - 13797"6 15,059 47,825
Investments held at fair value 478,715 707,968 155,635 58,198
Non-cuirent assets 686 - - -
Non-curent liabilities (15,000) (42,593) - -
Total currency exposuse 310365 76?9,3517 o 170,65& 106,023

Swedish

Sterling Euro Krona Other
2020 £000 £000 £000 £000
Receivables (due from brokers, dividends and other income receivable) n,552 27,495 634 413
Cash at bank ard on deposit 25,602 11,922 962 1,643
Bank loans, }oan notes and overdrafts {40,000) - - -
Payables {due to brokers, accruals and other creditors) (8,026) {6,076) - -
FX forwards (133,731) 62,014 22,525 43,583
Total foreign currency exposure on net monetary items (124,603) 95,355 24121 45,639
nvestments held at fair value 446,698 551,576 100,836 56,185
Non-current assets (15,108) (44,246) - -
Total currency exposure 306,987 602,685 124,957 101,824

Foreign currency sensitivity
The fallowing table illustrates the sensitivity of the profit after tax for the year on the Group’s equity in regard to the exchange rates
for Sterling/Euro and Sterling/Swedish Krona and other currencies.

It assumes the following changes in exchange rates:
® Sterling/Eurg +/- 15% {2020:15%)
@ Sterling/Swedish Krona +/- 15% (2020:15%)
@ Sterling/Other +/- 15% (2020:15%)
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Notes to the Financial Statements continyed

11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued
Foreign currency sensitivity continved

If Sterling had strengthened against the currencies shown, this would have had the foliowing effect:

Year ended March 2027 Year ended March 2020
Swedish Swedish
Euro Krona Euro Krona Other
£'000 £°000 £'000 £'000 £'000
statement of Comprehensive Income -
profit after tax
Revenue return (2,726) (589) (250) {(3,016) {340) (99)
Capital return (83,243) (20,269) (7,579) {Nn,091) (13,132) (2317)
Change to the profit after tax for the
year/sharehoiders’ funds (85,969) {20,858) {7,829) (74,107) {13,472) (7,416}
2020
change to tota! earnings per Ordinary share (36.13)p (29.93)p
If Sterling had weakened against the currencies shown, this would have the following effect:
vear ended March 2021 Year ended March 2020
Swedish Swedish
Euro Krona Euro Krona other
£000 £000 £°000 £'000 £000
Statement of Comprehensive Income ~
profit after tax
Revenue return 3,4M 732 318 4,971 423 1
Capital return 124,633 27,440 10,262 97,685 17780 9909
change to the profit after tax for the
yeas/shareholdeis’ funds 128,044 28172 10,580 102,656 18,203 10,022
2020
Change to total earnings per Ordinary share 52.56p 41.24p

11.3 Interest sate risk
interest rate movements may affect:

® the fair value of any investments in fixed interest securities;

@ the fair value of the foan notes;

@ the level of income receivable from cash at bank and on depasit;
@ the level of interest expense on any variable rate bank loans; and
® the prices of the underlying securities held in the portfolias.

Management of the risk

The passible etfects on fair value and cash tlews that could arise as a result of changes in interest rates are taken into account when
making investment decisions. Property companies usually have borrowings themselves and the leve! of gearing and structure of its
debt portfalio is a key factor when assessing the investment in a property company.

The Group has fixed and has had variable rate borrowings during the year. The interest tates an the loan naotes is fixed, details are
set out in note 13. In addition to the loan notes the Group has unsecured, multi-currency revalving ioan facilities which cairy variable
rates of interest based an the currencies drawn, plus a margin. These facilities total £130,000,000 (2020: £170,000,000).
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Management of the risk continued

The Manager considers both the level of debt on the balance sheet of the Group {i.e. the loan notes and any bank loans drawn)
and the “see-through” gearing, taking into account the assets and liabilities of the underlying invesiments, when considering the
investment portfolic. These gearing levels are reported regularly to the Board.

The majority of the Group’s investment portfolio is non-interest bearing. As a result the Group's financial assets are not directly
subject to significant amounts of risk due te Hluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates.

Interest rate exposure
The exposure at 31 March of financial assets and financial liabilities to interest rate risk is shown by reference to:

@ floating interest rates: when the interest rate is due o be re-sel;

@ fixed interest rates: when the financial instrument is due to be repaid.

The Group's exposure to Hoating interest rates on assets is £80,027,000 (2020: £79,651,000).
The Group’s exposure to fixed interest rates on liabilities is £152,593,000 (2020: £99,246,000).
The Group’s exposure fo floating interest rates on liabilities is £nil (2020: £nil}.

IVIDNYNLS

Interest receivable and finance costs are at the following rates:

»
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® interest received on cash balances, or paid on bank overdrafts, is at a margin over LIBOR or its foreign currency equivalent
(2020: same).

@ Interest paid on borrowings under the multi-currency loan facilities, is at @ margin over LIBOR or its foreign currency equivalent for
the type of loan (2020: same).

@ The finance charges on the €50m and £15m lgan notes are at interest rates of 1.92% and 3.59% respectively.

The year end amounts are not representative of the exposure to interest rates during the year as the level of exposure changes
as investments are made in fixed interest securities, borrowings are drawn down and repaid, and the mix of borrawings between
floating and fixed interest rates changes.

Interest rate sensitivity
A change of 2% on interest rates at the reporting date would have had the following direct impact:

20 2021 2020 2020

2% 2% 2% 2%

Increase  Decrease increase Decrease

£'000 £'000 £000 £000

thange to shareholders’ funds (1,176) 1,176 (317) n7
Change to total earnings per Ordinary share (0.37)p 0.37p {0.10)p 0.10p

This level of change is not representative of the year as a whole, since the exposure changes throughout the period.

This assessment does not take into account the impact of interest rate changes on the market vatue of the investments the
Group hotds.

11.4 Liquidity risk
Unquoted investments in the partfolio are subject to liquidity risk. The Group held one unquoted investment at the year end (see
11.6 below).

In certain market conditions, the liquidity of direct property investments may be reduced. At 31 March 2021, 6% {2020: 8%) of the
Group’s investment portfelioc was held in direct property investments.

At 31 March 2021, 94% (2020: 92%) of the Group’s investment portfolio is held in listed securities which are predominantly
readily realisable.

Bank loan facilities are short term revoiving loans which it is intended are renewed or replaced but renewal cannot be certain. Loan
notes of €50m and £15m are repayable in February 2026 and 2031 respectively.

The table shows the timing of cash outflows to settle the Group's current liabilities together with anticipated interest costs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Debt and Financing maturity profile

Within Within Within Within Within More than

1year 1-2years 2-3years 3-dyears 4-5years 5 years

At 31 march 2621 £000 E'000 £'000 £000 £000 E'D00
Bank loans® 95,000 - - - - - 95,000
Loan notes - - - - - 57,593 57,593

Projected interest cash flows on

bank and loan notes 2,178 1,356 1,356 1,356 1,356 2,693 10,295
Accruals and deferred income 10,719 - - - - - 10,719
Other creditars 110 - - - - - 110
108,007 1,356 1,356 1,356 1,356 60,286 173,117

Within Within Within Within within  More than
1year 1-2 yeass 23years 3-dyears  4-5years 5 years Total
Af 31 March 2020 £00¢ £000 £000 £060 £'006 £060 £000
Bank loans 40,000 - - - - - 40,000
Loan notes - - - - - 59,246 59,246

Projected interest cash flows on

bank and loan notes 1,388 1,388 1,388 1,388 1,388 4,081 11,021
Accruals and deferred income 3,812 - - - - - 3,812
Other creditors 294 - - - - - 294
45,494 1,388 1,388 1,388 1,388 63,327 114,373

* A £60m multicurency facility with RBS was renewed for one year in February 2021. £50m (2020: £10m) was drawn on this faclity at the batance sheet date. A
£30m one year faciiny with ING Luxembourg was renewed in july 2020. £30m (2020: £30m) was drawn on this facility at the balance sheet date. A £40m fatility
was renewed with ICBC in Navernber 2020, £15m (2020: £nil) was drawn on this facility at the balance sheet date,

Management of the risk

The Manager sets quidelines for the maximum exposure of the portfolio to unquated and direct property investments. These are set
out in the investment Policies on page 25. All unguated investments with a value over £1m and direct property investments with a

value over £5 million must be approved by the Board for purchase.

The Company maintains regular contact with the banks providing revolving facilities and renewal discussions commence wel ahead
of facility renewal dates. In addition the Company is exploring new opportunities for the provision of debt on an ongeing basis.

1.5 Credit risk

The failure of 3 counterparty to  transaction to discharge its obligations under that transaction couid result in the Group suffering
a loss. At the periad end the largest counterparty risk, which the Group was expesed to was within Debtors and Cash and cash
equivalents where the total bank balances held with one counterparty was £53,134,060 (2020: £46,731,000 two counterparties).

Management of the risk

Investment transactions are carried out with a number of brokers, whose credit standing Is reviewed petiodically by the Manager,
and limits are set on the amount that may be due from any one broket. Cash at bank is only held with banks with high quality

external credit ratings.

Credit risk exposwe

In symmary, compared to the amounts in the Balance Sheet, the maximurmn exposure to Ciedit risk at 31 Maich was as follows:

2021
Balance

Sheet
£000

Debtors
Cash and cash equivalents

60,990
29,114
90,104

201 2020 2020
Maximum Balance  Maximurm
exposure Sheet exposure
£000 £000

60,990 60,094 60,094
29,114 40729 40,129
90,104 100,223 100,223
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Where the receivables of the Group are exposed to credit risk, the requirement for impairment is assessed at each year end. For
all receivables, in the table above, no impairment has been recognised in relation to expected credit iosses as the impact of these
fosses is immaterial as at 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020: no impairment),

offsetting disclosures

In order to better define its contractual rights and to secure rights that will help the Group mitigate its counterparty risk, the Group may
enter into an ISDA Master Agreement or similar agreement with its OTC derivative tontract counterparties. An 1SDA Master Agreement
is an agreement between the Group and the counterparty that governs OTC derivatives and foreign exchange contracts and typicatly
contains, among other things, collateral posting terms and netting provisions in the event of a defauft and/or termination event. Under
an ISDA Master Agreement, the Group has a contractual right to offset with the counterparty certain derivative financial instruments
payables and/or receivables with collateral held and/or posted and create one single net payment in the event of defauit including

the bankruptey or insolvency of the counterparty. However, bankruptcy or insolvency faws of a particular jurisdiction may impose
restrictions on or prohibitions against the right of offset in bankruptcy, insolvency or other events.

The disclosures set out in the following tables include financial assets and financial fiabilities that are subject to an enforceable
masler nietting arrangement or simiar agreement.

At 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Group's derivalive assets and liabilities (by type and counterparty) are as foilows:

IVIONYNIL

Year ended 2021 Year ended 2020

4
b
m
=
m
r
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w

Net amounts Net amounts
of financial of financial
assets/ assets/
liabilities liabilities
presented in presented in
the Balance (ash collateral the Balance  Cash collateral
Sheet pledged Sheet pledged
£/000 £°000 £'000 £000

CFD positions:

Goldman Sachs f141) 50,913 8,698 31,525
(141) 50,913 8,698 31,525
TRS position:

ING - - (3,808) 7,997
- - (3,808) 7997

FX forward contracts: -
Bank of Montreal - - (2,582) -
Barclays - - (2,398) -
BNP Paribas - - (620) -
HSBC (1,107) - - -
Westpac - - © -
 (107) - (5.609) -

11.6 Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

Except for the loan notes which are measured at amortised cost (refer to Note 13), the fair values of the financial assets and
financial liabilities are either carried in the balance sheet at their fair value (investments) or the balance sheet amount is a
reasonable approximation of fair value (debtors, creditors, cash at bank and bank overdsafts, accruals and prepayments).

The fair vatues of the listed investments are derived from the closing price or last traded price at which the securities are quoted on
the London Stock Exchange and other recognised exchanges.

The fair value of contracts for difference are based on the underlying listed investrent value as set out above and the amount due
from or to the counterparty under the contract is recarded as an asset or liability accordingly, which is disclosed in Note 13 for the
current year.

The fair values of the properties are derived from an open market (Red Book) valuation of the properties on the Balance Sheet date
by an independent firm of valuers {Knight Frank}.

There was gne unquoted investment al the Balance Sheet date, Atrato, with a total value of £1,468,000 (2020: Atrato, £682,060).
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued
In the Parent Company accounts there are investments of £43,312,000 in unlisted subsidiaries which are classified as level 3.

The amounts of change in fair value for investments incleding net returns on CFDs recognised in the consclidated profit or loss for
the year was a gain of £214,372,000 (2020: loss of £198,698,000).

11.7 Capital management policies and procedures
The Group's capital management objectives are:

® 1o ensure that it will be able 1o continue as a going concern; and
® o maximise the total return to its equity shareholders through an appropriate balance of equity capital and debt.

The equity capital of the Group at 31 March 2021 consisted of called up share capital, share premium, capital redemption
and revenue reserves totalling £1,326,433,000 {2020: £1,136,453,000). The Group does not regard the loan nates and loans as
permanent capital.

The loan notes agreement requires compliance with a set of financial covenants, including:
@ Total Borrowings shall not exceed 33% of Adjusted Net Asset value;
® the Adjusted Total Assets shall at all times be equivalent to a minimum of 300% of Total Borrowings; and

@ the Adjusted NAV shall not be less than £260,000,000.

12 DEBTORS

Company Group Company
2021 2020 2020
£'000 £000 £000

Amounts falling due within one year:

Securities and properties sold for future settlement 267 267 5,020 5,020
Tax recoverable 4,231 3,761 1,414 1,292
Prepayments and accrued income! 5176 5176 5.082 5,082
Amounts receivable in respect of Contracts for Ditference - - 8,698 8,698
CFD margin cash 50,913 50,913 3,525 31,525
TRS margin cash - - 1997 7997
Cther debtors 403 403 358 358

60,950 60,520 60,094 59,972

Non-curren? assets
Deferred taxation asset 686 686 - -

Yincludes amounts in respect of rent free periods.
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13 CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Group Company Group Company
2021 2021 2020 2020
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Arnounts falling due within one year:

Bank loans and overdrafts 95,000 95,000 40,000 40,000

Securities and properties puichased for future settlement 194 194 5975 5,975

Amounts due to subsidiaries - 42,880 - 50,342

Amuounls payable in respect of Lontracts for Ditterence 141 111 - -

Amounts payable in respect of Total Return Swap - - 3,808 3,808

Tax payable 9 9 213 213

Accruals and deferred income 10,719 10,685 3,812 3,783

Foreign exchange forward contracts for settlement 1,107 1,107 5,609 5,609 e

Other aeditors 110 104 294 286 5 %
107,280 150,120 59,711 110,016 g E

Non-current liabilities:

1.92% Euro Loan Notes 2026 42,593 42,593 44,246 44,246
3.59% GBP Loan Notes 2031 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000
Deferred taxation - - 108 108

57,593 57,593 59,354 59,354
Loan Notes

On the 10th February 2016, the Company issued 1.92% Unsecured Euro 50,000,000 Loan Notes and 3.59% Unsecured GBP 15,000,000
toan Notes which are due to be redeemed at par on the 10th February 2026 and 10th February 2031 respectively.

The fair value of the 1.92% Euro Loan Notes was £42,732,000 (2020 £44,418,000) and the 3.59% GBP Loan Notes was £15,219.000
{2020: £15,553,000) at 31 March 2021.

Using the IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy the Loan Naotes are deemed to be categorised within Level 2.

The loan noles agreement requires compliance with a set of financial covenants, including:

@ Tota! Borrowings shall not exceed 33% of Adjusted Net Asset value;

® the Adjusted Total Assets shall at all times be equivalent to a minimum of 300% of Total Borowings; and
® the Adjusted NAV shall not be fess than £260,000,000.

The Company and Group complied with the terms of the loan notes agreement throughout the year.

Multi-currency revolving loan facilities
The Group also had unsecured, multi-currency, revoiving short-term toan facilities totalling £130,000,000 (2020: £110,000,000) at
31 March 2021. At 31 March 2021 £95,000,000 was drawn on these facilities (2020: £40,000,000).

The maturity of these facilities is shown in notes 1.3 and 11.4.
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13 CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES continued
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Long term short term

debt debt
Group and Company E'0G0 £000
Opening liabitities from financing activities at 31 March 2020 59,246 40,000 99,246
Cash flows:
Drawdown of bank loans - 55,000 55,000
Mavement on foreign exchange {1,653) - {1,653)
Closing liabilities from financing activities at 31 March 2021 57593 95000 152,593

14 CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

ordinary share capital
The balance classified as Ordinary share capital includes the nominal value proceeds on the issue of the Ordinary equity share
capital comprising Ordinary shares of 25p.

Issued, aliotted
and fully paid
Number £'000

Crdinary shares of 25p
At 1 April 2020 317,350,980 79,338
Al 31 March 201 317,350,980 79338

The voting rights are disclased in the Report of the Directors on page 43.
During the year, the Company made no market purchases for cancellation of Ordinary shares of 25p each (2020: none).
since 31 March 2021 no Ordinary shares have been puschased and cancelled.

15 SHARE PREMIUM ACCOUNT AND CAPITAL REDEMPTION RESERVE

share premium account
The balance classified as share premium includes the premium above nominal value from the proceeds on issue of the equity share
capital comprising Ordinary shares of 25p.

Capital redemption reserve
The capital redemption reserve is used to record the amount equivalent to the nominal value of purchases of the Company’s own
shares in ordet to maintain the Company’s capital.

16 RETAINED EARNINGS

Company Group Company

on 2020 2020

£000 £'000 £'000

Investment holding gains 335,322 360,663 206,072 238,51
Realised capital reserves 757,418 731,167 691,148 664,465
1,092,740 1,091,830 897,220 902,996

Revenue reserve 67,222 68,132 72,762 66,986
1,159,962 1,159,962 969,982 969,982

Group investment holding gains at 31 March 2021 include 3 £143,000 gain (2020: £643,000 loss) relating 10 unlisted investments and
gains of £45,201,000 (2020: £51,882,000 gains) relating to investment praperties.

Company investment helding gains at 31 march 2021 include gains of £70,685,000 (2020: £83,657,000) relating te unlisted and
subsidiary investments with a £44,061,000 revaluation gain (2020 £50,742,000} relating to investrment properties. Dividends are
only distributable from the revenue reserve.
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17 DIVIDENDS

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 march
20 2020

£000 £'000

Amounts fecognised as distributions to equity holders in the year:

Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020 of 8.80p 27,927 27292
(2019: 8.60p) per Ordinary share '
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 Masch 2021 of 5.20p
{2020: 5.20p) per Ordinary share 16,502 16,502

44,429 43,794

Amounts not recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year:
Proposed final dividend tor the year ended 31 March 2021 of 9.00p
{2020: 8.80p) per Ordinary share 28,562 27,927

the final dividend has not been included as a liability in these financial staternents in accordance with 1AS 10 “Events after the
Balance Sheet Date”.

Set out below is the total dividend to be paid in respect of the year. This is the basis on which the requirements of 51158 of the
Corporation Tax Act 2010 are considered.
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Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2021 2020

£000 £000

Interirn dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 of 5.20p

(2020: 5.20p) per Ordinary share 16,502 16,502

Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 of 9.00p
(2020: 8.80p) per Ordinary share o 23,562 27,927
45,064 44,429

18 COMPANY STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Cempany has nol presented ils own Statement of Comprehensive
Income. The net profit after taxation of the Company dealt with in the accounts of the Group was £234,409,000 (2020: £148,005,000
loss).

19 NET ASSET VALUE PER ORDINARY SHARE

Net asset value per Ordinary share is based on the net assets attributable to Ordinary shares of £1,326,433,000 (2020:
£1,136,453,000) and on 317,350,980 {2020 317,350,980) Ordinary shares in issue at the year end.

20 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
At 31 March 2021 the Group had capital commitments of £144,000 (2020: £132,000) but no contingent liabilities (2020: nif).
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21 SUBSIDIARIES

The Group has the following principal subsidiaries, al! of which are registered and operating in Scotland, England and Wales:

Name

New England Properties Limited

The Colonnades Limited

Showart Limited

Trust Union Propesties Residential Developments Limited
The Property investment Trust Ltd

The Real Estate Investment Trust Limited

The Tesra Property investment Trust Limited

Trust Union Property Investment Trust Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Five) Limited
Trust Unicn Properties {(Number Six) Limited

Trust Union Properties (Number Seven) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Eight) Limited
Trust Union Properties {(Number Nine) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Ten) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Eleven) Limited
Teust Union Properties (Number Twelve) Limited
Trust Union Properties {Number Thirteen) Limited
Trust Union Properties {Number Fourteen) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Fifteer) Limited
Trust Union Properties {Number Sixteen) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Seventeen) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Eighteen) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Bayswater) Limited

Trust Union Properties {Cardift) Limited

Tryst Unicn Properties (Theale) Limited

Tryst Union Properties (Number Twenty-Two} Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Twenty-Three} Limnited
Skillion Finance Limited

Trust Union Finance (1991) Pic

fGH Developments Limited

FGH Deveiopments (Aberdeen) Limited (E18030)
FGH (Newtastle) Limited

NEP (1994) Limited

New England Developments Limited

New England investments Limited

New England Retail Properties Limited

New England {Southern) Limited

Sapco One Limited

Trust Union Properties Limited

Trust Union Finance Limited

TR Property Finance Limited

Trust Union Propetties {South Bank) Limited

Req. Number
788895
2826672
2500726
2365875
2415846
2416015
2415843
2416017
2415839
2416018
2415836
2416619
2415833
2416021
2415830
2416022
2415818
2416024
2416026
2415806
2016027
2415768
2416030
2015772
2416031
2415765
2416036
2420758
2663563
1481476
5068799
1466619
977481
1385909
2613905
144721
178737
803940
2134624
1233998
2415941
2420097

Principal Activities
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Neon-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Noa-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company

Property investment
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
investment financing
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Nan-trading company
Non-trading company
Nop-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company

Investrnent holding and finance company
Investment holding and finance company

Nen-trading company
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21 SUBSIDIARIES continued
The Company has provided a quarantee for each of these subsidiaries in order for them to take the exemption from the requirement
of an audit, in line with the requirements of 5.479A of the Companies Act 2006.
Ali the subsidiaries are fully owned and all the hotdings are ordinary shares.
All companies have the reqistered office of 11-12 Hanover Street, London, W1S 1YQ with the exception of FGH Developments
(Aberdeen) Limited which is registered to 50 Lothian Road, Festival Square, Edinburgh EH3 9BY.

22 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS DISCLOSURES

Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on
consolidation. The balances are interest free, unsecured and repayable on demand.

0 2020
£7000 £'000

Amounts due by the Company to subsidiaries per note 13

The Colonnades Limited 22,619 22,619 32

. - s

1R Property Finance Limited 20,281 27743 2=z

New England Properties Limited {20) (20) g =
42,880 50,342

Remuneration of key management personnel
The remuneration of the directors, who are the key management personnel of the Company for each of the relevant categories
specified in 1AS 24: Related Party Disclosures is provided in the audited part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 56.

Directors’ transactions
Transactions in shares by directors are considered 1o be a related party liansaction due to the nature of their role as directors.

Movements in directors’ shareholdings are disclosed within the Directors” Remuneration Report on page 57.
Dividends totalling £17.000 (2020: £10,000) were paid in the year in respect of shares held by the Company’s directors.
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Giossary and AIFMD disclosure

1.0 ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Allemmative Peiformance Measures are numerical measures of the
Company's current or hustancal performance, financal position or
cash flows, other than the financial measures defined or specified
In the Financial Staterments

The measures defined below are considered to be Aiternative
Performance Measures |hey are viewed as particularly relevant
and are frequently quoted for closed ended investment
companies

Total Return

ihe NAV fotal Relurr 1s catculated by reinvesting the dividends
i the assets of the Company from the relevant ex-dividend
date. Dividends are deemed 1o be reinvested on the ex-dividend
date as this 1s the protocol used by the Company’s benchmark
and other indices. The Share Price Tetal Return 1s calculated by
reinvesting the dividends in the shares of the Campany from the
relevant ex-dividend date

NAV/share price per share at

31 March 2020 3581 3175
NAV/share price per share at

31 March 2021 41797 3925
Change in year 16.7% 23.6%
impact of dividends reinvested 4.0% 47%
Total Retu;;_f_or the year 20.7% 28,3%

Net Debt

net debt 1s the total value of loan notes, loans (including notianal
exposure 1o CFDs and 1RSs) less cash as a propertion of et asset
value.

Ihe net geanng has been calculated as follows

Loan notes 57,593 59,246
Loans 95,000 40,000
CFD positions (notional exposure) 146,001 56,728
TRS positien {notional exposure) - 10,405
Less: Cash (29,114) {40,129)
Less: Cash collateral {included
within ‘Other debtors’ in Note 12) {50,913) (39,522)
218,567 86,728
Equity shareholders’ funds 1,326,433 1,136,453
Net gearing 16.5% 7.6%

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

Sone U e

Ihe Ongaing Charges ratio has been calculated 1n accordance
with the guidance 1ssued by the AIC as the 1otal of Investment
management fees and administrative expenses expressed as a
percentage of the average Net Asset values throughout the year.
The definition of administrative expenses does include property
related expenses, the Ongaoing Charges calculation 1s shown
inclustve and exclusive of these expenses to allow comparison
of the direct administrative and management charges with

the majorty of Investment Trusts which do not hold any direct
property investments

Excluding
Performante
fees &

Direct
Propesty Costs
£000

ncluding

Extluding
performance Performance
Fees Fees

£'000 £000

Management Fee

(note 5) 15,884 6,225 6,225

Other

Administrative

expenses (note 6) 1,835 1,835 1,835

Praperty Costs 270 270 -

Less: Non

recutring

expenses - - -
17,989 8,330 8,060

Average Net 1283051 1,283,051 1,283,051

Assets

ongoing Charge o . 0

5021 1.40% 0.65% 0.63%

Ongoing Charge 0.80% 0.61% 0.59%

2020

The Ongoing charges ratia provided in the Company’s Key
information Docurment 1s calculated in ing with the PRIIPs
requlations which 1s different to the AIC methodclogy above

Key Performance Indicators

the Boaid assesses the performance of the Manager in meeting
the Trust's objective against a number of Key Performance
Indicators, these are considered to be Alternative Performance
Measures These are sel out an pages 26 and 27 of this report
together with infarmation about any calculahians or the source of
data
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2.0 GLOSSARY OF TERMS AND DEFINITIONS

AIFMD

Ihe Alternative Fund managers Directive |5 turopean legislation
which created 3 European wide framewark for requlating the
managers of “alternative investment funds” (Alks) 1115 designed
to regutate any fund which 15 nat a LCITS {Undertakings for
Collective Investment in liansferable Secunties) furd and which
Is managed o marketed in the tU

AlC
Ihe Assaclation af Investment Companies - the AlC s the
representative bady for closed-ended investrent comparies

Alternative Performance Measure

A financial measure of financal performance or inanaial pasition
gther than a financal measure defined ar specified in the
accounting statements

Discount

The amount by which the market price of a share of an
investrnent trust 1s towef than the Net Asset value per share
expressed as a percentage of the MAV per share,

Key Information Document

Under the PRIIPs Reguiatians a short, consummer fnendly Key
nformation Document 1s required setting out the key features,
rsks, rewards and costs of the PRIIP and 15 intended to assist
Tvestors 1o better understand the Irust and make compansons
between lrusts

The document includes estimates of investment perfermance
under a number ot scenarios These calculations are prescnbed
by the regulation and are based purely on recent historical ¢ata
It is important for investors 1o note that there 1s no judgement
appiied ard these da not in any way refiect the Board or
Manager’s views

Key Performance Indicator "KPE’

A“KP™ 15 a quantifiable measure that evaluates how successful
the trust 1510 meet.ng its abjectives The Trust's KPIs are
distussed on pages 26 and 27

MIFID

ihe Markets n tinancial Instruments Directive 15 the EU
legislation that requlates firms who provide services ta clients
linked to “f.nanciai instruments” (shares, bonds, umits In col'ective
investment schemes and derivatives) and the venues where
those 'nsiruments are tiaded

Net Asset Value (NAV) per share
Ihe value of lota: assels less Habiities (includirg borowings)
divided by the rumber of shares in issue.

3.0 ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENT FUND MANAGERS
DIRECTIVE {“AIFMD™)

in accordance with the AIFMD, formation 'r relation to the
Company's leverage and remuneration of the Company’s AlFM,

FEC Investment Business Limiled, 1s required 1o be made
avallable 10 investors. Detailed requlatary disclosures including
those on the AlFM's remuneration policy are available on the F&C
website or from F&C an request. The numerical remuneration
disclosuies In relation to the AlFM's first relevant account.ng
period will be made availlable in due couise.

Leverage
Under the AIFM Directive, 1t 15 necessary for Aits 1o disclose their
leverage n accordance with prescribed talculations.

Although leverage 15 ofter used as anather term for gearing,
under the AIFMD leverage 1s specifically defined Two types af
leverage calculations are defined; the gross and commitment
methods. These methods summarily express leverage as a ratio
of the expasure of the AIF against its net asset value. "kxposure’
typically includes debt, the value of any physical properties
subject to mortgage, non-Sterling currency, equily or currency
hedging at absolute notional vatues (even those held purely

for risk reduction purpeses, such as forward foreign exchange
contracts held for currency hedging) and dernvative expesure
(converted Into the equivatent underlying positions). The
commitmert method nets off derivative instiuments, while the
gross method aggregates them.

The table beiow sets oul the current maximum permitted imit
and the actual level of ieverage for the Company as at 31 March
2020

Leverage exposure method method
Maximum permitted limit 200% 200%
Actual 124% 118%

Ihe leverage himits are set by the AlFM and approved by the
Board and are in line with the limits set gut 1n the Campany'’s
Articles of Associatian

This stau d rot be confused with the gearing set out :n the
financia’ Highisghts which is calcuiated under the traditional
method set out by the Association of Investment Compar:es The
AFM 1S 2 s required Lo compy w th the geanirg parameters set
by the 3oarg ir re ation Lo borrowings
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THIS NOTICE 15 (MPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR
IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you are in any doubt as to the action you should take you
should seek your own advice from a stackbroker, sohotar,
accountant or other independent professional adviser who 1s
authansed under the Financiat Services and Markets Act 2000 1f
you are resident in the United Kingdormn, or if not, from arcther
appropriately authorsed independent financial adviser

If you have sald or atherwise transferred ali of your shares,
please pass this document, together with the accompanying
dacuments to the purrhaser, of transferee, or to the person wiw
aranged the sale or transfer so they can pass these docurnents
to the persan who now holds the shaies

our preference 15 to welcome shareholders in person to our 2021
AGM, particularly given the constraints we faced 1n 2020 due to
the COVID 19 pandemic. The Company Is continuing to manitor
the current COVID 19 legislation and public health guidance 1ssued
by the UK Government.

we have prepared for this AGM based on the antictpated status
of the UK Government’s roadmap out of lockdown at the date
of the meeting. It 1s expected that the AGM will be able to go
ahead as normal as a physical meeting

However, It may be necessary (o adapt our arrangements to
respond o any changes in crcumstances, including the poss:blity
of a delay to the further easing of restrictions Any changes to the
arrangements for the AGM (including any change to the location
of the AGM) will be carmmunicated to sharehalders befare the
meeting, including through cur website (www trproperty.com)
and wia an RNS announcement.

The meeting will be conducted in accordance with legislation
and public health guidance in farce at the time of the meeting
Depending on the arcumstances at the time of the meeting, 1t
may be necessary to immt physical attendance by shareholders
we regret that it will not be passible to provide refreshments
in the usual way If new restrictions are imposed, 1115 pessible
that we will not be in 2 position to accommodate shareholders
beyond the minimum required to hold 2 quorate meeting

Regardless of the current expectation for the physical meeting
to proceed as planned, we strongly encourage all shareholders
to vote in advance by proxy and appomt the Chairman of the
meeting as their proxy rather than any other named person,
whao may rot be permitied tc attend the AGM This wall ensure
that their vote will be counted if they (or any other proxy they
might otherwise appoint) are not able 1o attend the meeting. All
resclutions will be voted an by a pall

Sharehoiders interding to attend the AGM are asked to reqister
their intention as soon as practicable by email to the followirg
dedicated address cmuk-trpropertyinvestment@hinkgroup.co uk

Shareholders whe are nat able or do not wish (¢ attend the
meeling 1 person (regardless of ar easing of restrictions) wi-l be
able 10 watch a live webcast of the meeting 1his will incluce the
tarmal business of the meeting, the Manager’s presentatian and
questions and answers |he webcast wiil not enable shareholders
to participate in the meeting or vote However, shareholders wi'l
be inwvited 1o submit questions through our website, by 12 00
noan or 26 July 2021 Questions of a very similar nature may be
giouped together to ensure the orderly running of the AGM
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Shareholders are asked to cansult the website in the periad
leading up to the event where any restnctions of changes will
be set out and the format detailed when we know what will be
permitted at that time

Notice 18 heieby given that the Annual General Meeting of

IR Property Investment Trust plc {the "Company™) will be heid
al 2.20 pm on 27 July 2021 at the Royal Automebile Club, 89/91
Pall Mall, Landon SW1Y SHS far the purpose of transacting the
following business

lo consider and, if thought fit, pass the following Resolutions,

of which Resolutions 1to 11 will be proposed as Crdinary
Resolutions and Resolutions 12 to 14 shall be proposed as Speciai
Resolutions.

Io receive the Report of the Directors and the Audited
Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2021,

To approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report (other than the
part containing the Directors’ remuneration policy} for the year
ended 31 March 2021

To declare a final dividend of 9.00p per Grdinary share
To re-elect Simon Marnson as a Direclor

Ta re-elect David Walson 85 3 Director.

lo re-elect him Gillbanks as a Director

To re-elect Kate Bolsaver as a Director

lo re-elect Sarah-Jane Curlis as 3 Director

Ta re-appoint KPMG LLP (the "Auditor”) as Auditors of the
Company to hald office until the conclusion of the next Arnual
General Meeting of the Company

lo authanse the Directors to determine the remuneration of
the Auditors

SPECIAL BUSINESS

rdinasy resofution
THAT, 1 substitution for all such existing authenlies, the
Directors be generally and unconditionally authonsed
pisuant to and in accardance wilh Section 557 of
the Companies Act 2006 (the "Act™) to exerase all
the powers of the Company 1o allol shares in the
Company aad to grant nghts to subscibe for, or (o
convert any securty Intg, shares in the Company up Lo
a nomingal value of £76,181,455 (being approximately
33% of the tolal issued share capital of the Company
as at lhe latest practicable date prior 1o pubhication ol
this Nolice) provided that this authanty shall expire
at the date of the next Annual General tMeeling of
the Campany (or, 1f eariier, at the close of business
on 27 Oclober 2072}, save that the Company snall
be enbitled ta make cllers or agreements befare the
expivy of this authonty which would or might require
shares to be allotied ar nights Lo be granted after
such expiry and the Directors snall be enbitled to aflot
shares and grant nghts pursuant to any such offers or
agreements as 1f this authonty had not exprred
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SPECIAL RESGLUTIONS

THAT

{ay {in substitution for all such existing authonties and subyect
to the passing of Resalution 11 set out abave) the directors
be empowered pursuant to Section 570 and Section 573 of
the Act te allot equity secunties (as defined in Section 560
of the Act) far cash pursuant to the autharity canferred
by Resolution 11 above and/or to sell shares held by the
Company as treasury shares tor cash as if Secton 561(1) of
the Act did not apply ta any such allotment, provided that
this power shall be mited to-

(1) the allotment of eguity securities and sale of treasury
shares for cash 1n cannection with an offer of, or
mvitation to apply for, equity securities.

{aa) to shareholders in propartion (as nearly as may be
practicable) to therr existing haldings, and

{bb) to holders of other equity secunties, as required
by the rights af thase secunities, ar as the Board
otherwise considers necessary,

ana sa that the Board may :mpose any Imits of restnictions
and make any arrangemenrts which 1L considers necessary
of approprate o dezl with treasury shares, fractional
entitternents, record dates, legal, requlatary ar practical
problems in, or under the Yaws of, any lemiory of any other
imatter, and

{n}in the wase of the authenty granted under Resolution
11 and/or in the case of any sale of treasury shates
tor cash, to the allotmert (olherwise than upder
paragraph (1) above) of equity securities or sale of
treasury shares up to a nominal amount of £3,966,83/7
(being apmoximaiely 5% of the total issued share
capial of the Cornpany as at the latest practcabie date
prior to publication of the notice of meeting),

(b}the power qrven by this resalutian shall expire upon the
expiiy of the authonty confeired by Resowtion 11 above,
save that the Company shal' be entitied to make offers or
agteements before the expiry of such power which would
or might require equ.ty secunties 1o be auotted after such
expiry and the directars shall be entitied to ailol equity
secunities pursuant o any such offer or agreement as +f the
power (enferred hereby had nat expired

THAT the Comeany be ang 15 terely genesalry and
uncondimonally authonsed 1 accordance witi Section 703
of the Act o make marke! purchases fwithin e
meamng of Section 633(4) of the Actj of Brainasy shares
0F 25p 230 10 the capita’ of *he Company or sJdh terms
ardin sych manser as (he arecions may from ime 0

tme deteirming proviged that

{a} the max mum. number of Ordinery shares hereby
authansec 10 be purchased sha'l be 14 599% of the
(ocmrpany’s Oid rary shares in issue at the cate of the
Arral Cerera: Meeting (equvalent to 47 570,511 Crdirary
shares of 25p each al 3 Jure 2027, the ‘atest pracicable
date prof 1o pub.catan of th.s Neuge),

(b} the max:mum pnee {exclusive of expenses) which may
be paid tor any such share shall not be more than the
higher of:

(1) 105% of the average of the middle market quotations
for an Ordinary share as taken from the London Stock
Exchange Daty Official List for the five business days
immedidlety preceding the date on which the Company
agrees 1a buy the shares concerned, and

(1) the tugher of the price of the fast independent trade
and the fighest current independent bid for an Grdmnary
shate in the Company on the triading venue where the
purchase 1s carred out at the relevant time;

[c} the mmmum price (exclusive of expenses) which may be
paid for an Grdinary share shall be 25p, being the nominal
value per Oidinary shaie; and

{d)the authonty hereby conferred shall expire at the
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company
n 2022 (or. if earlier, at the ¢lgse of business on 27 Ociober
2022), save that the Company shall be entitled to enter
inta a confract to purchase Ordinary shares which wilt, or
may, be completed or executed whaolly ar partly aiter the
power expires and the Company may puschase Osdinary
shares pursuant Lo such contract as if the power conferied
hereby had not expired

THAT, with effect from the conclusior of this meeting,

the Articles of Assouation produced 1o the meeting and
nitialied by the Chairman aof the meeting for the purposes of
«dentification be hereby approved and adopted as the Articles
of Assaciatian of the Canpaiy, «o substitutian for, and to the
exchusion of, the existing Ashicles of Associalion

Registered Gtfice-

.
.g T

Registered in Englard No- 84492 11-12 Hangver Street

London
W15 1YQ
By Order of the Beard

tor and on behalf of

L-ng Qompany Matters winitern

Serretary

3 june 202
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Motice of Apnyal General Meeting

NOTES TC THE NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING

A member entitled o attend and vote at the meeting
convened by the abave Notice 1s entitled to appoint ane

o maore proxies to exercise alt or any of the nghts of the
member ta attend, speak and vote in his or her place
Shareholders are strengly encouraged to appaint the Chairman
of lhe meeting as thenr proxy, rather than any other named
person wha may not be perrmtted lo attend the AGM In the
event of restrictions or Hmits on attendance A proxy need

not be a shareholder of the Company 1o appoint mare than
nne proxy, the proxy form should be phototopied and the
name of the proxy to be appointed indicated on each proxy
form together wih the number of shares that such proxy 15
appointed in respect of Completion and submission of a proxy
mstruction will not preclude @ member from attending and
voting in person at the AGM (subject 1o any restrictions on
physical attendance).

To be valid any proxy form or other instrument appomting

a proxy must be returned by past, by couner or by hand to
the Campany's Registrars, Computershare Investor Services
PLC, The Paviions, Bridgwater Road, Bristol BS99 62Y, or
alternatively, by going to www eproxyappointment com
and following the instructions pravided Al proxies must

be appointed by no later than 48 hours before the time of
the AGM In the case of joint holders, where more than one
af the joint halders purparts Lo appoint a proxy, only the
appomtment submitted by the most seniar holder will be
accepled Seniority 15 deterrmined by the order in which the
names of the joint holders appear in the Company’s register
in respect of the joint holding (the first named being deerred
the mast senior}

In order to be able to attend and vote at the AGM or any
adjourned meeting (and also for the purpose of calculating
Fow many votes 3 person may cast), a person must have

his or her name entered on the Register of Members aof the
Company by 2.30 pm an 23 July 2021 {or 600 pm on the
date two days before any adjourned meeting) Changes to
entries on the Register of Members after this tme shall be
disregarded :n determining the rights of any person to attend
or vote at the meeting

voting will be conducted on a poll at the Meeting On a poll
vote every shareholder will through their proxy have one vote
for every ardinary share of which he or she s the hglder

Shareholders shauld nete that it1s possible that, pursuant to
requests made by sharehclders of the Company under Section
527 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company may be required
to publish gn a website a statement setting out any matler
relating to. (1) the audit of the Compary’s accounts (including
the auditor’s report and the conduct of the audit) that are to
be laid before the AGM, or (1) any circumstance connegted
with an auditor of the Company ceasing to hold office since
the previcus meeting at which annual accounts and reparts
were laid in accordance with Section 437 of the Compares
Acl 2006
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The Company may not require the shareholders requesting
any such website publication to pay its expenses in complying
with Sectigns 527 or 528 of the Companies Act 2006. Where
the Company Is required 1o place a statement on 2 website
under Section 527 of the Cempanies Act 2006, it must forward
the statement to the Campany’s auditor Aot later than the
tume when 1t imakes the statement avarlable on the website
The business which may be dealt with at the AGM ncludes
any statement that the Company has been reguired under
Section 527 of the Companies Act 2006 to publish on a
website,

Any corparation which s 8 member of the Company <an
appoint one of mare corporate representatives who may
exercise on its behalf all of 1ts powers as 8 member provided
that they do nat do so 1n relation o the same shares.

The right ta appamt a proxy does nat apply to persons whose
shares are held on their behall by another person and who
have been nominated to receive communication fram the
Campany in accordance with Section 146 of the Companies Act
2006 ("nominated persens”) Nominated persans may have

a nght under an agreement with the registered shareholder
who holds shares on their behalf to be appainted {or to

have sameone else appointed) as a proxy Alternatively, it
norninated persons do not have such a right, or do not wish
to exercise 1t, they may have a right under such an agreement
to give instructtons 1o the person holding the shares as to the
exercise of vating rights,

CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy of proxies
through the CRESI electionic proxy appamtment service

may da so for the AGM Lo be heid on 27 July 2021 and any
adjournment(s) thereof by using the procedures described in
the CREST Manual. CREST personal members ar other (REST
sponsored members, and thase CREST members who have
appointed a voting service pravider shauld refer to their CREST
sponsars ar voling service pravider(s), who wiil be abie ta
lake the appropriate action on their behalf

In order for 3 proxy appointment o instruction made by
means of CREST to be valid, the appropniate CREST message

{3 "CREST Proxy Instruction”) must be properly authenticated :n
accordance with Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited’s speaifications
and must contain the information required for such
instructions, as described ik the CREST Manuai [he message
must be transmitted so as 1o be received by the Company’s
agent, Computershare Inivestor Services PLC (CREST Participant
iD. 3RA50), no later than 48 hours before the time appointed
far the meeting For this purpase, the time of receipl w:ll

be taken to be the time (25 determined by the ume stamp
applied to the message by the CRESI Application Host) from
which the Company’s agent is able (G retrieve the message by
enquiry to CREST in the manner prescribed by CREST

(REST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponscr of
voting service provider should note that turoclear UK & Ireland
Lim:ted does not make available speciat procecures in CREST
for amy particular messages
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Normal system timings and imitations wilt therefore apply

in refation {o the input of CREST Proxy Instructions. it s the
responsibihty of the (REST member concerned to take {or, f
the (REST rnember 15 a CREST personal rnember or sponsored
member or has appointed a voling service provides, 10 procure
that his or hei CREST sponsor of voting service provider

takes) such aclion as shall be necessary 1o ensure that a
message 15 transmitted by rneans of the CREST system by any
particular ume In this conneclion, CREST members and, where
applicable, then CREST sponscr of voling service provider are
referred 1n particular to those sechons of the CREST Manual
concerning practical limitations of the CRES( system and
timings fhe Company may tieal as invalid 8 CREST Proxy
instruction n the ciicumstances set aut in Regulation 35(5)(a)
of the Uncerliticated Secuninies Regulations 2007,

Any member attending the meeting {subject o any
restnctions in place at the tme of the meeting) has the nght
to ask quastions [he Company must cause to be answered
any such question relating o the business bemng dealt witl at
the meeting bu! no such answet need be qiven i {3} to do so
would interfere unduly with the preparaiion for the meeting
or nvolve the disclosure of confidential wioimation; (b) the
answer has already been gwen on a website in the tarm of an
answer 1o a question, of (¢} 1ts undesirable in the interesis
aof the Company of the good order of the meeting that the
quest:on be answered Questicas of a very similar nature may
be grouped together to ensure the orderly running of the
AGM

A copy af this notice, and ather infarmation required by
sectian 311A of the Carrpanies Act 2008, ar be found at
WWww LTRroperty (om

Members satisfying the thieshelds in section 338 of the
Companies Act 2006 meay require the {ompany 1o give, io
members of the Company enfitled to receve notice oi the
AGM, natice of 3 resgiution which those members interd 16
mave (and which may properly be moved) at the AGM. A
resolution may preperly be moved at the AGM unless

(1) would, if passed, be weHecthive (whether by reason of
apy incansistency with any enactment of the Company's
constitution or otherwise), {ny 11's defamatery ot any person,
ar (g 1t s frivolous of vexatious A request made pursuant
1o this right may be in hard copy or electronic form, must
«dentify the resolution of which notice 1s to be given, must
be authenlicated by the peison(s) mawing it and muyst be
received by the Company rot later than six weeks before the
date of the AGM

- Members satistying the threshoids in secticn 3384 of the
Campanies Act 2008 may request the Cempany 10 Inc'ude
‘n the business to be dea't wth at the ACM any matter
(cther than 2 preposed resclution) which may properly e
re’uced inthe business at the AGM A malter may prcperly
be incivdec in the brsmess at the AGM uniess (it s
celarnatary of any perscn, ar (i} 101s frvolous ar wexataus
Arequest mace purstert [¢ this right may be i bard capy
or e'ecticnic form, mLst 'Centify the ratter to be ireluded
the business, must be accomparied by a stalemert selting
oLt the grounds for the request, must he authert.cated by the
perscn(s) makirg it and must be recetved by the Company not
\ater thar six weeks before the date of the AGMm

Biographicai detarls of the directors are shown on pages 38
and 39 of the Annual Report & Accounts

T As at 3 June 2021 (bemng the latest practicable day prior

to publication of this Notice), the 1ssued share capitab of

the Cornpany 15 317,350,980 Ordirary shaies of 25p each
Therefore, the tolal number of voting nghts in the Company at
3 june 202715 317,350,980

- 1he terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the

management Engagement Commitiee, the Nominatien
Commitiee, the New Articles of Assaciation and the Letters of
Appointment for directors wili be available for inspection for
at least 15 minutes prior ta and duiing the Company s AGM

You may nol use any electromg address provided ettherin
this Notice or any related documents to communicate for any
purposes other than those expressly stated

. The Company may process personal data of aitendees at the

Annual General Meeting This may include webcasts, photas,
recording and audio and widec links, as weli as other forms
of persanal data The Company shall process such personal
data In accordance with 1ts privacy polcy, which can found at
hitps://www trproperty com/leqal
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Explanation of Nobice ol Annual Gel

RESOLUTIONS 1, 2, AND 3: ACCOUNTS,
DIRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT AND
DIVIDEND

These are the resoluticns which deal with the presentation of
the audited accounts, the approval of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report and the declaration of the final dividend

1he vote to approve the Rermuneration Report 1s advisary onty
and wil not require the Campany to alter any arrangements
detailed 1n the report should the resclution not be passed

fhe Board 15 proposing a fina! dividend for the year ended

31 March 2021 of 900p per ordinary share, if approved at the
AGM, the Company would pay the dividend an 4 August 2021
to those sharehglders on the Company's register at the close af
business on 18 June 2021

RESOLUTIONS 4,5, 6, 7, AND B: RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

these resolutions deal with the re-election of Simon Marrison,
[im Gillbanks, David Watsan, Kate Bolsover and Sarah-jane
Curts. In accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Cade, all
directors will retire on an annual basis and have confirmed that
they will offer themselves for re-election,

A perfarmance evaluation has been completed and your Board
has deterrmined that each of the directors continues (o be
effective and demonstrates their cammitment to theis role,

their biographical details, which are set out on pages 38 and

39, demonstrate how the Board has the appropriate balance

of skills, experience independence and knowledye to fead the
Company’s lang-term sustainable success Accordingly, the Board
ynanimeysly recormmends therr re-electian

RESDLUTIONS 9 AND 10: AUDITORS

These deal with the reappointment of the Auditors, KPMG
LLP ard the authanisation for the directors to determine ther
remuneration

RESOLUTION 11 ALEDTMENT OF SHARE (APITAL

Our Board cansiders it approprate that an authority be granted

ta ailot shares in the capital of the Company up to a maximum
noeminal amount of £26,445,915 (representing approximatety one
third of the Company's 1ssued share capital as at 3 june 2021,
being the latest pract:cal date prior to publication of this Netice of
the meeting) As at the date of this netice the Company does not
hold any shares in tieasury.

Ihe directors have no present intentian of exerasing this
authority and would only expect to use the authonty if shares
(ouid be 1ssued at, or at a premium to, the Net Asset Value per
share

This authonty will expire at the earlier of close of business
on 27 October 2G22 and the corclusion of the Annual General
Meeting of the Company to be held in 2022

12~ TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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RESCLUTION 12: DISAPPLICATION OF STATUTORY
PRE-EMPTION RIGHTS

Ihus resolution would give the directors the authanty ta allot
shares (or sell any shares which the Company elects to hold
in treasury) for cash withaut fist offening them to existing
sharehalders in proportion to their existing shareholdings

Thrs authonty would be imited 1o allotments or sales in
connection with pre-emptive offers and offers to holders of
other equity secunties if requied by the nghts of those shares
or 35 the board otherwise considers necessary, or otherwise up
to an aggregate nomnal amount of £3,966,887 This aggregate
nominal amount represents 5% of the total 1ssued share capital
of the Company as at 3 June 2021, the latest practicable date
pror to publication of this Natice In respect of this aggregate
nominal amount, the directors confirm their intention (o follow
the provisions of the Pre-emplion Gioup's Statement of Principles
regarding cumutative usage of authontres within a rolling
3-year period where the Prinuples provide Lhat usage in excess
of 75% shauld not take place without prior consultation with
sharehalders.

The autharity wilt expire at the earlier of close of business on
27 October 2022 and the conclusion of the Annuai General
Meeting of the Company to be held in 2022

RESOLUTION 13: AUTHORITY TO MAKE MARKET
PURCHASES OF THE COMPANY 'S ORDINARY
SHARES

At the AGM held 1 2020, a3 special resolution was proposed and
passed, giving the directors authanty, until the conclusion of the
AGM In 2021, to make markel purchases of the Company’s own
issued shares up to a maximum of 14.99% of the 1ssued share
capital

Your 3oard 15 proposing that they should be given renewed
autharity to purchase Qrdinary shares in the market. Your

Board believes thal to make such purchases in the market at
appraprate tnes and prices 1s a suitable method of enhanang
sharehalder value. The Company wauld, within guidelines set
from time to time by the Board, make either a single purchase or
a series of purchases, when market conditions are suitable, with
the aim of maximising the benefits to sharehoders

wheie purchases are made at prices below the prevailing Net
Asset value per share, this will enhance the Net Asset Value

for the remaining sharehalders It s therefore intended that
purchases would only be made at prices below Net Asset value
Your Board considers that it will be most advantagecus to
shareholders for the Company to be able to make such purchases
as and when it considers the iming to be favourable and
therefare does not propose lo set 3 tmetable fcr making any
such purchases

Ihe Companies {Acguisition of Owr: Shares) {Ireasury Shares)
Requiations 2003 enabie companies in the Lnited Kingdom to
hald In treasury any of their own shares they have purchased
with a view to possible resale at a future date, rather than
canceling them i the Company does re-puichase any ot ifs
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shares, the directors do not currently Intend Lo hald any of ire
shares re-purchased in treasury The shares so re purchased will
cantinue to be cancelled

The Listing Rules of the UK Listing Authanity himit the maximum
price (exclusive of expenses) which may be paid for any such
share it shall not be more than the higher of

(1) 105% of the averaqe of the middle market quotations for an
Grdinary share as taken from the London Stock bxchange Daily
Official List for the five business days immediately preceding
the date an which the Company agrees ta buy shares
coneerned, and

() the hugher of the price of the last independent trade and
the highest current independent bid for ar Qrdinary share in
the Company on the trading venue where the purchase 1s
carried out

the minimum price to be paid will be 25p per Ordinary

share (being the nominal value). the Listing Rules lsg frmt

a isted campany te purchases of shares representing up to
15% of its .ssued share capital In the market pursuant to g
general authonty such as this. For this reason, the Company 15
lmiting its authority to make such purchases 1o 14 99% of the
Companys Ordinary shares in 1ssue at the date of the AGM, th.s
15 equivalent to 47,570,971 Ordinary shares of 25p each (nominal
value £11,892,727) al 3 June 2027, the faiest practicable date
prior to publication this Notice The authonity weir iast unt!’ the
Arnual General Meeting cf the Company 1o be held in 2022

RESTGLUTION ©1 ADOPTION OF NEW ARTI{LES OF
ASSOUIATION

Resolution 14 reiates to the adoption of new Art.cles of
Asspaiaton (the "New Articles”) in order 1o update the
Company’s cunent Articles of Asscciation (the “Current Articles”),
which were adopted on 74 Decerrber 2072 The New Articles
rellect developments in best practice, and pravide addstional
clanfication anc tlexibilty The main changes .n the New Articies
are summoarised in the Appendix on pages 106 and 107 Other
changes, which are of a miner, technical or clanfying nature have
nat been roted n the Appendix the New Articles showing all
the changes ta the Current Articles are avallable for inspection,
al www tiproperty.com and will aiso be available at the Annua
Gereral Meeting

RECOMMENDATION

vour Boarc believes that the 1esolutions cortaned e this NGlice
of Arnual Gerefra, Meeting are i the best 'nterests of the
Company and sharehclders as a whole ara recomrmends that you
vote in favour of them as your Directors 'etend to do in respect of
thei berefical sharebcldings

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST




Explanation of Notire of Annual General Meeting

APPENDIX

Further information and Explanatory notes regarding
amendments to the Company’s articles of association

Sigrma Shares and Deferiad Shares

the New Articles amend the Cursent Articles to remove
pravisiens and references relating to Sigma Shares ang Deferred
Shares This reflects that on 14 December 2012 all Sigma Shares
were consolidated and redesignated as Ordinary Shares, and
the resultng Delerred Share was purchased by the Company for
cancellation. The Company now has a single class of Qidinary
Shares.

Untraced sharehoiders

The New Articles amend the position 1n relation to untraced
shareholders. Rather than requinng the Company tc take out
two newspaper advertisements, the New Artides reguire the
Company to yse regsenable efforts to trace the shareholder
‘Reascnable efforts’ Lo trace a shareholder may include, if
considered appropniate, the Company engaging a professional
asset reunification company or other tracing agent to search for
a shareholder who has not kept their sharehalder details up to
date

In addition, the New Articles provide that money from the sale
of the shares of an untraced shareholder wili be forfeited 1f not
claimed after two years, rather than six years.

ihese changes reflect best practice and provide the Company
with appropnate Hexibility it connectian weth locating untraced
shareholders

Sub-division of shaies

The New Articles clanify that any shares resulting from & sub
division of the Company’s existing shares may, 1n additior to
having any preference ¢f advantage as compared with the
Company’s other shares, also have deferred or clher nights This
change makes admimstering any sub-division of shares maore
stiaightforwan d

Operation of geneial meetings

The New Articles contain specific provisions to clanfy that the
Company can hold "hybrid” general meetings (incdluding annual
general meetings) and to set out how such meetings are to
be conducted. Under the New Articles, the Company may hold
“hybnd” general meetings in such a way that enables members
to attend and participate i the business of the meeting by
attending a physical location or by attending by means of an
electiomc faality voting at hybid meetngs wilt, by defauit, be
decided on a poll Hybnd meetings may be adjoumed :n the
event of a technological falure

the New Articles allow the Company, where appropriate, to make
changes to the arrangements for general meetings (Including the
ntrocuction, change or «ancellation ol electronic facilities) after
notice of the meeting has been issued the Company may give
notice of any such changes in any manner considered approprate
{rather than via ar advertisement In twg Nationai Newspapers)
The New Articles also explictly aliow the (ompany to introduce
health and safety arrangements at 1ts meetings

These changes were mtrcduced to pravide the Board greater
Hexibility to align with technaological advances, chances in
investor sentiment ard evolving best practice, particularly in light

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

of the Covid-19 outbreak and the uncertain duration of socal
distancing measures and restactions on gathenngs The Board
believes that hybrid meetings will allow for greater shareholder
and stakeholder engagement over the coming years 1n 8 way
that 1s more convenient for al! parties. Absent exceptional
crcumstances, members of the Beard intend to continue the
practice of attending generai meetings of the Company m person
In line with the views expressed by the Invesiment Association
and Institutianal Shareholder Services, the changes will not
permit meetings to be held exclusively on an electionic basis, so
a physical meeting will still be required In deuding whether and
how to hold a hybnd general meeting i future, the Conpany
will have regard to the views of shareholders and institutional
gavernance hadies at the relevant time as well as to relevant
guidance or codes of best practice

The New Articles alsa specifically refer to the possibility of
satellite/multi-venue meetings, such as the use of overflow
rooms Satellite meetings are legally valid even without such a
pravision but it has been added for danty

These changes are primanly contained in articles 47, 48, 50
and 53 1n the New Articles. A number of other consequentizi
amendments have been made to the New Articies.

Objections os Errnrs in Voling

In relation to the statutory requirement that a proxy imust vote
In accordance with any instiuctions given by the member by
whom the proxy is appomted, the New Articles state explicily
that the cormpany 1s not required to check that proxies and
corporate representatives have voted in accordance with ther
Instructions or that therr failure to de so would vitizte the result
of a shareholder vote.

Mumber of diectoss
The New Articles reflect the statutary mimimum of twa directors,
and introduce 3 maximum of 10 directars.

Reappointment of disectoss

'n hine with the requirements of the UK Corporate Governance
Code, the New Articles require directors to retire {(and shouid
they wish to remain in office, seek re-election) at each anouat
general meeting This requirement does not apply to directors i
therr first year of appointment who were appuinted in the period
between the AGM notice being issued and the AGMmatself. 1his
confirms existing Company practice

Duoctors fees

The Current Articles provide that the aggreqgate of all fees paid

to directars shall not exceed £250 600 per annum Article 88 of
the New Asticles increases this amount to £300,000 to reflect the
amount approved by resolution of the Company on 22 July 2014

Barmyviing Powars

The New Articles irclude w the definitian of "borFowings” the
minority propart.on of moneys borrowed by @ member of the
groLp and owing 1o a partly-owned subsidiary undertaking
{(with “the minonty proportion” meaning a proportion equal lo
the propartion of the 1ssued share capital of a partly-owned
subsidiary undertaking which s not attributable 1o a member of
the gioup)
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Forfeiture of undaimad dividontds

The Current Articles provide that if a dividend or other payment
due ta members has nol been claimed for twelve years alter
being ceclared or becaming due, it will be forfeited to the
Campany. Article 122 of the New Articles reduces this period fram
twelve tg six years.

Paysments of divsdends and othor amos

The New Articles grve the Board greater flexibility to deleimine
the appropriate method(s) 1t pays dividends (and other sums)
to shareholders This flexibility will help the Board take account
of developments in market practice and keep down the
admimistrative cast of making payments The New Articles

also pravide that where a payment cannot be made because

a sharehalder has not provided valid accaunt detalls to the
company, that amount waill treated as unclaimed unti the
shareholder provides those detalls

Capiial Rasarve

The New Articles iemove Article 132 in the Old Articles, which
was Included to ensure that the company gualifes as an
investment trust and 1s treated as an nvestment company
Following the modernisation of the :nvestment tryst reqime and
amerdments to legislaten abohishing the restichion on the abiuty
to distibute capital profits, this provision 1s no longer necessary

strategic report and supgiemeniacy mateiigis

Ihe (cmpanies Act 2006 and the Companies (Receipt of AccoLnts
and Reports) Requlations 2013 allow the Carmpany to send a copy
of 1ts straleqic report wilh supplementary material instead of

its full accounts to a member who has elected or tacitly agreed
to receive these documents, provided that the Company is not
prohibited fram doing so 1n «ts articles Article 129 -5 intended to
ma<e It clear there 1s no such prohibition Sharebalders should
nate that they can always view the full arnual repart on the
Campany’s website ar request a hard copy from the Company's
reqgistrar

dender Neutsat Tratting
The New Articles armend the Currert Articles so that gender
neutral language 15 used

Caraidl
Other changes which are of & rmnor, technical or canfying naiuie

or which have beer mace to remove provsions n the Current
Art.cles which duphcate English compary iaw are not noted
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The half year results are announced In iate November. The full
year resulls arg gnnounced i edily june

N IR I

The AGM 15 held i Lendon n July
Fob i R e
Orvidends are ysually paid on the Ordirary shares as foilows:

Intenm January
Final. August

D UERE IS SRR R

Dividends can be paid ta shareholders by means of BACS
(Bankers’ Automaied Cleanng Services); mandate forms for

this purpase are avallable trom the Registrar Alternatively,
shareholders can wiite to the Reqistrar (the address 1s given an
page 108 of this report) to give their nstructians; these must
inciude the bank account number, the bank account bitle and the
sart cade of the bank to which payiments are to be made

o - s . PR PN
L e L | [

IR Property Investment lrust plc offers shareholders the
opportunity to puichase further shares i the Company through
the DRIP Please rote that following Brexit shareholders in turope
are no longer able (o participate in the DRIP DRIF forms may

be obtained from Computershare lnvestor Services FLC through
ther secure websile www investorcentre co uk, or by phoning
0370 707 1694 Chaiges do apply. dealing commission of 0 75%
(subject to a mimmum of £2 50} Goverrmert stamp duty of

0 5% also applies.

Ihe market prices of the Corrpany's shares are pubushed daly
I The Financal Trmes Seme of the .formaticn 15 published in

other leading newspapers fhe Hinanc.al imes alsa shaws figures
for the estinated Net Asset Values and the discounts app cabie

ISIN GBODO9CEA0S7
SEDOL 0906409
8lcomberg TRYLN
Reuters IRY.L
Datastream [RY

Details of the benchinrank are qive™ 1 the Strategic Repon
on page 24 of this Repert ard Accounts The benchmrark wndex s
publshed cally an< can be found or Bicarmnberg,

FISE EPRA/NAREIT Develgped Eufope Capped Net Tota
Return 'ngex n Ster'ng
Boomberg [RORAG ‘ndex

LT

Detalls of the market price and Net Asset value of the
Ordinary shares can be found on the Company’s website at
www lrproperty com

Shareholders who foid their shares in certificated form can check
their holdings with the Registrar, Computershare Investar Services
PLC, wia www investarcentre co uk, Please nate that to gam
access 16 your details an the Cornputershare site you wiil need
the holder reference number stated o the top left hand corner of
your share certificate.

RIS ITITEN M A

Caples of this Repart and Accounts and other documents 1ssued
by the Company are available ficm the Company Secetary If
needed, copies ¢an be made available in a variety of formats,
including Braille, audio tape or farger type as apprapriate

You can conlact the Registral, Computershare Investor Services
PLC, which has :nstalled textphores to allow speech and heaiing
impaired peaple who have their own textphone to contact

therm directly, without the need for an Intermediate operator, by
dialiing 0870 702 0005 Specially tiained operators are available
during normal business hours to answer quenés vig this service

Alternatively, 1f you prefer 1o qo through a ‘typetalk’ operator
{provided by the Royal National Institute for Deaf Pecple} you
should dia 18001 followed by the number you wish to diai

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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where ngtification has been provided in advance, the Campany
will arrange for copies of shareholder communications to be
provided to the operators of narminee accounts Nominge
investors may attend general meetings and speak at meetings
when invited to da so by the Chairman

RS o

I T
Upan a disposal of all ar part of a sharehalder's holding of
Ordinary shares, the impact on the sharehalder’s capital gains
tax base cost of the conversian to Sigma shares 1n 2007 and the
redesignation to Ordinary shares in 2012 should be considered.

In respect of the conversion to Sigma 1n 2007, agreement
was reached with HM Revenue & Customs ("HMRC") to base
the apportionment of the capital gans 1ax base cast on

the proportion of Qrdinary shares that were converted by a
shareholder into Sigma shares on 25 July 2007

Therefore, If an Qrdinary shareholder converted 20% of their
existing Ordinary shares into Sigma shares on 25 July 2007 the
capital gains tax base cost of the new Sigma shares atquired
would be equal to 20% of the onginal capital gains tax base cost
of the Ordinary shares that they held pre conversion The base
cost of their remaining holding of Ordinary shares would then be
80% of the oniginal capital gains tax base cast of ther Gidinary
shares heid pre-conversion

As part of the re designation of the Sigma shares into Ordinary
shares 1n December 2012, a further shareholder’s agreement
was reached with HMRC that 3 shareholders capral gains tax
base cost in their new Ordinary shares should be equivalent to
therr capitat gains base cast in the pre existing Sigma shares
(e ther capital gans base cost under the existing agreement f
applicable)

If 1n doubt as ta the conseguences of this agreement with HMRC,
shareholders should consuit with their cwr professional advisors.

TR PROFERTY INVESTMENT TRUST



The shares of IR Property Investment Trust ple are listed and
traded on the tondon Stock Exchange. Investors may purchase
shares through their stockbroker, bank ar other financial
intermediary

R
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Investors may hald their investment in certihcated form Qur
reqisirars, Computershare operate a dealing service which enables
nvestors 1o buy and sell shares quickly and easify onfine without
a broker of the need to open a trading account. Alterratively the
investor Centie allows investars (o manage portfolios quickly and

securely, update details and view balances without annuat charges.

Further details are avarable by contacting Computershaie on 0370
707 1355 o1 visit www tomputershare com

TR Piaperty Investment Trust pic now offers sharenoiders the
opportunity to purchase further shares in the company thigugh
the Dividend Re-investient Plan ("DRIP™) thiough the tegistiar,
Computershare Shareholders can obtain further information on
the DRIP through then secure website www nvestarcentie o uk,
ar by phoning 0370 707 1694 Charges do apply. Please note

that to gain access to your detalls or register for the DRIP on the
Computershare site you will need the holder reference number
stated on the top left hand corner of your share certificate

T AL Vv, s
s PR RS e S Py

A number of banks and wealth management organisations
provide Savings Schemes and 1SAs thraugh which UK clients can
invest in [R Property Invesiment [rust plg

ISA ard savings scheme prowiders do charge dealing and other
fees for operating the accounts, and investars should read the
lermrs and Conditians provided by these companies and ensure
that the charges best swit their planned nvestment profile Most
schemes carry annual charges but these vary between provicer
and product. Where dealing charges apply, 1 some cases these
are appled as a percentage of funds invested and others as a
t'at charge The optimum way to hold the shaies will be different
far each nvestor deperding upon the frequency and size of
mvestments to be made

Details are giver below of two providers offenng shares in
IR Broperty Investment Trust, but there are many olher optans

Interaclve investor pravide and administer a range of se'f-select
investment placs, incuding lax-advartaged 1SAS and SiPPs
{(Self-invested Perscnal Persion). and lrading Accounts

tor mere informatian, interactive mvestor car be contatled an
0345 €07 6007, or by wisiting https-//www it co uk/

Irteractive wvestor offer nvestors ¢ IR Property and other
invesimert fiusts a free opt ir orlire sharehgicer voling arc
pfarmatian servce that epebies inveslers ta receive sharehoider
communicat.ons and, of they wish, 1o vote on the shareboidings
held r therr account

iR Praperty Is afsa on the nteraclive super &C rated st

3M0 cifer a number af Prvate Irvester Prans, irvestment Tryst
and tuniof 1SAs and Chaaren’s Ievestrment Plars investinerts
can be made as 'ump sums or thracgh reguiar savings. For more

nfarmatian see inside the back cover. SMO can be contacted on
0BOG 136 420, of visil www bmagait corm

Please remember that the value ol your investments and any
mcome fram them may go down as weill as up. Past perfarmance
15 not 3 guide to future performance You may not qet back

the amount that you invest. If you are 1n any doubl as to the
surtabiiity of a pian or any investment avaiable within a plan,
please take professional advice.

:
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Follawing the acquisition of Alhance Tiust Savings by interactive
investor, ATS self-directed accounts were transferred fo the
interactive nvestor platfoim on 14th Octeber 2019

in 2012 BNP Paribas closed down the pait of their business that
operated Savings Schemes and 1SAs. Investars were given the
choice of transferning their schemes to Allance Trust Savings
{("a15"Y or to a provider of their own cheice, or to close they
accaunts and sell the haldings

It investars ¢ud not respand to the letters from BNP Paribas, thew
accounts were tiansferred io AIS

tollowing the acquisition of Allance Trust Savings by interactive
investar, ATS seff-directed accaunts were iransferred to the
intecactive mvestor platfarm on 14 Gctaber 2075,

e ot P T REERERE S I

Shareholders in @ number of Investment Trusts have been
approached as pait of a share fraud where they are infoimed

of an opparturity 1o sell thewr shares as the company 15

subject to a takeover bid This is not frue and s an atlempt o
defraud shareholgers the share fravg also seeks payment of 2
“‘tommission” by shareholders to the parties carrying out the fraud

Shareholders should temain alert to this type of scam ard treat
with suspicion any contact by telephone affering an attractive
investrnent opportunity, such as a piermurn price for your shares,
or an atterrpt ta convince you that payment is required in orcer
to reiease a settlerment for your shares. These frauds may alsc
offer ta seil your shares in campanies which have ittle of na
value or may offer you bonus shaies These s ¢alled "bover
100m” sCams can aiso nvolve an attempt to obta your perscnal
and/or barking informatran weth which t comimit «dentity fraug

The cailer may be friendly and reassunng or they may take a
more yrgent tone, ercouraging yeu to act quickly otherwise you
could jase money or miss out on a deal

if you have beer contacted by an urauthansed fim regarding
yaur shares the FCA would like to hear from you You <an repait
2 urauthensed fem wsing the FCA helphne on 0800 171 6768 or
by wsiting their website, which alsg Fas other Lsetul nformation,
et www.ica crguk

if you recerve any unschc.ted investment advice Mmaxe suré you
get the correct name of the peisor ang argarisator 1f the cais
persist, feng up f you deal wih ar upeuthornses fiem, you wi
not be ergible to recerve payrrert under the Franca. Sefvies
Cormpensat.on Scheire

Please be advised that the Beard or the Manager would
never make unsolicited telephane calls of such a natuse to
shaseholders.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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You can use your ISA allowance to make an annual
tax-efticient investment of up te £20,000 for the
current tax year with a lump sum from £100 or regular
savings from £25 a month. You can also transfer any
existing ISAs to us whilst maintaining the tax benefits.

AT UMION SA (3158

A tax efficient way to invest up to £9,000 per tax year
for a child. Contributions start from £100 lump sum or
£25 a month. JISAs or CTFs with other providers can be
transferred to BMO.

BMO LIFETIME ISA (LISA)

For those aged 18-39, a Lifetime ISA could help towards
purchasing your first home or retirement in later life.
Invest up to £4,000 for the current tax year and receive
a 25% Government bonus up to £1,000 per year. invest
with a lump sum from £100 or regular savings from
£25 a month.

BAAG CHILD TRUST FUND {LTF)

if your child already has a CTF you can invest up to
£9,000 per birthday year, from £100 lump sum o7 £25 a
month. CTFs with other providers can be transferred

to BMO.

SR CENERALD INYESTMENT ATLOUNT {00
This is a flexible way to invest in our range

of Investment Trusts. There are no maximum
contributions, and investments ¢an be made from
£100 lyump sum or £25 a month.

D IUMIGR INVESTMENT aldOUNT (114G
1his is a flexible way to save for a child in our

range of Investment Trusts. Fhere are no maximum
contributions, and the plan can easily be set up under
bare trust {where the child is noted as the beneficial
owner) of kept in your name if you wish to retain
control over the investment. Investments can be made
from a £100 lump sum or £25 a month per account.
You can also make additional lump sum top-ups at any
time from £100 per account.

‘The CTH and JISA accounts are opered by parerts ir the chad’s rame

ard they heve actess to the money at sye 18 "0 s imay be recoriced o
romtgres for taring ard ouanty purposes

1o @)

o
Annual managernent charges and other charges apply according to
the type of plan

. EE0+VAI
+ EA0+VAT
- E25+VAI

You can pay the acnual charge from your account, or by direct debit
(ir addition to any annual subscription himits)

PR ST I Liow o Sl
L L PR

£12 per fund (reduced 1o £0 for deals placed through the online BMO
Investor Portal) far 1SA/GIA/LISA/NIA and JISA. There are ng dealing
charges on a CTF.

Dealing charges apply when shares are bought ar sold but not on the
reinvestment of dividends or the investment of manthly direct debits

Government stamp duty of 0 5% also applies on the purchase of
shares (where applicabie)

The value of investments ¢an go down as well as up and you may

not get back your onginal iInvestment. Tax benefits depend on your
individual crcumstances and tax allowances and rules may change
Please ensure you have read the fuil Terms and Conditians, Privacy
Policy and relevant Key teatures dotuments before investing For
regulatory purposes, please ensure you have read the Pre-sales Cost &
Charges disclosure related to the product you are applying for, and the
relevant Key Information Documents (KiDs) for the investment trusts
you want 1o invest into.

Ta open a new BMO plan, apply online at bmogam.com/fapply
Onlme apphcations are not avallable If you are transferning an existing
plan with ancther provider to BMO, orif you are applying for 2 new

plan 1n more than ane name but paper ¢pplications are available at
brmoimvestments co uk/documents or by contaciing BMO

Cail:
kmail.

Call:
Email- as
By post:

You can also invest in the trust through online deaiing platforms for
private investors that offer share dealing and 15As. Companies \rcluce
Barclays Stockbrokers, EQi, Halifax, Hargreaves Lansdown,
HSBC, Interactive Investor, Lloyds Bank, The Share Centre

bmoinvestments (G.u<
§  faceboox com/bmomvestmentsuk

0345 600 3030, 500am - 5 00pm, weekdays, calls may be 1ecorded
or monitored for training and quality purposes.

380 Asset Manacement Lirted 1s authrorrsed eird 1equ dled by the Financal Cerduet Authonly enc s @ member of 3M0 Global Asset Management LMEA of wheh the

Jlfimate parent comrpany s the Sank of Martrear /37510 156 £5/27 UK
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